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REVISED ANNUAL REPORT TEMPLATE 

 
The purpose of this revised Annual Report template is to address the need expressed by a number of 
municipalities for assistance in the preparation and development of improved content and quality of 
Municipal Annual Reports. This template provides an update to the MFMA Circular No. 11, issued in 
January 2005. 
 
This template gives effect to the legal framework requirement, concepts and principals espoused in the 
White Paper on Local Government and Improving Government Performance.  It reflects the ethos of public 
accountability. The content gives effect to information required for better monitoring and evaluation of 
government programmes in support of policy decision making. The template provides an improved overview 
of municipal affairs by combining the performance report data required under Municipal Systems Act 
Section 46 with annual report data referred to in that Act and in the MFMA.  
 
The revised template makes its contribution by forging linkages with the Integrated Development Plan, 
Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan, Budget Reforms, In-year Reports, Annual Financial 
Statements and Performance Management information in municipalities. This coverage and coherence is 
achieved by the use of interlocking processes and formats. 
 
The revised template relates to the Medium Term Strategic Framework particularly through the IDP strategic 
objectives; cross cutting nature of services offered by different spheres of government, municipal service 
outcome indicators; and the contextual material as set out in Chapters 3, 4 & 5.  It also provides information 
on good management practice in Chapter 4; risk management in Chapter 2; and Supply Chain Management 
in Chapter 5; and addresses the Auditor-General’s Report, dealing with Financial and Performance 
Management arrangements in Chapter 6. This opens up greater possibilities for financial and non-financial 
comparisons between municipalities and improved value for money. 
 
The revised template provides information on probity, including: anti-corruption strategies; disclosure of 
financial interests by officials and councillors; disclosure of grants by external parties, disclosure of loans 
and grants by municipalities. The appendices talk to greater detail including disaggregated information on 
municipal wards, among others. Notes are included throughout the format to assist the compiler to 
understand the various information requirements.  
 
The financial years contained in this template are explained as follows: 
 

• Year 2012: The previous financial year; 
• Year 2013: The financial year of reporting;  
• Year 2014: The following year, mostly requires future targets; and 
• The other financial years will follow a similar sequence as explained above. 

 
We wish to express our gratitude to the members of the Annual Report Reference Group, consisting of 
national, provincial and municipal officials for their inputs and support throughout the development of this 
document.  
 
MFMA Implementation Unit, National Treasury                                                                    2012 
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CHAPTER 1 – MAYOR’S FOREWORD AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

COMPONENT A: MAYOR’S FOREWORD 

 
MAYOR’S FOREWORD 

 

 

I hereby present, to the Council and the people of Inkwanca 
Municipality and to our stakeholders in general, this Annual Report for 
the Financial year 2012/2013. 

Significantly, this report mirrors the activities and achievements for the 
year under review. It portrays the second year of the current term of 
this Council. As the municipality we will continue to provide an equal 
opportunity for material and social development for all residents and 
this is evident in the latest published 2011 census that access to basic 
services has improved in our communities, See Chapter 2 Table 2.11 
for details.   

I can proudly report during the year under review amongst others 
progress that has been made by our municipality in improving service 
delivery, providing clean water and decent sanitation, implementing 
projects that have created more job opportunities in our municipality, 

this include the construction of Masakhe Community Hall in ward 3, construction of Sokoyi Bridge in ward 3, 
Surfacing of taxi routes in Molteno and Sterkstroom. We continue to promote youth development and 
participatory in sport through Mayor’s Cup that is held annually.   Although the amount allocated to us 
remains a challenge in terms of addressing the backlog that we have in our municipality, I hope the method 
will change in future so that we can be funded according to our needs and not according to our population.  
One other aspect we need to improve on is the Audit report. We cannot continue receiving a bad Audit 
outcome year after year.   

Although we are collecting on service charges but we need to improve on revenue enhancement.  This will 
make it possible for us to create more jobs and provide quality service to the people. 

I am committed to improve service delivery during my term in office.  This will be done by building 100 
middle-income houses, engaging all government departments to have offices in our municipality,  engaging 
the private sector for the rehabilitation of the railway line and by looking for partnerships in opening coal 
mines in our area as we have a coal belt and methane gas 

In presenting this Annual report, I want to acknowledge the role played by the administration during the 
Audit. However, it is important to note that while greater effort has been put in addressing the financial 
management and governance of the municipality, the internal control environment still require significant 
improvements in order for the municipality to achieve and maintain a clean audit report. We also need to 
acknowledge the significant improvement in the auditor general’s opinion from the prior year as this points to 
us moving in the correct direction. It is therefore our collective endeavor to work tirelessly to ensure effective 
oversight over the administration and entrenchment of good governance ethos in order to restore public 
confidence. 

To my fellow Councilors “Aluta Continua”. 

Cll MN
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I urge all our stakeholders to interact with the report and to exercise their democratic right (which is 
enshrined in the constitution) to comment on the performance of the municipality.    

 

I thank you 

 

Councilor M.N. Qamngwana 
Mayor 
Inkwanca Municipality 
 
                                                                        
                                                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                           T 1.0.1 
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COMPONENT B: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

1.1. MUNICIPAL MANAGER’S OVERVIEW  
 
 
 

MUNICIPAL MANAGER’S OVERVIEW 
 
 

 

This Annual report seeks to provide an overview of Inkwanca 
Municipality’s performance during the financial year 2012/13.  
Inkwanca Municipality has for the year under review set out 
certain objectives which we wanted to achieve to change the lives 
of our people for the better. 

We are proud to report that substantial progress has been made 
towards meeting our targets as set in Service Delivery and Budget 
Implementation Plan for the year under review. On the subject of 
performance, the municipality did not perform as well as it could 

have and this is due to general capacity constraints experienced by the municipality. This is a historical 
challenge that has had a negative effect to the municipality however we are nonetheless addressing this 
matter as the municipality. Notwithstanding the said capacity constraints, the municipality has nonetheless 
achieved satisfactory delivery as presented under Performance Highlights below: 

The municipality has prioritized the following: 

Provision of potable water and adequate sanitation to the communities; Provision of electricity; Road 
Infrastructure; Local Economic Development  Provision effective and clean governance , Organizational 
development and Financial viability of the municipality 

While the provision of water is a competence of the District Municipality during the year under review the 
provisioning of water has become the services of the local municipality through a service level agreement 
entered into between the parties, the local municipality has a key role in identifying priority communities for 
intervention and ensuring indeed that the District Municipality delivers in this regard. Similarly, delivery of 
electricity in the 60% communities is an Eskom competence; however the municipality plays an enabling 
and monitoring role in this respect also. 

The Inkwanca municipal area is blessed with natural resources such as coal, clay and good pastures. 
The challenge and the priority of the municipality is to tap into these natural resources with an objective of 
ensuring that there is an economic beneficiation by the communities of Inkwanca.  

The municipality’s financial health is not at the position where we would like it to be. Some of the key 
issues in this regard are; that the municipality’s revenue collection rate was below budget, that the new 
valuation roll was implemented, not all properties were updated as per the deeds office records, under i.e. 
the billing level is below the level where it should be, and the fact that our budget for the year under review 
was unrealistic (not achievable). The foregoing illustrates two issues firstly being the fact that the 
municipality is not a preferred financial position i.e. not adequate money collected and recovered; the 
second issue depicted is that of a financial management function that is not adequate.  

Municipal



 

9 

Inkwanca Municipality |Annual Report 2012/13   

Going forward, we have addressed and continue to address the capacity issues within the BTO and across 
other municipal departments, this will address the issues of financial mismanagement in the past as well as 
the general financial position of the municipality given that income collection and recovery will be one of the 
priorities. In the new financial year, these issues have been addressed even in terms of Performance 
Contracts signed between the Municipal Manager and the rest of section 57 managers. 

I would like to extend my warmest appreciation to the political leadership and the staff of the Inkwanca 
Municipality for their contribution to the progress made during the 2012/13 financial year. 
 
 
 

 G Sigojo        

 Municipal Manager 

 
. 
                                                                                                                                                 T 1.1.1  
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1.2. MUNICIPAL FUNCTIONS, POPULATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL OVERVIEW 
 

INTRODUCTION TO BACKGROUND DATA 
 

The Inkwanca Local Municipal is a category B municipality established in terms of Section 12 of the Municipal 

Structures Act 117 of 1998. The municipality is approximately 3583²km, situated 60km north-west of 

Queenstown.  It comprises of the towns of Molteno and Sterkstroom and the surrounding farming (rural) areas, 

with Molteno being the administrative seat of the municipality. The residential component of the municipality is 

mainly concentrated in the two urban nodes: 

 Molteno, including Nomonde, Molteno Town, Nkululeko and Dennekruin 

 Sterkstroom, including Masakhe, Sterkstroom Town, Sonwabile &Hoffmansville 

The rural surroundings (farm areas) comprise a small portion of the total population in the municipality. 

 

The municipality falls within the Chris Hani District Municipality and is bounded by the Tsolwana, Gariep, 

Maletswai, Emalahleni and Lakhani Municipalities.  The N6 national road between Bloemfontein and East 

London play an important link through the municipality.  In addition, the R56 route from Pietermaritzburg runs 

through Molteno towards Middelburg, is a further important road-link. The area has a rich historical background 

dating back to the 18th century with a member of monuments and key places of interest. Commercial agriculture 

is the main economic activity in the municipality.  
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Queenstown urban area plays an important role of being the economic hub of the district; and a number of 

services for Inkwanca residents are obtained from Queenstown and areas further afield like Bloemfontein and 

East London. 

                                                                                                                                          
 

Population Details 

                Population '000 

Age 
1996 Census 2001 Census 2011 Census 

Male Female Total Male Female Total Male Female Total 

Age: 0 - 4     1858     1915     0

Age: 5 - 14     5265     4927     6811

Age: 15 - 34     6323     6682     0

Age: 35 - 64     4335     5326     13754

Age: 65+     1401     1394     1428

Total     19182     20244     21971
Source: Statistics SA                                                                                                                                          
T 1.2.2 

 
 

 

 
 

T1.2.3 
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Year Housing 
Backlog as 
proportion 
of current 
demand 

Unemployment 
Rate 

Proportion 
of 

Households 
with no 
Income 

Proportion of 
Population in 
Low-skilled 
Employment 

HIV/AIDS 
Prevalence 

Illiterate 
people 
older 

than 14 
years 

Year 
2011 20% 23% 26% 48% 15% 37%
Year 
2012 21% 24% 26% 52% 20% 44%
 
          T 1.2.4 
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□ Population/Age 

Age Rural Molteno 
Town 

Nomonde+ 
Nkululeko 

Masakhe+ 
Sonwabile 

Sterkstroom 

Town 

Total 

0-9 813 277 1786 1131 119 4127 

10-19 552 400 2437 1542 219 5151 

20-64 1908 803 4030 2422 417 9580 

64+ 135 177 563 430 85 1389 

Total 3408 1657 8817 5525 840 20247 

 

 Approximately 50% of the population is within the economic active group, aged 20-64. 

 17% of the population lives in the rural area, indicating high level of urbanization. 

 Molteno has the greatest population concentration, comprising approximately 50% of the total population 

or 10474 

□ Family Composition 

AREA Families Population 

Rural 1148 3408 

Molteno 2569 10474 

Sterkstroom 1758 6365 

Total 5475 20247 

 

 Total of 5475 families reside in the municipality. 

 This constitutes an average family size of approximately 4 persons. 
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 Molteno represents the highest family sizes in the municipality with the rural area the lowest at 

approximately 3 persons per household. 

 Population distribution between the urban and rural area clearly demonstrates high level of urbanization 

and high level of commercial farming activities. 

 
 

Natural Resources 

Major Natural Resource Relevance to Community 

Agricultural land 40% is employed on agriculture sector 

Wind Wind farms are under construction 

Coal not yet mined 

Clay not yet mined 

Methane gas Not yet explore 

   
T 1.2.7
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1.3. SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW 
 

Proportion of Households with minimum level of Basic services 

  
  1996 

Census 
2001 

Census 
2011 Census 

Electricity  service connections   71% 73% 92%

Water - available within 200 m from dwelling   60% 65% 98%

Sanitation - Households with at least VIP service   27% 43% 81%

Waste collection - curbside collection once a week   69% 69% 83%
 

 
 

T 1.3.2 

 
  

0%
20%
40%
60%
80%

100%
120%

1996 Census 2001 Census 2011 Census

Proportion of households with access to 
basic services

Electricity  service connections
Water - available within 200 m from dwelling
Sanitation - Households with at leats VIP service
Waste collection - kerbside collection once a week



 

16 

Inkwanca Municipality |Annual Report 2012/13   

1.4. FINANCIAL HEALTH OVERVIEW 
 
 

Financial Overview:  Year 2013 
      R' 

Details Original budget Adjustment Budget Actual 

Income:       

Grants 40 119 327 40 119 327 40 119 327

Taxes, Levies and tariffs 10 437 256 9 583 238 18 579 408

Other 

Sub Total 50 556 583 49 702 565 58 698 735

Less: Expenditure 47 991 983 47 464 692 57 254 181

Net Total* 2 564 600 2 237 873 1 444 554
* Note:  surplus/(deficit)      T 1.4.2 

 
 
 

Operating Ratios 

Detail % 

Employee Cost 37.3%

Repairs & Maintenance, General and Bulk purchases 32.3%

Finance Charges , Impairment and Depreciation 31%

  T 1.4.3
 
 
 
 

Total Capital Expenditure: Year 2010 to Year 2012 

      R'

Detail Year 2010 Year 2011 Year 2012 

Original Budget 1,165,171 702,492 9,800,650

Adjustment Budget 1,426,771 806,641 9,800,650

Actual 2,749,832 820,294 7,346,418

    T 1.4.4 
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1.5. STATUTORY ANNUAL REPORT PROCESS 
 
 
No
. 

Activity Timeframe 

1 

Consideration of next financial year’s Budget and IDP process plan. Except for the 
legislative content, the process plan should confirm in-year reporting formats to 
ensure that reporting and monitoring feeds seamlessly into the Annual Report 
process at the end of the Budget/IDP implementation period 

July 2 
Implementation and monitoring of approved Budget and IDP commences (In-year 
financial reporting). 

3 Finalize the 4th quarter Report for previous financial year 

4 Submit draft year 0 Annual Report to Internal Audit and Auditor-General 

5 Municipal entities submit draft annual reports to MM  

6 
Audit/Performance committee considers draft Annual Report of municipality and 
entities (where relevant) 

August 

8 
Mayor tables the unaudited Annual Report 

9 
Municipality submits draft Annual Report including consolidated annual financial 
statements and performance report to Auditor General 

10 
Annual Performance Report as submitted to Auditor General to be provided  as input 
to the IDP Analysis Phase 

11 
Auditor General audits Annual Report including consolidated Annual Financial 
Statements and Performance data 

September - 
October 

12 Municipalities receive and start to address the Auditor General’s comments 

November 
13 

Mayor tables Annual Report and audited Financial Statements to Council complete 
with the Auditor- General’s Report  

14 Audited Annual Report is made public and representation is invited 

15 Oversight Committee assesses Annual Report 

16 Council adopts Oversight report 

December 17 
Oversight report is made public 

18 Oversight report is submitted to relevant provincial councils 

19 
Commencement of draft Budget/ IDP finalization for next financial year. Annual 
Report and Oversight Reports to be used as input 

January 

                                                                                                                                                        T 1.7.1 

 

The Municipality has compile an annual performance report and submitted along with annual financial 
statements for audit purpose on legislated timeframe and this two reports were audited and annexed to this 
annual report.   
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CHAPTER 2 – GOVERNANCE 

 
 
INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE 
 
This chapter contains components of municipal governance mainly political and administrative governance, 
intergovernmental relations, public accountability and participation and corporate governance.                                                  
 

COMPONENT A:  POLITICAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 

 
 
2.1 INTRODUCTION TO POLITICAL GOVERNANCE 
 
The Constitution section 151 (3) states that the council of a municipality has the right to govern on its own 
initiative, the local government affairs of the local community. 
 
MFMA section 52 (a): The Mayor must provide general political guidance over the fiscal and financial affairs of 
the municipality. 

Governance has eight major characteristics. It is participatory, consensus oriented, accountable, transparent, 

responsive, effective and efficient, equitable and inclusive and follows the rule of law. It assures that corruption is 

minimized, the views of minorities are taken into account and that the voices of the most vulnerable in society are 

heard in decision-making. It is also responsive to the present and future needs of society.  

The council performs both legislative and executive functions. They focus on legislative, oversight and 

participatory roles, and have delegated its executive function to the Mayor. Their primary role is to debate issues 

publicly and to facilitate political debate and discussion. Apart from their functions as decision makers, councilors 

are also actively involved in community work and the various social programs in the municipal area. 

Council comprises of only seven elected Councilors, three come from Proportional Representation (PR) and four 
from wards, the council has five portfolio committees and two section 79 which is the Oversight and the Audit 
committee. Audit Committee that provides opinions and recommendations on financial processes and 
performance and provides comments to the Oversight Committee (or some other stated committee) on the 
Annual Report. State whether your municipality has established an Oversight Committee, comprised of non-
executive councillors, 
 
Refer to Appendix A where a full list of Councilors can be found (including committee allocations and 
attendance at council meetings). Also refer to Appendix B which sets out committees and committee purposes 
 
 

The party and gender representation in the Council is represented by the table below:  
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COUNCILLOR PORTFOLIOS GENDER PARTY PR/WARD 

Cllr MN Qamngwana Budget and Treasury 

Male 

PR 

Cllr  CM BOTHA MPAC 

Female 

PR 

Cllr CH Guda MPAC 

Male 

PR 

Cllr KJ Jonga Community Services & LED

Male 

Ward 1 

Cllr N Yaliwe Special Programs 

Female 

Ward 2 

Cllr NN Cwebi Technical Services 

Male 

Ward 3 

Cllr XG Mkubukeli-Lufele Administration 

Female 

Ward 4 
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Mayor: Cllr MN Qamngwana ANC (PR)               

  

                                    

   Cllr M. Botha DA (PR)                       Cllr CH Guda Cope (PR)                 Cllr KJ Jonga ANC – Ward 1 

                                          

      Cllr N Yaliwe ANC – Ward 2            Cllr NN Cwebi ANC – Ward 3         Cllr Lufele ANC- Ward 4 
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CHAPTER 2 
 
2.1. ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURES 

The Municipal Manager is the Chief Accounting Officer of the Municipality. He is the head of the administration, 

and primarily has to serve as chief custodian of service delivery and implementation of political priorities. He is 

assisted by his direct reports, which constitutes the Management Team, whose structure is outlined in the table 

below. 

TOP MANAGEMENT 

 

 
 

Municipal Manager: Mr S Sigojo 
 

                           
 

  Chief Financial Officer               Community Services                       Corporate Services            Acting Technical Officer:               
Mrs L Labuschagne                   Manager: Mr M.E. Dingani              Manager: Mr S Dyantyi            Manager: Mr P Parker 

 

 
 
All the above positions are section 57 posts and the two vacancies were budgeted for in the year reported 
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TOP ADMINISTRATIVE 
STRUCTURE TIER 1 

MUNICIPAL MANAGER  

FUNCTIONS 

Municipal Administration, IDP, Performance Management, Risk Management, 
Communication & Liaison, Strategic Services, Accounting Officer functions 

 
Manager : Community 
Services Manager 
 

Cleansing and solid waste management, Cemeteries. Public Amenities, Traffic 

Services,  Library Services 

 
Manager : Corporate 
Services Manager 

Committee Secretarial Services, Records & Archives, IT Systems & Control, 

Personnel Administration, Recruit & Selection, Training & Development,  Labour 

Relations & PMS. 
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Manager : Technical 
Services Manager 

Roads & Storm water Construction,  Building Inspectorate, Land Usage, Spatial 

Planning,  Maintenance, Electricity Reticulation, Project & Contract Management, 

Water and sanitation  Services (Reticulation, Treatment, quality & Plumbing) & 

GIS. 

 
 Chief Financial Officer       Supply Chain Management, Budget and Treasury, Expenditure Management, 

Asset Management, Revenue Management 
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COMPONENT B: INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

 

INTRODUCTION TO CO-OPERATIVE GOVERNANCE AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 
 
MSA section 3 requires that municipalities exercise their executive and legislative authority within the 
constitutional system of co-operative governance envisage in the Constitution section 41. 
 
The municipality has got good intergovernmental relations with various departments. The Department of Public 
Works has committed itself on EPWP program which has employed more that 100 of unemployed citizens. 
Agriculture and rural development has assisted local farmers to expand in terms of farming. This department has 
assisted them to get farming material, this significant assistance has assisted a lot in terms of service delivery. 
The DPLGTA has assisted through its operation clean audit initiative. 
  

2.3 INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 
 
 
NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURES 
 
The Municipality is participating through SALGA representation in National Forums and the benefit derived from 
these forums is so vital. 
 
PROVINCIAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURE 
 
The Municipality is engaged into Provincial IDP through Provincial Iimbizos and participates in provincial Forums. 
  
 
DISTRICT INTERGOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURES 
 
The Municipality has held meetings with all Chris Hani District municipalities for the establishment of 
Performance management system forum and meetings for the transfer of water services provision function to 
local municipalities by the CHDM.  
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COMPONENT C: PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY AND PARTICIPATION 

 
OVERVIEW OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY AND PARTICIPATION 
 
MSA section 17 (2): requires a municipality to establish and organise its administration to facilitate a culture 
of accountability amongst its staff. Section 16 (1): states that a municipality must develop a system of 
municipal governance that compliments formal representative governance with a system of participatory 
governance. Section 18 (a) - (d): requires a municipality to supply its community with information concerning 
municipal governance, management and development.   
 
Inkwanca LM is a municipality with four wards, in order to enhance public participation the municipality has 

convene ward committee meeting .The municipality has met with all stakeholders in the form of IDP, 

Budget representative  forum meetings and community Iimbizos to table reports and municipal 

performance and disclosure financials. In that particular process community members are afforded an 

opportunity to participate in the affairs on the municipality. 

 
 

2.4 PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 
 
COMMUNICATION, PARTICIPATION AND FORUMS 
 

The municipality is calling Iimbizos and IDP, Budget Rep Forums, the municipality has also produced a 
newsletter which is written in English and Xhosa for the benefit of the community members, the newsletter is 
issued quarterly. The meetings convened by the municipality are meetings to give progress report on the 
demand of the community members, to shape the priorities, projects and objectives of the municipality, in 
some of the meetings attendance is a challenge, the attendance range around 51-55% all stakeholders do 
attend, NGO’s, Political and government departments. The notices are put on notice boards and published 
properly.  
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WARD COMMITTEES 
 
Refer to Appendix E which contains further details on ward committee governance and to Appendix F that 
contains performance data on a ward by ward basis. 

T 2.4.2 

 
Public Meetings 

Nature and 
purpose of 
meeting 

Date of 
events 

Number of 
Participating 
Municipal 
Councilors 

Number of 
Participating 
Municipal 
Administrators 

Number of 
Community 
members 
attending 

Issue 
addressed 
(Yes/No) 

Dates and 
manner of 
feedback 
given to 
community 

   

   

   

     

 
  

  

  

  

  

                                                                                                                                                                T 
2.4.3 

 

2.5 IDP PARTICIPATION AND ALIGNMENT 
 
 
IDP Participation and Alignment Criteria* Yes/No 

Does the municipality have impact, outcome, input, output indicators?  Yes 

Does the IDP have priorities, objectives, KPIs, development strategies?  Yes 

Does the IDP have multi-year targets?  Yes 

Are the above aligned and can they calculate into a score?  Yes 

Does the budget align directly to the KPIs in the strategic plan?  Yes 

Do the IDP KPIs align to the Section 57 Managers  Yes 

Do the IDP KPIs lead to functional area KPIs as per the SDBIP?  Yes 

Do the IDP KPIs align with the provincial KPIs on the 12 Outcomes  Yes 

Were the indicators communicated to the public?   Yes 

Were the four quarter aligned reports submitted within stipulated time frames?  Yes 

* Section 26  Municipal Systems Act 2000 

T 2.5.1
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COMPONENT D: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
 

OVERVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
Corporate Governance often refer to it as Good governance is to ensure that the public gains confidence to 
the entity through its transparent processes and constantly engaging the public for their input on issues for 
decision making, the systems and controls in the entity that are place to respond to the risks the entity is 
exposed. 

T 2.6.0 

 
 

2.6 RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
MFMA section 62 (i) (c) requires a municipality to have and maintain an effective, efficient and transparent 
system of risk management. 
 
The Municipality wide risk management plan that is aimed at effectively identifying, evaluating and 
managing risk exposures within acceptable or prudent levels has been adopted, the risk register and high 
priority risk have been identified and the audit committee and the Risk Management Committee to further 
strengthen risk management process 
 
The top risks identified by the municipality include the following 

• Interest by internal staff on tenders 
• Deviation from SCM processes 
• Limited revenue base 
• Insufficient funding for service delivery projects 
• Fruitless expenditure 

 
 

2.7 ANTI-CORRUPTION AND FRAUD 
 

FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION STRATEGY 
 
Chapter 4 gives details of Disciplinary Action taken on cases of financial mismanagement (T 4.3.6). MSA 
2000 s 83 (c) requires providers to be chosen through a process which minimizes the possibility of fraud and 
corruption. 
The anti-corruption strategy has be launched by the Provincial government and the Mayors were asked to 
pledge on it and hot lines were introduced to the members of the public to report corrupt tendencies should 
they occur in the communities and Inkwanca Municipality has always encouraged staff and members of the 
public to come forward should any suspect of corruption and fraud occur.  
 
 Please refer Audit Committee recommendations for year 2012 are set out at Appendix G.  .                                                    

T 2.7.1                            
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2.8 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 
 
 

OVERVIEW SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 
 
MFMA section 110 - 119; SCM Regulations 2005; and relevant MFMA circulars set out required processes 
and guidance manuals to help ensure that SCM arrangements provide appropriate goods and services, 
offer best value for money and minimize the opportunities for fraud and corruption. 
 
SCM policies and processes promote a fair and transparent ways of procuring goods and services to ensure 
improved service delivery. The Municipality has encouraged the use of competitive bidding when goods and 
services are procured and make use of the suppliers on the data base on a rotation system to procure 
goods and services.  

T 2.8.1 
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2.9 BY-LAWS 
 

By-laws Introduced during Year 2013 

Newly 
Developed 

Revised  Public Participation 
Conducted Prior to 

Adoption of By-Laws 
(Yes/No) 

Dates of Public 
Participation 

By-Laws 
Gazetted* 
(Yes/No) 

Date of 
Publication 

 Rates & 
taxes 
 
Stray 
Animals 
 
 
 
 

NO 
 
No 
 
 
 
 
 

No 
 
No 
 
 
 
 
 

N/A 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

No 
 

No 
 
 
 
 
 

 N/A 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

            

*Note: See MSA section 13. T 2.9.1 
 

COMMENT ON BY-LAWS: 
 
 
MSA 2000 s11 (3) (m) provides municipal councils with the legislative authority to pass and implement by-
laws for the betterment of the community within the terms of the legislation. 
 
 
 By-Laws are in the process of development, more especially Finance By-Laws and gazetting. 

T 2.9.1.1 

 
 

2.10 WEBSITES 
 

Municipal Website: Content and Currency of Material 

Documents published on the Municipality's / Entity's Website 
Yes / 
No 

Publishing 
Date 

Current annual and adjustments budgets and all budget-related documents Yes 09/09/2013 

All current budget-related policies Yes 09/09/2013 

The previous annual report (Year 2011) Yes 04/10/2013 

The annual report (Year 2012) published/to be published Yes 18/04/2013 

All current performance agreements required in terms of section 57(1)(b) of the 
Municipal Systems Act (Year 2012) and resulting scorecards Yes 22/10/2013 

All service delivery agreements (Year 2011) Yes 04/10/2011 

All long-term borrowing contracts (Year 2012) No 
All supply chain management contracts above a prescribed value (give value) for 
Year 2013 Yes  09/09/2013 



 

39 

Inkwanca Municipality |Annual Report 2012/13   

An information statement containing a list of assets over a prescribed value that 
have been disposed of in terms of section 14 (2) or (4) during Year 1   

Contracts agreed in Year 2012 to which subsection (1) of section 33 apply, 
subject to subsection (3) of that section   
Public-private partnership agreements referred to in section 120 made in Year 
2012 n/a   
All quarterly reports tabled in the council in terms of section 52 (d) during Year 
2012   
Note: MFMA s75 sets out the information that a municipality must include in its website as 
detailed above. Municipalities are, of course encouraged to use their websites more 
extensively than this to keep their community and stakeholders abreast of service delivery 
arrangements and municipal developments.  T 2.10.1 

 
 

COMMENT MUNICIPAL WEBSITE CONTENT AND ACCESS: 
 
The municipality has developed its website and became live in September 2012  

T 2.10.1.1 

 
 
 

2.11 PUBLIC SATISFACTION ON MUNICIPAL SERVICES 
 
 

PUBLIC SATISFCATION LEVELS 
 
No public satisfaction survey were conducted during the period reported for municipal service delivery 
however refer to table from SSA 2011 census. 

T 2.11.1 

 
 
Household Services 

 
    Census 2001 Census           2011 

Flush Toilet connected to sewerage %   42.5 86.1 

Weekly Refuse Removal %  68.9 83.2 

Piped Water Inside Dwelling %  19.1 29.7 

Electricity for Lighting %   73.1 91.7 

T 2.11
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CHAPTER 3 – SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMAN (PERFORMANCE REPORT PART I) 

 

COMPONENT A: BASIC SERVICES 

 
This component includes: water; waste water (sanitation); electricity; waste management; and housing 
services; and a summary of free basic services. 
 

3.1. WATER PROVISION 
 
INTRODUCTION TO WATER PROVISION 

Service delivery is a mandated competency for all Local Municipality in the District Municipality. The Chris 
Hani District Municipality as a Water Service Authority appointed all Local Municipalities within its jurisdiction 
to be Water Service Providers. As a co-operative governance the District Municipality has seconded key 
staff personnel to provide additional support in the management of water services. This decision was to 
ensure proper management and monitoring of the services within the local Municipalities. But the optimum 
benefit from water and sanitation interventions can only be achieved if communities and individuals are 
made aware of the links between hygiene practices, poor sanitation, polluted water sources and disease.  

 

The key challenge with respect to the provision of free basic water services is the provision of the facilities 
themselves to poor households (together with the necessary supporting infrastructure). Therefore the free 
basic water services policy is directly linked to the policies for infrastructure provision. Subsidies for free 
basic water services cover the hygiene promotion costs and the operating costs of providing basic water 
services to households. Ideally, the subsidy for operating costs is be calculated as a subsidy per household 
per month for each settlement type and technology used. This subsidy is then paid to the water services 
provider through tranches and it is applied in an equitable and fair manner, both in the present context and 
over time as stand-by.  

 

KEY SERVICE ACHIEVEMENTS OF THE MUNICIPALITY IN WATER  

 Improving the water supply provision in Sterkstroom and Molteno Areas. 
 Achieving a Blue Drop status for Molteno Water Supply System. 

 

LEGISLATURE 

Key roles of national, provincial and local government for sanitation provision are allocated in the 
Constitution. It tasks local government with the responsibility for provision of sustainable services to 
communities, with the support of provincial and national government.  

Key legislation is briefly discussed below.  

The Water Services Act (Act 108 of 1997) is to assist municipalities to undertake their role as water services 
authorities and to look after the interests of the consumer. It also clarifies the role of other water services 
institutions, especially water services providers and water boards.  

The National Water Act (Act 36 of 1998) legislates the way in which the water resource is protected, used, 
developed, conserved, managed and controlled. It also governs how a municipality may return effluent and 
other wastewater back to the water resource.  
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The Municipal Structures Act (Act 33 of 2000) provides for the establishment of municipalities in accordance 
with the requirements relating to categories and types of municipality and to provide for an appropriate 
division of functions and powers between categories of municipality. The Act allocates the responsibility for 
water services to the District Municipality or the local municipality if authorized by the Minister of provincial 
and Local Government.  

The Municipal Systems Act (Act 32 of 2000) focuses on the internal systems and administration of a 
municipality. The Act introduces the differentiation between the function of an authority and that of a 
provider. It also identifies the importance of alternative mechanisms for providing municipal services and 
sets out certain requirements for entering into partnerships.  

The Municipal Demarcation Act (Act 27 of 1998) provides criteria and procedures for the determination of 
municipal boundaries by an independent authority. In terms of the Act, the Municipal Demarcation Board is 
established to determine municipal boundaries. Section 24 provides that when demarcating a municipal 
boundary, the Board must aim to establish an area that would enable the municipality to fulfill its 
Constitutional obligations, including the provision of services in an equitable and sustainable manner, the 
promotion of social and economic development and the promotion of a safe and healthy environment. The 
tax base must also be as inclusive as possible of users of municipal services in the municipality. This is 
important in that rural and urban areas are consolidated, which ensures a more effective use of resources.  

The Division of Revenue Act, which is enacted annually, gives effect to Section 214(1) of the Constitution 
that provides for the equitable division of nationally raised revenue among the three spheres of government. 
The Act for 2002 makes provision for the CWSS as an “Indirect Conditional Grant“ to fund basic level of 
water services and the implementation of infrastructure projects where municipalities lack the capacity to do 
so.  

The White Paper on Basic Household Sanitation (DWAF, 2001) emphasizes the provision of a basic level of 
household sanitation to those areas with the greatest need. It focuses on the safe disposal of human waste 
in conjunction with appropriate health and hygiene practices. The key to this White Paper is that provision of 
sanitation services should be demand driven and community-based with a focus on community participation 
and household choice. 

Total Use of Water Sector(M3) 

FY Agriculture 
Domestic 
Agriculture Forestry Industrial Domestic 

Unaccounted Water 
Losses 

2010 145 160 0 80 1758773 50

2011 140 150 0 80 1732094 50

2012 160 160 0 80 1031924 50

2013 160 160 0 80 50
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T 3.1.2 

 
 
 
 

COMMENT ON WATER USE BY SECTOR: 

The water supply in the area is overloaded and there are few actions that need to be taken to ensure proper 
supply. This will ensure proper service delivery. 

 

REMAINING CHALLENGES 

The upgrading of the sewage treatment works in Sterkstroom and Molteno Areas to reduce sewage 
spillages. 

The upgrading of the water treatment works in Molteno to improve water supply and the quality of the 
supplied water. 
 
Improve the ring fencing of the water services budget and customer billing. 
 
Reduce customer complaints in services billing. 
 
The recovery of costs incurred from water provision that cannot be recovered through billing from CHDM. 
 

 COMMENT ON THE ABOVE TRENDS, AND ON MORE SPECIFIC ISSUES CONCERNING 
WATER SUPPLY AND DEMAND AS APPROPRIATE.  
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HOUSE HOLDS 

Description 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

Actual Actual Actual 

Water (above min level)    

Piped water inside dwelling 1070 1070 1070

Piped water inside the yard (not in the 
dwelling) 

4952 4952 4952

Using piblic tap (stand pipes) - - -

Other water supply (within 200 m) - - -

Minimum service level and above sub 
total 

6022 6022 6022

Minimum service level and above 
percentage 

100 % 100 % 100 %

Water (below min level)    

Using public tap (200 m from dwelling) 0 0 0

Other water supply (within 200 m) - - -

No water supply - - -

Minimum service level and above sub 
total 

- - -

Minimum service level and above 
percentage 

- - -

Total number of house holds 6022 6022 6022



 

44 

Inkwanca Municipality |Annual Report 2012/13   

Total including informal settlement 6022 6022 6022

 

HOUSE HOLDS BELOW MINIMUM SERVICE LEVEL 

Description 2008/18 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Actual no. Actual no. Actual no. Original 
budget 
no. 

Adjusted 
budget 
no. 

Actual no. 

Formal settlements       

Total number house holds - - - - - -

Households below 
minimum service levels 

- - - - - -

Proportion of households 
below minimum service 
level  

- - - - - -

Informal settlements       

Total number house holds - - - - - -

House-holds below 
minimum service levels 

- - - - - -
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Proportion of house-holds 
below minimum service 
level 

- - - - - -

ACCESS TO WATER 

 
* Means access to 25 liters of potable water per day supplied within 200m of a household and with a 

minimum flow of 10 liters per minute 
 

 

0

20

40

60

80

100

water
points

piped
water

6 kl
free

2010/11

2011/12

2012/13



 

46 

Inkwanca Municipality |Annual Report 2012/13   

Water services policy objectives taken from IDP 

Service objectives/ 
Service Indicators 

Out lined service targets 2010/11 2011/12 2013 2013/14 

Target Actual Target Actual Target 

Previous 
year  

 Previous 
year 

Current 
year 

 Current 
year 

Current 
year 

Following 

year 

House Holds without 
minimum supply 

Additional house-holds 
provided with minimum 
water supply during the 
year (number of house-
holds (hhs) without water 
supply at year end. 

0 

(1127)

0 

(1127)

0 

(1127) 

0 

(1127)

0 

(1127)

500 

(627)

627 

(0)

0 

(0)

Improved reliability of 
supply 

Reduce the number of 
interruptions in supply of 
one hour or more compared 
to the base line of 2007/08   

50 % 

(175)

50 % 

(175)

50 % 

(175) 

65 % 

(127) 

70 % 

(109)

80 % 

(73)

90 % 

(36)

100 % 

(0)

Improved water 
connection 

Reduce uncountable water 
levels compared to the 
base line of 2007/08  

 45 % 

(69.35)

30 % 

(36.21)

20 % 

(30.81)

10 % 
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Employee: Water Service & Sanitation 

 

Job  Level  2011/12 2012/13 

Employees no. Post no. Employees Vacancies (full 
time 
equivalent) no. 

Vacancies ( as 
% of total 
posts)  

0-3 1 1 1 - 0 %

4-6 3 3 3 - 0 %

7-9 3 3 3 - 0 %

10-12 2 2 2 - 0 %

13-15 17 17 17 - 0 %

Financial Performance 2010/11: Water & Sanitation service  

Details 2011/12 2012/13 

Actual  Original 
Budget 

Adjusted 
budget 

Actual Variance to 
Budget 

Total Operation Revenue 
(excluding tariffs) 

16,416,722 6,765,596 7,097,152 18,261,309  %

Expenditure: - 

Employees 3,732,881 3,452,110 3,604,479 3,239,706  %

Repairs and Maintenance 756,685 962,836 583,156 2,114,100  %

Other 19,695,927 2,890,626 8,288,882 12,894,036  %
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Total Operation Expenditure 24,185,493 7,305,572 12,476,517 18,247,842  %

Net Operation (service) 
Expenditure 

7,768,771 539,765 5,379,365 13,467 %

3.2 ELECTRICITY 

 

INTRODUCTION TO ELECTRICITY 

 

Note: Recent legislation includes the Electricity Amendment Acts 1989; 1994; 1995; and the Electricity 
Regulation Act 2006. 

Currently 99 % of our house hold have access to electricty. And 1 % of the house holds is in the Eskom 
supplied erea. From the above percentage out of a total of 6022 house holds at Inkwanca municipality 2435 
is supplied by the local municipality and 3590 is Eskom supplied. 

Our infrastructure is very old delapidated as a matter of fact it is in need of a major upgrade as it was last 
upgraded some in the 1980’s. This includes the two 11 KV yards between Molteno and Sterkstroom. 

To try and adress some of these challenges we have replaced some of the 11 KV accessories  like  fuses, 
arestors etc. Molteno area out of a total number of 22 that needed to be purified. The 1 transformer that was 
not purified is in Molteno due to the fact that it was beyond repaires and need to be replaced. 

The top 3 service delivery priorities are the following: 

1. Purification of the 21 tranformers that reduced the number electrical power dips and power outages to 0 
%.  

2. The protection of our lines by means of installing ligthing arestors, fuses and insolators that improved 
power surges and voltage drops. 

3. Brush clearing from our lines that prevented damagies to poles, lines, electrical accessories etc. 

The municipality  together with Eskom is currently giving free basic electricity to a total number of 873 
indigent house holds.                                                                                                                                                                  

T3.2.1
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3.3 WASTE MANAGEMENT THIS SECTION INCLUDES: REFUSE COLLECTIONS, 
WASTE DISPOSAL, STREET CLEANING AND RECYCLING 

3.3   Waste management 
a. Waste management services delivery strategy and main role-players 
The South African Constitution (Act 108 of 1996) states that the people of South Africa have the right to 
an environment that is not detrimental to human health, and imposes a duty on the state to promulgate 
and to implement policies to ensure that this right is upheld. All departments of state or administration in 
national, provincial or local levels of government have similar obligations.  
We must provide for proper and safe disposal of solid waste within the municipality and we must ensure 
that refuse is removed to create clean and healthy environment for the inhabitants of the Municipality. 
It is against this background that Inkwanca Municipality put waste management amongst its top 
priorities. The Municipality has an Integrated Waste Management Plan that was adopted by the council 
in 2006 and is reviewed annually in order to meet the new challenges. The Municipality renders this 
service in the Towns of Molteno and Sterkstroom. The domestic waste is collected on a weekly basis 
while business waste collection frequency depends on the nature of waste. Organic decomposable 
waste is collected more frequently, up to five times a week. We have two landfill sites that are permitted. 
We have managed to close the quarry that was a health hazard at Nkululeko Township and another 
quarry at Nomonde in the area called Phelandaba.  The Molteno and Sterkstroom CBD’s are swept and 
cleansed on a daily basis by the use of our permanently employed workers. The road reserves and 
open areas within the residential areas are cleaned weekly. The Municipality provides plastic bags to all 
indigents for waste collection. We have a staff of 24 permanent general workers. The role players are 
the Municipality employees and the members of the community. We also get assistance from the EPWP 
employees who assist in cutting the grass along our streets twice a week. 
We have easy to follow schedule of refuse removal for both town and it is as follows: 

Day of the week Sterkstroom ( Area) Molteno ( Area) 

Monday  Town/ Dennekruin/J-Section & 
Phelandaba  

Tuesday Zwelitsha/Mqeshi/Zola & Old 
Location 

 

Wednesday  Phumlani/ Nceduluntu& 
Nomonde  

Thursday  Zwelitsha and Old Location 

Friday Town & Sonwabile Nkululeko 

There are members of the community who have taken an initiative to assist in keeping our towns clean 
by adopting portions of the land and created mini parks. 
    
b. Level and standards in waste management services 
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The waste generated at Molteno and Sterkstroom is disposed at the local landfill sites situated in close 
proximity to the two towns. There was no apparent waste generated by our rural areas.  As we have 
earlier alluded to the fact that waste is collected at least once a week we can safely say the standard of 
waste management service is high. We have entered into a Service Level Agreement with a local 
service provider to close our cells whenever they are full and in the year under review we have closed 
four cells 

 
c. Annual performance as per key performance indicators in waste management services 
 
 Indicator 

name 
Total number of 
household/customer 
expected to benefit 

Estimated 
backlogs 
(actual 
numbers)  

Target 
set for 
the f. 
year 
under 
review 

Number of 
HH/customer 
reached 

Percentage 
of 
achievement 
during the 
year 

1 
Percentage 
of 
households 
with  access 
to refuse 
removal 
services 

6220 - 6220 6220 100%

 
      d. Major challenges in waste management services and remedial actions 

There are quite a number of challenges that we are faced with as the Municipality. The first one is the 
issue of financial constraints and this can be attributed to the size of the Municipality and the high level 
of unemployment. Staff shortage is another challenge as we sometimes fall short of our targets because 
of this. We lack in landfill equipment and we use trench method. We do not have a way bridge and 
therefore unable to have the exact tons of waste collected.     

 
Overall service delivery backlogs  
 
Basic service delivery area Year 2011/12 Year 2012/13 

 
Required Budgeted Actual Required Budgeted Actual 

Refuse removal  
      

Backlogs to be eliminated 
(n0. HH not receiving the 
minimum standard service) 

- - - - - -

Backlogs to be eliminated 
(%: total HH identified as 
backlog/total numb of HH in 
the municipality 

- - - - - -
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Basic service delivery area Year 2011/12 Year 2012/13 

Spending on new 
infrastructure to eliminate 
backlogs (R000) 

- - - - - -

Spending on renewal of 
existing infrastructure to 
eliminate backlog (R000) 

- - - - - -

Total spending to eliminate 
backlogs (R000) 

- - - - - -

Spending on maintenance to 
ensure no new backlogs 
(R000) 

- - - - - -

Community Development Workers performance monitoring 

The Municipality have two CDWs at its disposal. We have put mechanisms in place to ensure that we 
monitor their performance. They report to the office of the Community Services Manager who in turn report 
to the Municipal Manager and Council. Reports are submitted monthly by the CDWs and are always 
submitted on time. The total number of cases identified and reported in the year under review is     and     of 
these cases were solved while 40% are pending. The number of homes visited by the CDWs during the 
financial year are in most cases related to various government departments like Home Affairs, Social 
Development and Labour. 

The CDWs are fully participating in all Municipal programs and activities. They also assisted in mobilizing 
people to attend such programs through loud hailing and posters. 

 

 

Community and social services function’s performance 

Function: Community and Social Services     

Sub Function: All inclusive     

Reporting Level Detail Total 

        

Overview: The Department of Community Services deals with various 
function which include  waste management, traffic control, 
library services, managing parks and public places 
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Description of the 
Activity: 

The function of provision of various community and social 
services within the municipality is administered as follows 
and includes: 

    

  Leading, directing and taking full responsibility for the 
Community Services Department of the Municipality, 
including the refuse collection function, libraries, halls, 
chalets, preschools, old age homes, clinics, care centers, 
parks, sport fields, cemeteries and traffic function.  

    

  These services extend to include building crèches, 
maintenance of them but do not take account of salaries of 
personnel and other cost which resides within the jurisdiction 
of provincial government. The municipality has a mandate 
to: 

    

  Deliver quality service to all its residents and to create an 
environment that is conducive to economic growth.  

    

  The strategic objectives of this function are to:     

  Manage and control the cleansing function for the entire 
Municipality. 

Manage and control the library function, community halls, 
chalets, preschools, old age homes, clinics and care centers 
for the Municipal area. 

Manage and control parks, sport fields and cemeteries for 
the entire municipal area. 

Prepare, monitor and control the budget for the Community 
Services Dept. so that expenditure is in line with the budget, 
and manage all other administrative matters of the Dept.  

    

  The key issues for 2011/12 are:     

  Opening of the Traffic Testing Station. 

Training of Traffic Officials. 

Completion of Molteno Sport Complex 

Awareness Campaigns 

    

       

       

Analysis of the 
Function: 

Provide statistical information on (as a minimum):     

1 Nature and extent of facilities provided: no of 
facilities: 

no of users: 

   - Library services 2   5015 
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   - Museums and art galleries 2   964 

   - Other community halls/facilities 4 ± 20000 

   - Cemeteries and crematoriums 4     720 

   - Child care (including crèches etc.)          7     442 

   - Aged care (including aged homes, home help) 4             198 

   - Schools 9    5692 

   - Sporting facilities (Molteno Rugby field  ,Masakhe Sport 
complex & Sterkstroom Sport field, Nomonde Soccer 
Ground and Dennekruin Netball Field ) 

5  20000 

   - Parks 7,686sqkm  

  Note: the facilities figure should agree with the assets 
register 

    

2 Number and cost to employer of all personnel associated 
with each community services function: 

  R(000s) 

   - Library services 5 771 

   - Museums and art galleries 1 0 

   - Other community halls/facilities 5 1 441 

   - Cemeteries and crematoriums 23 0 

   - Child care   

   - Aged care   

   - Schools   

   - Sporting facilities 5 0 

   - Parks 22 1 441 

  Note: total number to be calculated on full-time equivalent 
(FTE) basis, total cost to include total salary package 

    

6 Total operating cost of community and social services 
function 
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3.3.1 Waste management function’s performance 

Function: Waste Management 

Reporting Level Detail Total 

        

Overview: Includes refuse removal, solid waste disposal and landfill, 
street cleaning and recycling 

    

        

Description of 
the Activity: 

The refuse collection functions of the municipality are 
administered as follows and include: 

    

  Collection of waste in all our residential households and 
business sites at least once a week. The waste is then taken 
to our permitted land fill sites where waste is sorted and 
unrecyclable waste is disposed in our cells and those cells 
are then covered.   

    

  These services extend to include collecting domestic waste 
as well as garden refuse and rubble, but do not take account 
of medical waste which resides within the jurisdiction of 
provincial government. The municipality has a mandate to: 

    

  Provide for proper and safe disposal of waste within the 
municipality and we must ensure that refuse is removed to 
create clean and healthy environment for all inhabitants. 

    

  The strategic objectives of this function are to:     

  Create a safe and healthy environment     

  The key issues for 2012/13 are:     

  The training of staff in handling waste 

Purchasing of a truck to replace the lost one 

    

        

        

Analysis of the 
Function: 

Provide statistical information on (as a minimum)     

1 Number and cost to employer of all personnel associated 
with refuse removal: 

  R (000s) 

   - Professional (Engineers/Consultants) 0 0 

   - Field (Supervisors/Foremen) 2 0 
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   - Office (Clerical/Administration) 1 0 

   - Non-professional (blue collar, outside workforce) 23      2 089 

   - Temporary   

   - Contract   

  Note: total number to be calculated on full-time equivalent 
(FTE) basis, total cost to include total salary package 

    

2 Number of households receiving regular refuse removal 
services, and frequency and cost of service: 

  R (000s) 

   - Removed by municipality at least once a week 6220 1752 

   - Removed by municipality less often   

   - Communal refuse dump used   

   - Own refuse dump    

   - No rubbish disposal    

  Note: if other intervals of services are available, please 
provide details 

    

3 Total and projected tonnage of all refuse disposed:     

   - Domestic/Commercial N/A N/A 

   - Garden N/A N/A 

  Note: provide total tonnage for current and future years 
activity 

    

4 Total number, capacity and life expectancy of refuse disposal 
sites: 

    

   - Domestic/Commercial (number) 2 15 

   - Garden (number) 2 15 

  Note: provide the number of tip sites, their total current 
capacity and the expected lifespan as at end of reporting 
period 

    

        

Reporting 
Level 

Detail Total 

5 Anticipated expansion of refuse removal service:   R (000s) 

   - Domestic/Commercial 1127  

   - Garden 1127  
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benefit and total additional operating cost per year to the 
municipality 

    

6 Free Basic Service Provision:     

   - Quantity (number of households affected) 2207   

   - Quantum (value to each household) 45   

  Note: Provide details of how many households receive the 
FBS provision, and the average value it means per 
household. Describe in detail the level of Free Basic Services 
provided. 

    

7 Total operating cost of solid waste management function   4077 

 

3.3.2 Traffic Services 

Reporting Level Detail Total 

        

Overview: Includes traffic testing and traffic control      

        

Description of 
the Activity: 

The traffic functions of the municipality are administered as 
follows and include: 

    

  Traffic  Contract Law enforcement 

Registration and licensing of motor 

Traffic and licensing of motor vehicles 

Learners licence testing 

Road markings and signage 

   

    

  These services extend to include functional areas, but do 
not include areas which reside within the jurisdiction of 
provincial government. The municipality has a mandate to: 

    

  Do the registration and licensing of motor vehicles, the 
testing of and issuing of learner and drivers licences in terms 
of Act 93/1996 and regulate parking and traffic within the 
jurisdiction of the Inkwanca Municipality.  

    

  The strategic objectives of this function are to:     
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  Provide a safe traffic environment for both the motoring 
traffic and pedestrian traffic. 

    

  The key issues for 2011/12 are:     

  Opening of the testing station. Not met    

        

        

Analysis of the 
Function: 

Provide statistical information on (as a minimum)     

1 Number and cost to employer of all personnel associated 
with traffic services: 

  R (000s) 

   - Professional (Senior Management) 1  

   - Field (Traffic Officers) 3  

   - Office (Clerical/Administration) 1  

   - Non-professional (visible police on the street ) 0  

   - Temporary 0  

   - Contract 0  

  Note: total number to be calculated on full-time equivalent 
(FTE) basis, total cost to include total salary package 

    

2 Number of call outs attended:    

   - Emergency call- outs   

   - Standard call-outs   

       

       

       

  Note: provide total number registered     

3 Average response time to call-outs:     

   - Emergency call-outs 10  

   - Standard call-outs 5  

  Note: provide average by dividing total response time by 
number of call-outs 

    

4 Total number of targeted violations e.g.: traffic offences:     

   -Parking offences    
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-Speeding 

-Stop sign 

-Un-roadworthy vehicles 

-Driving licences 

- Other offences 

      

  Note: list details, including the number of offences recorded.     

        

Reporting Level Detail Total 

5 Total number and type of emergencies leading to loss of life 
: 

   

    0  

      

  Note: list details including the number and type of 
emergencies recorded. 

    

6 Total operating cost of traffic services   918 

Performance against KPA’s 

IDP Objective 
Key performance 

indicator 

 

Area 
Target  

Actual 
performance 

1. Manage and 
control the 
cleansing function 
of the entire 
municipal area. 

A) Undertake the 
refuse collection and 
disposal function. 

Inkwanca 
Municipal Area 

Ongoing Achieved 

2. Manage and 
control the library 
function, 
community halls, 
chalets, 
preschools, old age 
homes, clinics and 
care centers etc. 
for the Municipal 
area. 

b) Provision of 
library services. 

b) Control of 
community halls and 
chalets. 

c) Control of 
preschools, old age 
homes, clinics, care 
centers and 

Inkwanca 
Municipal Area 

Ongoing Achieved 
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Municipal buildings. 

3. Manage and 
control the Traffic 
function for the 
entire area. 

  

   

Inkwanca 
Municipal Area 

Ongoing  Achieved 

4.   Manage and 
control the parks, 
sport fields and 
cemeteries for the 
entire municipal 
area. 

Control and 
maintenance of 
cemeteries. 
Provision and 
maintenance of 
sports and 
recreation facilities. 
Beautification of 
parks and open 
spaces and 
maintenance of 
pavements.   

 

Inkwanca 
Municipal Area 

Fortnightly and 
Monthly 

Achieved 

5. Prepare, monitor 
and control the 
budget for the 
Community 
Services 
Department so that 
expenditure is in 
line with the 
budget, and 
manage all other 
administrative 
matters of the Dept. 

a) Prepare and 
submit departmental 
budget for 
2012/2013 to CFO. 
b) Monitor and 
control budget.  

c) Ensure that staff 
costs are not 
overspent. 

d) All community 
services reports to 
be submitted to 
Council Committees 
through MM. 

Inkwanca  
Municipal Area 

Ongoing Achieved 

 e) Attendance at all 
meetings on time. 

 

 

Ongoing 

 Achieved 
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The municipality has made a rotation plan to ensure that, refuse collection is taken seriously. The refuse 
doesn’t wait for more than seven days to be collected, because after seven days it becomes dangerous to 
human beings. Refuse collection schedule is in place to accelerate in speed in terms of refuse collection.  
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3.4 ROADS AND WASTE WATER (STORMWATER DRAINAGE) 

 

INTRODUCTION TO ROADS AND STORMWATER DRAINAGE 

The municipality is in a the process of dealing with roads and storm water drainage, as we have tried but we 
can confirm that, the level of service which relates to roads and storm water drainage is moving very slow, 
due to the fact that the municipality doesn’t have adequate financial resources to address this matter. 
However we have prioritised roads and storm water drainage in terms of our IDP priorities.         
                                                               
                                                                                                                         

Sterkstroom is a very difficult town to maintain or rehabilitate, the streets are narrow and a plan needs to be 
developed to address this. 

It is unfortunate that our municipality is lacking resources to maintain these roads as we don’t even have 
any roads maintenance machinery, ending us up at having to out-source these service at very high costs. 
As a ‘low revenue-based’ Municipality we depend on capital grants to construct proper roads but the 
challenge is that after these capital projects are complete, we are unable to maintain from our own 
operational budget.  

Our stormwater system is not effective, as a result our roads are not sustanable due to this fact. We have 
unblocked over the past year more 10 000 m of block stormwater channels. 

  T3.4.1 

 

Gravel Road Infrastructure 
        Kilometers

  

Total gravel 
roads 

New gravel roads 
constructed 

Gravel roads 
upgraded to tar 

Gravel roads 
graded/maintained 

Year 2011 1,100 8km 3km 18

Year 2012 1,100 12km 3km 0

Year 2013 1,100 12km 0km 0

        T 3.4.2

 

 

Tarred Road Infrastructure 
Kilometers
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Total tarred 
roads 

New tar 
roads 

Existing tar 
roads re-

tarred 

Existing tar 
roads re-
sheeted 

Tar roads maintained 

Year 2011 6km 3km 0 0 18km
Year  
2012 9km 3km 0 0 3km
Year  
2013 9km 3km 0 8km 18.4km
          T 3.4.3
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3.5 LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT (INCLUDING TOURISM AND MARKET PLACES) 

3.5.1 LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Background 

The sector contribution of each individual producer, industry or sector to the economy is measured through 
Gross Value Added (GVA). The total GVA for Inkwanca is R286420 (based on 2004 figures).  This is a 5% 
contribution to the District Economy and 0.3% to the Provincial Economy. The areas low contribution to the 
overall District and National economic highlights the fact that this area is not an economic growth point. 

The Agricultural sector is the greatest contributor to Inkwanca's GVA (31.8%).  This is followed by Retail 

(21.6 %) and Community and Government Services (18.3%). Currently Mining contributes very little to the 

Municipal GVA but there are opportunities for this sector to expand. 

Sector Contribution to GVA - Inkwanca LM  

 

 

Source: SDF 2012 
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Projects identified to meet this potential: 

The Chris Hani REDS strategy identified the following sectors as having the greatest comparative 
advantage in the Municipality  

• Mining 

• Livestock Production and Processing 

 Perceived economic opportunities (Chris Hani REDS strategy - Corridors)   

Town  Agricultural, 

agro-processing  

and forestry 

Manufacturing, 

construction and 

mining 

Tourism and 

hospitality 

Service, retail 

and logistics 

Molteno Forestry 

plantations, 

partridge hunting, 

clay brick making, 

manufacture of 

good quality clay 

bricks, coal 

Tourist attraction 

battle fields, 

develop Molteno 

dam (picnic sites), 
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Town  Agricultural, 

agro-processing  

and forestry 

Manufacturing, 

construction and 

mining 

Tourism and 

hospitality 

Service, retail 

and logistics 

mining high 

quality clay for 

arts and crafts 

and crockery 

spa-paradise 

(tourism) 

Sterkstroom tannery for hides, 

wind farming, , 

sheep , cattle, 

poultry and pigs, 

organic 

agricultural 

product meat, , 

wool processing 

plant, fresh 

market 

recycling waste  

red ochre mining 

Hunting tourism 

catering rock art 

tourism 

filling station 

Agriculture  

LIVESTOCK 

Inkwanca has approximately 1.67% of the Chris Hani District’s cattle, 0.08% of its goats and 3.69% of its 
sheep. The two commodities identified as having potential in Inkwanca are 

• Beef Cattle 

• Dohne-Merino 

THE PRODUCTION OF LIVESTOCK IS MAINLY BECAUSE OF THE GOOD GRAZING 
POTENTIAL IN THE AREA, WITH OVER 60% OF THE MUNICIPALITY HAVING A 
CARRYING CAPACITY OF 9 HECTARES OR LESS PER LIVESTOCK. HOWEVER, THERE 
IS LITTLE FOOD CROP PRODUCTION AS A RESULT OF ARID NATURE OF THE 
ENVIRONMENT. 

 

LIMITATIONS 

WATER 

Water is probably the most limiting factor for agriculture in the region, especially for vegetable and crop 
production, but also successful livestock farming is dependent on a reliable, constant and sustainable water 
access.  

MARKET ACCESS 
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Before any production is started, a sustainable long-term market access has to be secured 

TRANSPORT AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

Linked to the problem of market access is the problem of lack of transport. Transport is a major problem in 
the area. This includes of course market access, but also the access to get inputs into the project, like seeds 
and fertilizer 

MINING  

 For the past decade the municipality has been struggling to extract value out of the coal deposits 
discovered in its jurisdictional area. Coal mining remains an untapped potential in the area and can 
contribute immensely to employment creation if it can be properly mined and beneficiated.  These coal 
deposits are located in the central area of the Municipality. 

COAL MINING 

The Elitheni Coal Company has mining prospecting rights to a large area of Inkwanca (See map below).  
The company estimates that there is over 1 billion tons of coal available in its mining and prospecting areas. 
Unlocking of the Mining Industry will create spinoffs in subsidiary industries  

METHANE GAS 

Badimo Gas (Pty) Ltd has made an application for an exploration right for coal bed methane near Molteno 
(See map below).   
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Tourism 

Inkwanca's tourism vision is: - "To make Inkwanca area a sustainable eco-tourism, cultural (including rock 
art) and adventure tourism destination.” 

TOURISM ATTRACTIONS AND FACILITIES 

Tourism facilities and attractions in the area are limited as this is not a traditional tourism area.  The biggest 

draw card to the area is hunting; fly fishing and the rock art.  The potential of adventure and eco-tourism has 

not been fully exploited. There are current only 9 accommodation facilities. Inkwanca requires linkages, 

packaging of products, as well as the development of theme routes. We have all the assets to become a 

major destination for adventure tourism as identified in the District and Provincial Tourism Framework. 
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Accommodation Facilities in Inkwanca LM 

 

Type No.  Beds 

Bed & Breakfast 5 45 

Hotels 2 21 

Self-Catering 2 8 

Total 9 74 

Source: Chris Hani DM Tourism Plan, 2009 

 

Potential Tourism Attractions in Inkwanca LM 

Heritage/ History  Tourism 

Molteno Museum Vegkoppies 

Sterkstroom Museum Clock Tower - Molteno 

Molteno Watermill Johannes Meintjies Art Gallery 

Archaeological Sites Stormberg Certified Organic Farms 

Nature-Based Tourism 

Koos Ras Nature Reserve Carnavon Estate - Hunting 

Black Eagle Nature Reserve Rooipoort -Hunting 

Nature Heritage Site on the farm Carnavon Branston Lodge - Hunting 
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Brosterlea Farm -Hunting John Broster Farm - Hunting 

Laetitia Mountain Lodge Safaris - Hunting   

Source: Chris Hani DM Tourism Plan, 2009 

LED Projects by both Inkwanca Municipality and other Stakeholders 

Name of Project Location Funder MTEF Estimates 
2012/12               2013/14               2014/15 

Construction of a 
Game Reserve 

Sterkstroom Inkwanca 
Municipality 

R 300 000 00 R 300 000 00 R 300 000 00 

Agriculture, 
Development 

Sterkstroom & 
Molteno 

Agric, CHDM, 
Uvimba 
Finance, 
DBSA  
 

R2 500 000.00 - - 

SMME 
Development 

Sterkstroom & 
Molteno 

SEDA, ECDC, 
DEDEA, 
CHDM  
 

R1 500 000.00 - - 

Tourism 
Development 

Sterkstroom & 
Molteno 

DSRAC, 
CHDM, 
ECtourism 

R2 700 000 - - 

Ekuphumuleni 
service Centre 

Molteno Dept. Soc. 
Development 

R11 500.00 R11 500.00 R11 500.00 

Sterkstroom 
Service Centre 

Sterkstroom  
Dept. Soc. 
Development 

R   

Masithobelane 
Sizama 

Molteno Dept. Soc. 
Development 

R   

Molteno 
Community 
Garden 

Molteno Dept. Soc. 
Development 

R750 000.00   

Home Based Care 
Centre 

Molteno & 
Sterkstroom 

Dept. Soc. 
Development 

R269.298.00 R269.298.00 R269.298.00 

Siyokhana Project Molteno Dept. Soc. 
Development 

R750 000.00 _ _ 

Ucoceko Dry clean 
& laundry project 

Molteno Dept. Soc. 
Development 

R500 000.00 _ _ 

Masakhe Herbs 
Project 

Sterkstroom Dept. Soc. 
Development 

R500 000 _ _ 

Siphesihle bakery 
Project 

Sterkstroom Dept. Soc. 
Development 

R500 000.00   

 

Challenges facing the LED Unit 

 Lack of funding (Internal resources to fund the development of sector specific plans) 

 Poor bulk infrastructure to attract investors to invest in mega projects 

 Lack of participation/cooperation of Tourism Product Owners in Tourism Forums 
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 Lack of infrastructure such as irrigation, fencing, tractors, electricity and roads. 

 Lack of institutional capacity (human capital) 

 

3.5.2 PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

The objective is to ensure the creation of a favorable environment for economic development to take place 

and also ensure that the municipality is managed strategically through its Integrated Development Plan. The 

Key Performance Area (KPA) of the unit includes, Town Planning, Integrated Development Plan, Local 

Economic Development (LED), Tourism, Poverty Alleviation, and Enterprise Development. 

3.5.3   SPATIAL PLANNING 

a) Preparation and approval process of Spatial Development Framework (SDF): 

A spatial Development Framework was developed and approved in 2007. However, it was reviewed in May 

2012. 

 b) Land use management: 

• Rezoning, (Nil) 

• Sub-division, (Nil) 

• Consent use, (Nil) 

• Removal of restrictive conditions (Nil) 

• Township establishments (Nil) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.6 HOUSING DELIVERY  
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3.6.1 DELIVERED HOUSING PROJECTS 

Housing and town planning 

The Directorate for Land and Housing is responsible for managing Housing within Inkwanca Municipality.   

There are posts for a senior land and housing officer as well as a housing officer and administrative support. 

The major functions fulfilled by the municipality are in beneficiary identification, project applications and 

some level of financial control and management.  The municipality is very dependent upon the provincial 

Dept. of Human Settlement and external technical consultants for the delivery of prioritized housing. 

Inkwanca Municipality also acts as a coordinator and ensures that the following are done: 

 Avail land for future housing development 

 Prepare & submit a verified beneficiary list to Dept. Of Housing 

 Provide awareness on housing beneficiation to communities 

 Monitor the quality of houses built 

Role-players in Housing delivery: 

• Dept. of Human Settlement; Dept. of Land Affairs; Chris Hani District Municipality; Inkwanca Local 

Municipality; Developers 

Annual performance as per key performance indicators in housing and town planning services: 

The following is the latest data received from the Department 

Project Name Project Units Project Type Project Status Comment 

MOLTENO - NOMONDE 412 Project Linked Completed Rectification not 
started 

MOLTENO - PHASE 2 800 Project Linked Completed Rectification not 
started 

Molteno Phase 2 - R/L 2 116 Project Linked PHP Completed Rectification not 
started 

Molteno - Dennekruin 97 Project Linked PHP Completed Rectification not 
started 

STERKSTROOM 493 Project Linked Completed  
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Sterkstroom Phase 2 - R/L 2 721 Project Linked PHP Completed  

Total 2639       

 

3.6.2 CURRENT HOUSING PROJECTS  

 

Project Name Project 
Units 

Project Type Project 
Status 

Comment 

Molteno 
Nomonde 136 

136 IRDP Phased Approach 
Top Structure 

Unblocking In progress 

Molteno Airstrip 
1127 

500 IRDP Phased Approach 
Top Structure 

Unblocking In progress 

Total 636       

 

3.6.3 PROPOSED PROJECTS 

 

Project Name Project 
Units 

Project Type Project Status 

Molteno Airstrip 1127 1127 IRDP Phased Approach Top 
Structure 

Planning 

Sterkstroom 164 164 IRDP Phased Approach 
Planning & Services 

Planning 

Sterkstroom 1214 1214 Rectification Planning 

Molteno 907 907 Rectification Planning 
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Total 3412     

 Challenges in housing and town planning services 

 Housing applications take too long to be approved by the Department of Human Settlement and this leads 

to communities invading land reserved for Housing purposes. In addition, housing projects do not come with 

bulk infrastructure and therefore the Municipality has to commit its scare MIG allocation in providing all the 

services needed for housing projects to be approved. 



 

74 

Inkwanca Municipality |Annual Report 2012/13   

 

CHAPTER 4 – ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE  
(PERFORMANCE REPORT PART II) 

 

 

INTRODUCTIOIN 

 
The Corporate Services Department derives its mandate from the council’s key development objectives, that 
is, the institutional development. The primary function of this department, is therefore among others to 
facilitate institutional development, including staffing and staff development. 
 
Our commitment as an internal service provider and facilitator is to ensure the municipality is strategically 
positioned and resources to meet and maximize on client needs, the various publics. 
It is important to mention herein that to date our greatest challenge remains, staff retention. 

Due to the size of our budget, we have found ourselves in an untenable position, where we struggle to firstly 
entice skilled personnel and retain staff. As a consequence our staff development programme has been 
greatly compromised, in that even though we have invested time and resources in developing skills and 
competencies in key functional areas, these are not retained within the municipality. 
 

T 4.0.1 

 

COMPONENT A: INTRODUCTION TO THE MUNICIPAL PERSONNEL 

 

4.1 EMPLOYEE TOTALS, TURNOVER AND VACANCIES 
 

Employees 

Description 
Year 2012 Year 2013 

Employees 
Approved 

Posts 
Employees Vacancies Vacancies 

  No. No. No. No. % 

Water 26 25 26 0 0%

Waste Water (Sanitation) 8 6 8 0 0%

Electricity 11 11 11 0 0%

Waste Management 31 31 31 0 0%

Housing 3 3 3 0 0%
Waste Water (Storm water 

Drainage) 11 11 11 0 0%

Roads 12 12 12 0 0%

Local Economic Development 6 6 6 0 0%
Totals 108 105 108  1 
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Headings follow the order of services as set out in chapter 3. Service totals should equate to 
those included in the Chapter 3 employee schedules. Employee and Approved Posts numbers 
are as at 30 June, as per the approved organogram. 

T 4.1.1
 
 

Vacancy Rate: Year 2013 
Designations *Total Approved 

Posts 
*Vacancies         

(Total time that 
vacancies exist 
using fulltime 
equivalents) 

*Vacancies 
(as a 

proportion 
of total 
posts in 

each 
category) 

  No. No. % 

Municipal Manager  1 0 0%

CFO 1 0 0%

Other S57 Managers (excluding Finance Posts) 4 2 2%

Other S57 Managers (Finance posts) 0 0 0%
Senior management: Levels 13-15 (Finance posts) 0 0 0%
Highly skilled supervision: levels 9-12 (excluding 
Finance posts) 14 0 0%
Highly skilled supervision: levels 9-12  (Finance 
posts) 3 0 0%

Total 23 2 2%
Note: *For posts which are established and funded in the approved budget or adjustments 
budget (where changes in employee provision have been made). Full-time equivalents are 
calculated by taking the total number of working days lost (excluding weekends and public 
holidays) while a post remains vacant and adding together all such days lost by all posts within 
the same set (e.g. ‘senior management’) then dividing that total by 250 to give the number of 
posts equivalent to the accumulated days. T 4.1.2
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Turn-over Rate 

Details 

Total Appointments as 
of beginning of 
Financial Year 

Terminations during 
the Financial Year 

Turn-over Rate* 

No. No. 

Year 2011 50 5 10%

Year 2012 50 2 1%

Year 2013 50 2 1%
* Divide the number of employees who have left the organization 
within a year, by total number of employees who occupied posts at 
the beginning of the year T 4.1.3

 
 
 
  



 

77 

Inkwanca Municipality |Annual Report 2012/13   

COMPONENT B: MANAGING THE MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE 

MSA 2000 S67 requires municipalities to develop and adopt appropriate systems and procedures to ensure 
fair; efficient; effective; and transparent personnel administration in accordance with the Employment Equity 
Act 1998. 
 

4.2 POLICIES 

HR Policies and Plans 

  

Name of Policy Completed  
Reviewed 

Date adopted by council or 
comment on failure to 

adopt 

    %  % 
1 Affirmative Action   27-Mar-12 
2 Attraction and Retention   27-Mar-12 
3 Code of Conduct for employees   27-Mar-12 
4 Delegations, Authorization & 

Responsibility 
27-Mar-12 

5 Disciplinary Code and Procedures   27-Mar-12 
6 Essential Services   27-Mar-12 
7 Employee Assistance / Wellness 27-Mar-12 
8 Employment Equity 27-Mar-12 
9 Exit Management   27-Mar-12 
10 Grievance Procedures   27-Mar-12 
11 HIV/Aids   27-Mar-12 
12 Human Resource and Development 27-Mar-12 
13 Information Technology 27-Mar-12 
14 Job Evaluation   27-Mar-12 
15 Leave 27-Mar-12 
16 Occupational Health and Safety 27-Mar-12 
17 Official Housing   27-Mar-12 
18 Official Journeys   27-Mar-12 
19 Official transport to attend Funerals   27-Mar-12 
20 Official Working Hours and Overtime 27-Mar-12 
21 Organizational Rights   27-Mar-12 
22 Payroll Deductions   27-Mar-12 
23 Performance Management and 

Development 
  27-Mar-12 

24 Recruitment, Selection and 
Appointments 

27-Mar-12 

25 Remuneration Scales and 
Allowances 

  27-Mar-12 

26 Resettlement   27-Mar-12 
27 Sexual Harassment   27-Mar-12 
28 Skills Development 27-Mar-12 
29 Smoking   27-Mar-12 
30 Special Skills   27-Mar-12 
31 Work Organization   27-Mar-12 
32 Uniforms and Protective Clothing   27-Mar-12 
33 Other:     
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HR Policies and Plans 

  

Name of Policy Completed  
Reviewed 

Date adopted by council or 
comment on failure to 

adopt 

    %  % 
Use name of local policies if different from above and at any other HR 
policies not listed. T 4.2.1

COMPONENT C: MANAGING THE MUNICIPAL WORKFORCE 

INTRODUCTION TO WORKFORCE CAPACITY DEVELOPMENT 
Note: MSA 2000 S68 (1) requires municipalities to develop their human resource capacity to a level that 
enables them to perform their functions and exercise their powers in an economical, effective, efficient and 
accountable way. 
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4.3 SKILLS DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING 

Skills Matrix 
Management 

level 
Gender Employees 

in post as 
at 30 June 
Year 2013 

Number of skilled employees required and actual as at 30 June Year 2012 

Learnerships Skills programs & other 
short courses 

Other forms of training Total 

No. 

Actual: 
End of 
Year 
2012 

Actual: 
End of 
Year 
2013 

Year 
2013 

Target 

Actual: 
End of 
Year 
2012 

Actual: 
End of 
Year 
2013 

Year 
2013 

Target 

Actual: 
End of 
Year 
2012 

Actual: 
End of 
Year 
2013 

Year 
2013 

Target 

Actual: 
End of 
Year 
2012 

Actual: 
End of 
Year 
2013 

Year 
2013 

Target 

MM and s57 Female 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 2 2 2 
Male 5 4 4 4 4 4 4 1 1 1 9 9 9 

Councilors, 
senior officials 
and managers 

Female 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 3 3 3 5 5 5 

Male 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 4 4 4 6 6 6 
Technicians 
and associate 
professionals* 

Female 5 4 4 4 4 4 4 2 2 2 10 10 10 

Male 6 3 3 3 3 3 3 8 8 8 14 14 14 
Professionals Female   2 2 2 2 2 2 6 6 6 10 10 10 

Male 5 4 4 4 4 4 4 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Sub total Female 9 8 8 8 8 8 8 11 11 11 27 27 27 

Male 19 12 12 12 12 12 12 15 15 15 31 31 31 
Total   56 40 40 40 40 40 40 52 52 52 116 116 116 
*Registered with professional Associate Body e.g. CA (SA) T  
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 ‘Together Advancing in Development’  

 

 

CHAPTER 5 – FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 
Chapter 5 contains information regarding financial performance and highlights specific accomplishments. 
The chapter comprises of three components: 
• Component A: Statement of Financial Performance 
• Component B: Spending Against Capital Budget 
• Component C: Other Financial Matters 
 

                              
 
                                                                                                                               

T 5.0.1                            

 

COMPONENT A: STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

 
 

INTRODUCTION TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

                                
T 5.1.0 
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K J Jonga Councilors 

N Yaliwe Councilors 

N N Cwebi Councilors 

G X Mkhubukeli-Lufele Councilors 

C H Guba Councilors 

C M Botha Councilors 

MUNICIPAL MANAGER  

S.G. SIGOJO   

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

L. LABUSCHAGNE   

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND GRADING OF LOCAL AUTHORITY 

• Inkwanca Municipality is a Grade 2 Local Authority   

• Inkwanca Municipality is a local municipality performing the functions as set out in the 
Constitution. (Act No 105 of 1996) 

• South African Category B Municipality (Local Municipality) as defined by the Municipal 
Structures Act. (Act No 117 of 1998) 

AUDITORS 

Auditor-General  - East London   

BANKERS 

Standard Bank   

P. O. Box 14 
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Index             Page  

    

GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

  

    

Registered Office: Molteno 

    

Jurisdiction: Inkwanca Municipality includes Molteno and Sterkstroom 

    

Physical address: 39 Smith Street 

  Molteno 

  5500 

   

    

    

    

Postal address: P.O. Box 1 

  Molteno 

  5500 

   

    

    

Telephone number: 045 - 967 0021 

    

Fax number: 045 - 967 0467 

    

E-mail address: louisal@gmail.com 

Approval of annual financial statements 

 

I am responsible for the preparation of these annual financial statements, which are set out on 
pages 6 to 66, in terms of Section 126(1) of the Municipal Finance Management Act and which I 
have signed on behalf of the Municipality. 

 
I certify that the salaries, allowances and benefits of Councilors, loans made to Councilors, if 
any, and payments made to Councilors for loss of office, if any, as disclosed in note 22 of these 
annual financial statements are within the upper limits of the framework envisaged in Section 
219 of the Constitution, read with the Remuneration of Public Officer Bearers Act and the 
Minister of Provincial and Local Government’s determination in accordance with this Act. 

 

 

______________________ 

Municipal Manager:   

29 August  2013 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  

 

  Restated 

          Note 2013   2012   

            R   R   

ASSETS                   

Current assets           

Cash and cash equivalents     1.5 226,775 63,327   

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 2 668,049 2,163,800   

Trade and other receivables from  non-exchange transactions 3.1 2,364,724 1,453,900   

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 3.2 8,808 112,597   

Inventories       4 165,778 731,673   

VAT receivable       5 613,184 3,308,218   

              

Non-current assets           

Property, plant and equipment     6 163,197,880 160,368,106   

Investment property carried at cost   7 314,500 314,500   

              

Total assets         167,559,698 168,516,122   

              

LIABILITIES           

Current liabilities           

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 8 17,943,470 18,830,109   

Consumer deposits       9 192,216 161,852   

Current provisions       10 462,426 461,049   

Current portion of unspent conditional grants and receipts 11 147,512 5,803,801   

Current portion of finance lease liability   13 70,797 70,569   
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Non-current liabilities         

Non-current finance lease liability   13 232,660 318,616   

              

Total liabilities         19,049,081 25,645,997   

              

Net assets         148,510,617 142,870,125   

              

NET ASSETS           

Accumulated surplus / (deficit)       148,510,617 142,870,125   

              

Total net assets           

            148,510,617 142,870,125   
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

  Restated 

          Note 2013   2012   

Revenue             

 Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions              

Property rates       14 4,881,197 2,819,427   

Fines           51,308 55,637   

Government grants and subsidies   19 40,119,327 32,094,602   

 Revenue from Exchange Transactions              

Service charges       15 13,698,211 15,897,649   

Rental of facilities and equipment   16 121,217 105,524   

Interest earned - external investments   17 46,271 51   

Interest earned - outstanding receivables   18 2,343,665 3,884,081   

Other income       20 3,398,213 2,778,490   

Total revenue         64,659,410 57,635,462   

Expenses           

Employee related costs     21 19,008,505 17,929,830   

Remuneration of councilors     22 1,872,447 1,858,550   

Bad debts impairment       7,612,196 12,552,413   

Depreciation and amortisation expense   23 9,977,809 10,298,868   

Repairs and maintenance       3,311,157 (121,272)   

Finance costs       24 245,283 169,206   

Bulk purchases       25 4,403,299 5,927,207   

Contracted services       26 51,171   

General expenses       28 10,391,770 17,219,680   

Total expenses         57,254,181 65,834,481   

Surplus / (deficit) for the period   7,405,229 (8,199,019)   
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

            

            
Accumulated 

Surplus/(Deficit) 
Total: Net 

Assets 

          Note  R   R  

                

Balance as previously reported                   133,360,996          133,360,996 

Capitalization of assets                (4,360,297)           (4,360,297)  

Reversal of agency transactions-CHDM                7,346,858             7,346,858  

Surplus / (deficit) for the period              (17,662,858)         (17,662,858)  

Correction of prior period error                     276,492                276,492  

Restated Balance at 30 June 2011               118,961,191          118,961,191 

Prior period Adjustments     38          (2,483,703)           (2,483,703)  

Correction of capitalization of assets     38          34,591,653           34,591,653  

Surplus / (deficit) for the period                (8,199,019)           (8,199,019)  

                

Balance at 30 June 2012 Restated               142,870,122          142,870,122 

Surplus / (deficit) for the period                  7,405,229             7,405,229  

Correction of prior period (over-billing of water debtors) 38          (2,064,737)           (2,064,737)  

Unspent conditional grants that should have been surrendered 38               300,000                300,000  

Balance at 30 June 2013               148,510,614          148,510,614 

                

                

                

                



INKWANCA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY  ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS  FOR  THE  YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013 

 

 

 

 

90 

Inkwanca Municipality |Annual Report 2012/13   

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

          Note 2013   2012   

            R   R   

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES           

Receipts           50,345,267            45,175,169   

Sales of goods and services     9,517,766              6,368,376   

Grants         34,763,08            31,530,384   

Interest received        2,389,936              3,884,137   

Other receipts       3,674,527              3,392,273   

 

Payments                       (37,289,885)           (35,935,096)   

Employee costs       (20,880,952)          (21,218,449)   

Suppliers         (16,163,650)          (14,547,441)   

Interest paid       (245,283)               (169,206)   

                    

CASH GENERATED BY OPERATIONS   29               13,055,382               9,240,073   

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES           

Purchase of fixed assets       (12,806,206)            (8,420,972)   

Net cash flows from investing activities                 (12,806,206)             (8,420,972)   

                    

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES           

Increase / (Decrease) borrowings and finance lease liability   (85,728)            (1,833,157)   

                    

Net cash flows from financing activities     (85,728)            (1,833,157)   

                    

Net increase / (decrease) in net cash and cash equivalents                   163,448             (1,014,055)   

Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year                       63,327               1,077,382   

Net cash and cash equivalents at end of year         30                   226,775                    63,327   
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1. PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognized 
Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting 
Standards Board. 
 

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance 
with historical cost convention unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand. 

 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied, are disclosed 

below. These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period. 

1.1 SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 
UNCERTAINTY  

 

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available 
information and the application of judgment is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future 
could differ from these estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgments 
include: 

 

TRADE RECEIVABLES / HELD TO MATURITY INVESTMENTS AND/OR LOANS 
AND RECEIVABLES 
 

The municipality assesses its trade receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining 
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, management makes judgments as to 
whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a 
financial asset. 

 

ALLOWANCE FOR SLOW MOVING, DAMAGED AND OBSOLETE STOCK 
 

An allowance to write stock down to the lower of cost or net realizable value. Management have made estimates 
of the selling price and direct cost to sell on certain inventory items. 
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FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION  
 

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading and available-for-sale securities) 
is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for 
financial assets held by the municipality is the current bid price. 
 

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their 
fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future 
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the municipality for similar financial 
instruments. 

 

IMPAIRMENT TESTING 
 

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the 
higher of value- in-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates 
and assumptions. 
 

The municipality reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances 
suggest that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which 
identifiable cash flows are largely     independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications 
that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets. 
Expected future cash flows used to determine the value in use of tangible assets are inherently uncertain and could 
materially change over time. They are significantly affected by a number of factors i.e. production estimates, 
supply demand, together with economic factors such as exchange rates, inflation, interest. 

 

PROVISIONS 

 
Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional 
disclosure of these estimates of provisions are included in note 10 - Provisions. 

 

USEFUL LIVES OF INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK AND OTHER ASSETS  

The municipality's management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for the 
infrastructure networks. This estimate is based on industry norm. Management will increase the depreciation charge 
where useful lives are less than previously estimated useful lives. 
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POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS  
 

The present value of the post retirement obligation depends on a number of factors that are determined on an 
actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) 
include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact on the carrying amount of post retirement 
obligations. 
 

The municipality determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that 
should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle 
the pension obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the municipality considers the interest rates of 
high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have 
terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension liability. 
 

EFFECTIVE INTEREST RATE 
 

The municipality used the prime interest rate to discount future cash 
flows. 
 

ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS  
 

Impairment loss is recognized in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that debtors are impaired. The 
impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows computed at initial recognition. 

 

1.2 INVESTMENT PROPERTY  
 

Investment property is property (land or a building - or part of a building - or both) held to earn rentals or for capital 
appreciation or both, rather than for: 

• use in the production or supply of goods or services or 
for administrative purposes, or 

• sale in the ordinary course of operations. 
Owner-occupied property is property held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for 
administrative   purposes. 
 

 

Investment property is recognized as an asset when, it is probable that the future economic benefits or service 
potential that  are associated with the investment property will flow to the municipality, and the cost or fair value of 
the investment property can be measured reliable. 

 

Investment property is initially recognized at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement. 
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Where investment property is acquired at no cost or for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at the date of 
acquisition. Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or 
service a property. If a replacement part is recognized in the carrying amount of the investment property, the 
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. 
 
Subsequent to initial measurement investment property is measured at fair value. The fair value of investment 
property reflects market conditions at the reporting date. 
A gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is included in net surplus or deficit for the period in which it arises. 
 
If the municipality determines that the fair value of an investment property under construction is not reliably 
determinable but expects the fair value of the property to be reliably measurable when construction is complete, it 
measures that investment property under construction at cost until either its fair value becomes reliably 
determinable or construction is completed (whichever is earlier). If the municipality determines that the fair 
value of an investment property (other than an investment property under construction) is not reliably 
determinable on a continuing basis, the municipality measure that investment property using the cost model (as 
per the accounting policy on Property, plant and equipment). The residual value of the investment property is then 
assumed to be zero. The municipality applies the cost model (as per the accounting policy on Property, plant and 
equipment) until disposal of the investment property. 
 

Once the municipality becomes able to measure reliably the fair value of an investment property under 
construction that has previously been measured at cost, it measures that property at its fair value. Once 
construction of that property is complete, it is presumed that fair value can be measured reliable. If this is not the 
case, the property is accounted for using the cost model in accordance with the accounting policy on Property, plant 
and equipment. 

 

1.2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  
 

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for 
use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are 
expected to be used during more than one period. 

 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an 
asset when: 

• it  is  probable  that  future  economic  benefits  or  service  potential  associated  with  the  item  
will  flow  to  the municipality; and 

• the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
 

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the 
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. 

 

Where an asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition. 
 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary 
assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair 
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value (the cost). If the acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of 
the asset(s) given up. When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different 
useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and 
costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognized in the 
carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognized. 

 

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is 
located is also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the municipality is obligated to incur 
such expenditure, and where the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other 
than the production of inventories. 
 

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in 
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

 

1.3   PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 

Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than one period are included 
in property, plant and equipment. In addition, spare parts and stand by equipment which can only be used in 
connection with an item of property, plant and equipment are accounted for as property, plant and equipment. 
 

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and 
which meet the recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and 
equipment. Any remaining inspection costs from the previous inspection are de-recognized. 
 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses except 
for land and buildings which is carried at revalued amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. 
 

Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that 
which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period. 
 

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the 
revaluation is restated proportionately with the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying 
amount of the asset after revaluation equals its revalued amount. 
 

Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a revaluation 
surplus. The increase is recognized in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of 
the same asset previously recognized in surplus or deficit. 
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Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognized in surplus or deficit in the 
current period. The decrease is debited directly to a revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in 
the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. 
 

The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly 
to retained earnings when the asset is derecognised. 

 
The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly 
to retained earnings as the asset is used. The amount transferred is equal to the difference between depreciation 
based on the revalued carrying amount and depreciation based on the original cost of the asset. 
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their 
estimated residual value  
 
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as 
follows: 
 
 

ITEM                                                                                                         
AVERAGE USEFUL LIFE (YEARS)  
Land-landfill sites       50 
Buildings  30 
Plant and machinery                                                                       3 to 30 
Motor vehicles                                                                                 4 to 15 
Office equipment                                                                             5 to10 
Furniture and Fittings                                                                     5 to15 
Electricity                                                                                        10 to 60 
Community 

• Buildings 30 
• Recreation                                                                                20 to 30 

Other properties                                                                               5 to 50 
Leased assets                                                                                  5 
Roads                                                                                               5 to 100 
Wastewater network                                                                        5 to 80 
 
The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting date. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in 
accounting estimate. 
 

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the municipality to amend the previous 
estimate unless expectations differ from the previous estimate. 
 

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of 
the item is depreciated separately. 
 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognized in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying 
amount of another asset. 
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Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no 
further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. 
 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or 
deficit when the item is derecognized. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying 
amount of the item. 

 

1.3 SITE RESTORATION AND DISMANTLING COST 
 

The municipality has an obligation to dismantle, remove and restore items of property, plant and equipment. 
Such obligations are referred to as ‘decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities’. The cost of an item of 
property, plant and equipment includes the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and 
restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation for which a municipality incurs either when the item is 
acquired or as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for purposes other than to 
produce inventories during that period. 

 

If the related asset is measured using the cost 
model; 

• subject to (b), changes in the liability are added to, or deducted from, the cost of the related asset in 
the current period; 

• if a decrease in the liability exceeds the carrying amount of the asset, the excess is recognized 
immediately in surplus or deficit: and 

• if the adjustment results in an addition to the cost of an asset, the municipality considers whether 
this is an indication that the new carrying amount of the asset may not be fully recoverable. If it is 
such an indication, the asset is tested for impairment by estimating its recoverable amount and any 
impairment loss is recognized in accordance with the accounting policy on impairment of cash-
generating assets and/or impairment of non- cash-generating assets. 

 

If the related asset is measured using the revaluation 
model: 

• changes in the liability alter the revaluation surplus or deficit previously recognized on that asset, so that: 
> a decrease in the liability (subject to (b)) is credited to revaluation surplus in net assets, 
except that it is recognized in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation 
deficit on the asset that was previously recognized in surplus or deficit; 
> an increase in the liability is recognized in surplus or deficit, except that it is debited to the 
revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of 
that asset. 

• in the event that a decrease in the liability exceeds the carrying amount that would have been 
recognized had the asset been carried under the cost model, the excess is recognized immediately in 
surplus or deficit; and 

• The change in the liability is an indication that the asset may have to be revalued in order to 
ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined 
using fair value at the end of the reporting period. Any such revaluation is taken into account in 
determining the amounts to be taken to surplus or deficit or net assets under (a). If a revaluation is 
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necessary, all assets of that class are revalued. 
 
 
 

1.4 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 

An asset is identified as an intangible asset when it: 
• is capable of being separated or divided from an municipality and sold, transferred, licensed, rented 

or exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, asset or liability; or 
• arises from contractual rights or other legal rights, regardless whether those rights are transferable or 

separate from the municipality or from other rights and obligations. 

 

An intangible asset is recognized when: 
• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the 

asset will flow to the municipality; and 
• the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

 

Intangible assets are initially recognized at cost. 
 

An intangible asset acquired at no or nominal cost, the cost shall be its fair value as at the date of 
acquisition. 

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognized as an expense when it is 

incurred. An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is 

recognized when: 
• it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or 

sale; there is an intention to complete and use or sell it; 
• there is an ability to use or sell it; 
• it will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential; 
• there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or 

sell the asset; and 
• the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably. 

 

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any impairment losses. 
 

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no 
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service 
potential. Amortization is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and 
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortization is 
provided on a straight line basis over their useful life. 

 

The amortization period and the amortization method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting 

date. Amortization is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to nil. 
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ITEM                                                                                                         
USEFUL LIFE  
Computer software, other                                                                        
3 years 
 

1.5 RELATED PARTIES 
 

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant 
influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions or if the related party municipality 
and another municipality are subject to common control. 
 

Transactions between related parties other than transactions that would occur within the normal supplier and 
/or client / recipient 
 
 
relationship on terms and conditions no more or less favorable than those which it is reasonable to expect the 
municipality would have adopted if dealing with that individual or municipality at arm's length in the same 
circumstances are disclosed within the annual financial statements. 

 

Only transactions with related parties not at arm's length or not in the ordinary course of business are 
disclosed. 
 

1.6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one municipality and a financial 
liability or a residual interest of another municipality. 
 
The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial 
liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization 
using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and 
minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or non-collection. 
 
A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by a municipality on terms that are not market related. 
 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to 
discharge an obligation. 
 
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. 
 
Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognized financial asset or financial liability from a municipality’s 
statement of financial position. 
 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability 
(or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over 
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or 
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receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net 
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an 
municipality shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, 
prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all 
fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest 
rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and 
the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases 
when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group of 
financial instruments), the municipality shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the 
financial instrument (or group of financial instruments). 
 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable 
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. 

 

A financial asset is: 
• cash;  
• a residual interest of another municipality; or 

 

1.8   FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  
A contractual right to: 
> receive cash or another financial asset from another municipality; or 

> exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another municipality under conditions that are 
potentially favorable to the municipality. 

 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the 
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the 
original or modified terms of a debt instrument. 
 

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to: 
• deliver cash or another financial asset to another municipality; or 
• exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the 

municipality. 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates. 
 

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by a municipality in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations 
associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. 

 

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. Loans 

payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms. 
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Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price 
risk. 
 

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes 
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar 
financial instruments traded in the market. 

 

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due. 
 

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a 
financial asset or financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the 
municipality had not acquired, issued or disposed of the financial instrument. 
 

Financial instruments at amortized cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that 
have fixed or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that: 

• the municipality designates at fair value at initial recognition;  
• or are held for trading. 

 

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an 
active market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. 
 

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are combined 
instruments that are designated at fair value and/or instruments held for trading. 
 

A financial instrument is held for trading if: 
> it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or 

> on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed 
together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking; and 
> financial  instruments  that  do  not  meet  the  definition  of  financial  instruments  at  amortized  cost  or  
financial instruments at cost. 

 

 CLASSIFICATION 

The municipality has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of 
the statement of financial position  

 

Class Category
Cash and cash equivalents                                          Financial asset measured at amortized cost 
Trade and other receivables from non-exchange 
transactions     

Financial asset measured at amortized  cost

Other receivables from exchange transactions            Financial asset measured at amortized cost 
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The municipality has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected 

 

 

INITIAL RECOGNITION 
 

The municipality recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the 
municipality becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

 

INITIAL MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL 
LIABILITIES 
 

The municipality measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs 
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability. 
 
The municipality measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value [if subsequently measured at 
fair value]  
 

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 

The municipality measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following 
categories: Financial instruments at fair value. 
Financial instruments at amortized cost. 
Financial instruments at cost. 

 

All financial assets measured at amortized cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment 
review. 
 

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT CONSIDERATIONS  
 

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not 
active, the municipality establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The objective of using a valuation 
technique is to establish what the transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm’s 
length exchange motivated by normal operating considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s 

Class Category
Borrowings Financial Liability measured at amortized cost
Trade and other payables                                            Financial Liability measured at amortized  cost
Other receivables from exchange transactions            Financial Liability measured at amortized cost
Consumer deposits                                                      Financial Liability measured at amortized cost
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length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties, if available, reference to the current fair value 
of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models. If 
there is a valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the instrument and that 
technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market 
transactions, the municipality uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market 
inputs and relies as little as possible on municipality-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that market 
participants would consider in setting a price and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing 
financial instruments. Periodically, a municipality calibrates the valuation technique and tests it for validity using 
prices from any observable current market transactions in the same instrument (i.e. without modification or 
repackaging) or based on any available observable market data. 
 

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount 
payable on demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid. 

 

RECLASSIFICATION 
 

The municipality does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is:  
• a combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or 
• an investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification. 

 

Where the municipality cannot reliably measure the fair value of an embedded derivative that has been 
separated from a host contract that is a financial instrument at a subsequent reporting date, it measures the 
combined instrument at fair value. This requires a reclassification of the instrument from amortized cost or cost to 
fair value. 
 

If fair value can no longer be measured reliably for an investment in a residual interest measured at fair value, 
the municipality reclassifies the investment from fair value to cost. The carrying amount at the date that fair 
value is no longer available becomes the cost. 
If a reliable measure becomes available for an investment in a residual interest for which a measure was 
previously not available, and the instrument would have been required to be measured at fair value, the 
municipality reclassifies the instrument from cost to fair value. 
 
 
 

GAINS AND LOSSES 

 

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at 
fair value is   recognized in surplus or deficit. 
 

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognized in 
surplus or deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is non-recognized or impaired, or through the 
amortization process. 
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IMPAIRMENT AND UNCOLLECTIBILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 
 

The municipality assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a 
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. 
Financial assets measured at amortized cost: 
 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortized cost has been 
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) 
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced 
directly OR through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognized in surplus or deficit. 
 

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss 
is reversed directly OR by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of 
the financial asset that exceeds what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized 
at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognized in surplus or deficit. 
 
Financial assets measured at cost: 
 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest 
that is not measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the 
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial 
asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed. 

PRESENTATION 
 

Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognized as revenue or 
expense in surplus or deficit. 
 

Dividends or similar distributions relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is 
recognized as revenue or expense in surplus or deficit. 
 

Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognized as 
revenue or expense in surplus or deficit. 
 

A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of 
financial position when the municipality currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts 
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
 

In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the municipality does not 
offset the transferred asset and the associated liability. 
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1.8 LEASES 
 

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. 
A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership. 

 

FINANCE LEASES - LESSEE  
 

Finance leases are recognized as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to 
the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The 
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. 
 

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit 
in the lease or the incremental borrowing rate. 
 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. 
The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate 
reduction on the remaining balance of the liability. 

 

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 
 

  OPERATING LEASES - LESSOR 

Operating lease revenue is recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset and recognized as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue. 

 

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognized as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-

line basis. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognized as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term 

on a straight-line basis. Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in the statement of financial performance. 

OPERATING LEASES - LESSEE  
 

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The 
difference between the amounts recognized as an expense and the contractual payments are recognized as an 
operating lease asset or liability. 
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1.9 INVENTORIES  
 

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired at no cost, or for nominal 
consideration, then their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

 

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. 
 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;  
• distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or 
• consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge. 

 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution. 

 

Current replacement cost is the cost the municipality incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date. 
 

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 
 

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and 
segregated for specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs. 
 

The cost of inventories is assigned using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) formula. The same cost formula is used for all 
inventories having a similar nature and use to the municipality. 
 

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognized as an expense in the period 
in which the related revenue is recognized. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognized when the 
goods are distributed, or related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net 
realizable value or current replacement cost and all losses of inventories are recognized as an expense in the 
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from 
an increase in net realizable value or current replacement cost, are recognized as a reduction in the amount of 
inventories recognized as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs. 

 

1.10 IMPAIRMENT OF CASH-GENERATING ASSETS  
 

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the municipality with the primary objective of generating a 
commercial return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated 
municipality, it generates a commercial return. 
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Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic 
recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation 
(amortization). 
 

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognized in the statement of financial position after 
deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon. 
 

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets held with the primary objective of generating a 
commercial return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows from other assets or groups of assets. 

 

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs. 

Depreciation (Amortization) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. 

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction 
between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. 

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its 

value in use. Useful life is either: 
• the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the municipality; or 
• the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the municipality. 

 

IDENTIFICATION 
 

When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired. 
 

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset 
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. 

 

VALUE IN USE  
 

Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be 
derived from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. 
 

When estimating the value in use of an asset, the municipality estimates the future cash inflows and outflows to 
be derived from continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the municipality applies the 
appropriate discount rate to those future cash flows. 
 

   CASH-GENERATING UNITS 
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If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual 
asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the municipality determines 
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's cash-generating unit). 
 

If an active market exists for the output produced by an asset or group of assets, that asset or group of assets is 
identified as a cash-generating unit, even if some or all of the output is used internally. If the cash inflows 
generated by any asset or cash- generating unit are affected by internal transfer pricing, the municipality use 
management's best estimate of future price(s) that could be achieved in arm's length transactions in estimating: 

• the future cash inflows used to determine the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use; and 
• the future cash outflows used to determine the value in use of any other assets or cash-generating units 

that are affected by the internal transfer pricing. 
 

Cash-generating units are identified consistently from period to period for the same asset or types of assets, 
unless a change is justified. 
 

An impairment loss is recognized for a cash-generating unit if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than 
the carrying amount of the unit. The impairment is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the cash-generating 
assets of the unit on a pro rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. These reductions 
in carrying amounts are treated as impairment losses on individual assets. 
 

In allocating an impairment loss, the municipality does not reduce the carrying amount of an asset below the highest 
of: 

• its fair value less costs to sell (if determinable); 
• its value in use (if determinable); and  
• zero. 

 

The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata 
to the other cash-generating assets of the unit. 
 

Where a non-cash-generating asset contributes to a cash-generating unit, a proportion of the carrying amount 
of that non- cash-generating asset is allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit prior to 
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit. 
 

 

 REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSS  

An impairment loss recognized in prior periods for a cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a 
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was 
recognized. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. The increase is a reversal 
of an impairment loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortization) had 
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior periods. 

 

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognized immediately in surplus or deficit. 

Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase. 
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After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation (amortization) charge for the cash-
generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less 
its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 
 

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit is allocated to the cash-generating assets of the unit 
pro rata with the carrying amounts of those assets. These increases in carrying amounts are treated as reversals 
of impairment losses for individual assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is allocated to a non-cash-
generating asset contributing service potential to a cash-generating unit. 
 

In allocating a reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the carrying amount of an asset is not 
increased above the lower of: 

• its recoverable amount (if determinable); and 
• the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortization or depreciation) had no 

impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior periods. 
 

The amount of the reversal of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated 
pro rata to the other assets of the unit. 

 

1.11 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-CASH-GENERATING ASSETS 
 

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the municipality with the primary objective of generating a 
commercial return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated 
municipality, it generates a commercial return. 

 

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets. 
 

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic 
recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation 
(amortization). 
 

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognized in the statement of financial position after 
deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon. 
 

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets held with the primary objective of generating a 
commercial return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows from other assets or groups of assets. 
 

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and 
income tax expense. 

 

Depreciation (Amortization) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its 
useful life. 
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Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length 
transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. 

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value 

in use. Useful life is either:   

• the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the municipality or 

• the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the municipality. 

 
At each reporting date a review is carried out to determine whether there are any indications that any assets and 
cash generating units may be impaired. If such indications exist, the recoverable amounts of the affected assets are 
determined. 
 

Where the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is lower its carrying amount, an impairment loss 
is recognized in surplus or deficit in respect of assets at historic cost, and recognized in the revaluation reserve in 
respect of assets at revalued amounts. 

 

IDENTIFICATION 
 

When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is 
impaired. 
 

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating 
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of the 
asset. 

 

 

VALUE IN USE  
 

Value in use of an asset is the present value of the asset’s remaining service potential. 
 

The present value of the remaining service potential of an asset is determined using the following approach: 
 

DEPRECIATED REPLACEMENT COST APPROACH 
 

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is determined as the 
depreciated replacement cost of the asset. The replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the asset’s 
gross service potential. This cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used condition. An asset may be replaced 
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either through reproduction (replication) of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross service potential. 
The depreciated replacement cost is measured as the reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is 
lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost, to reflect the already consumed or 
expired service potential of the asset. 
 

The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asset is determined on an “optimized” basis. The rationale 
is that the municipality would not replace or reproduce the asset with a like asset if the asset to be replaced 
or reproduced is an overdesigned or overcapacity asset. Overdesigned assets contain features which are 
unnecessary for the goods or services the asset provides. Overcapacity assets are assets that have a greater 
capacity than is necessary to meet the demand for goods or services the asset provides. The determination of 
the replacement cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an optimized basis thus reflects the service potential 
required of the asset. 

 

RESTORATION COST APPROACH 
 

Restoration cost is the cost of restoring the service potential of an asset to its pre-impaired level. The present 
value of the remaining service potential of the asset is determined by subtracting the estimated restoration cost 
of the asset from the current cost of replacing the remaining service potential of the asset before impairment. 
The latter cost is determined as the depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower. 

 

SERVICE UNITS APPROACH  
 
The present value of the remaining service potential of the asset is determined by reducing the current cost of the 
remaining service potential of the asset before impairment, to conform to the reduced number of service units 
expected from the asset in its impaired state. The current cost of replacing the remaining service potential of the 
asset before impairment is determined as the depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of the asset before 
impairment, whichever is lower. 
 
 
 

RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT 

If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss. 

 

An impairment loss is recognized immediately in surplus or deficit. 
 

Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease. 
 

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-
generating asset to which it relates, the municipality recognizes a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in 
the Standards of GRAP. 
 



INKWANCA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY  ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR  THE  YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013 

ACCOUNTING POLICY  

 

112 

Inkwanca Municipality |Annual Report 2012/13   

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortization) charge for the non-cash-
generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying 
amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

 

REVERSAL OF AN IMPAIRMENT LOSS 
 

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss 
recognized in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If 
any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset. 
 

An impairment loss recognized in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a 
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amount since the last impairment 
loss was recognized. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The 
increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a 
reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of 
depreciation or amortization) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior periods. 

 

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognized immediately in surplus or 

deficit. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a 

revaluation increase. 

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation (amortization) charge for the non-cash-
generating asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, 
less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

 

DERECOGNITION 
 

The derecognition of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a non-cash-
generating asset to a cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear evidence that such derecognition is 
appropriate. 
 

1.12 Employee benefits 
 

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by a municipality in exchange for service rendered by 
employees. 
 
A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a related party of the reporting 
municipality, if the proceeds of the policy can be used only to pay or fund employee benefits under a defined 
benefit plan and are not available to the reporting municipality’s own creditors (even in liquidation) and cannot 
be paid to the reporting municipality, unless either: 
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• the proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed for the policy to meet all the related employee 
benefit obligations; or 

• the proceeds are returned to the reporting municipality to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid. 
 

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either: 
• a municipality’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement 

date;  
• or an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits. 

 

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post-employment benefits and termination 
benefits) that are not due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees 
render the related service. 
 

Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditional on future employment. 
 

Composite social security programs are established by legislation and operate as multi-employer plans to 
provide post- employment benefits as well as to provide benefits that are not consideration in exchange for service 
rendered by employees. 
 

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from a municipality’s actions whereby an established 
pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the municipality has indicated 
to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities and as a result, the municipality has created a valid 
expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those responsibilities. 
 
 
 
 

 

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
 

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled 
within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. 
 

Short-term employee benefits include items such as: 
• wages, salaries and social security contributions; 
• short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the 

compensation for the absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting 
period in which the employees render the related employee service; 

• bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the 
reporting period in which the employees render the related service; and 

• Non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidized goods or services such as 
housing, cars and cellphones) for current employees. 

 

When an employee has rendered service to the municipality during a reporting period, the municipality recognizes 
the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service: 

• as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid 
exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits, the municipality recognize that excess as an asset 
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(prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments 
or a cash refund; and 

• as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of 
an asset. 

 

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognized as an expense as the employees render services 
that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The 
municipality measure the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the 
municipality expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. 
 

The municipality recognizes the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the 
municipality has a present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a 
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. A present obligation exists when the municipality has no realistic 
alternative but to make the payments. 

 

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) which are payable after the 
completion of employment. 
 

Post-employment benefit plans are formal or informal arrangements under which a municipality provides post-
employment benefits for one or more employees. 

 

1.13 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Provisions are recognized when: 

• the municipality has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 
• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be 

required to settle the obligation; and 
• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 

 

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present 
obligation at the reporting date. 
 

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the 
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. 

 

The discount rate reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 
the liability. 
 

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another 
party, the reimbursement is recognized when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be 
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received if the municipality settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount 
recognized for the reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the provision. 
 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are 
reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential 
will be required, to settle the obligation. 
 

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of 
time. This increase is recognized as an interest expense. 

 

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognized. 

Provisions are not recognized for future operating deficits. 

If a municipality has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is 
recognized and measured as a provision. 
 
A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when a municipality has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, 
identifying at least: 

> the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned; 

> the principal locations affected; 

> the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for 
services being terminated; 

> the expenditures that will be undertaken; and 

> when the plan will be implemented; and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will 
carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that plan or announcing its main features to those 
affected by it. 

 

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that 
are both:  

• necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and 
• not associated with the ongoing activities of the municipality 

 

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the municipality is committed 
to the sale or transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement. 
 

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognized in municipality combinations that are recognized 
separately are subsequently measured at the higher of: 

• the amount that would be recognized as a provision; and 
• The amount initially recognized less cumulative amortization. 

 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognized. 
 

1.14 REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS 
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Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows 
result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 
 

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, 
and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other 
party in exchange. 
 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing 
parties in an arm’s length transaction. 

 

MEASUREMENT  
 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume 
rebates. 
 

SALE OF GOODS  
 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all the following conditions have been satisfied: 
• the municipality has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; 

the  municipality  retains  neither  continuing  managerial  involvement  to  the  degree  usually  
associated  with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold; 

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to 

the municipality; and 
• The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. 

 

RENDERING OF SERVICES  

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue 
associated with the transaction is recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the 
reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are 
satisfied: 

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will 

flow to the municipality; 
• the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and 
• the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably. 

 

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is 
recognized on a straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method 
better represents the stage of completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the 
recognition of revenue is postponed until the significant act is executed. 
 

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is 
recognized only to the extent of the expenses recognized that are recoverable. 
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Service revenue is recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting 
date. Stage of completion is determined by surveys of work performed. 

 

INTEREST 
 

Revenue arising from the use by others of municipality assets yielding interest is recognized when: 
it  is  probable  that  the  economic  benefits  or  service  potential  associated  with  the  transaction  will  
flow  to  the municipality, and 
the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 

 

Interest is recognized, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method. 
 

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognized as revenue over the period during which the 
service is performed. 
 
 

1.15 REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS 
 

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by a 
municipality, which represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 
 

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential 
embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or 
service potential must be returned to the transferor. 
 

Control of an asset arise when the municipality can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its 
objectives and can exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit. 
 

Fines are economic benefits or service potential received or receivable by entities, as determined by a court or 
other law enforcement body, as a consequence of the breach of laws or regulations. 
 

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, a 
municipality either receives value from another municipality without directly giving approximately equal value in 
exchange, or gives value to another municipality without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange. 
 

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset 
may be used, but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the 
transferor if not deployed as specified. 
 
Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the 
use of a transferred asset by entities external to the reporting municipality. 
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Taxes such as property rates are economic benefits or service potential compulsorily paid or payable to entities, in 
accordance with laws and or regulations, established to provide revenue to government. Taxes do not include 
fines or other penalties imposed for breaches of the law. 

 

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other 
than taxes. 
 

 

 

RECOGNITION  
 

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognized as an asset is recognized as revenue, except to 
the extent that a liability is also recognized in respect of the same inflow. 
 

As the municipality satisfies a present obligation recognized as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources 
from a non- exchange transaction recognized as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability 
recognized and recognizes an amount of revenue equal to that reduction. 

 

MEASUREMENT  
 

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets 
recognized by the municipality. 
 

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the municipality recognizes an asset, it also recognizes revenue 
equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also 
required to recognize a liability. Where a liability is required to be recognized it will be measured as the best 
estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in 
net assets, if any, recognized as revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event 
occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is recognized as revenue. 

 

TRANSFERS 
 

The municipality recognizes an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an 
asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset. 

 

Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition. 
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DEBT FORGIVENESS AND ASSUMPTION OF LIABILITIES  
 

The municipality recognizes revenue in respect of debt forgiveness when the former debt no longer meets the 
definition of a liability or satisfies the criteria for recognition as a liability. 
 

Revenue arising from debt forgiveness is measured at the fair value of the debt forgiven. Where debt is carried at a 
value other than fair value, the receivable is recognized at the carrying amount. 

 

FINES 
 

Fines are recognized as revenue when the receivable meets the definition of an asset and satisfies the criteria for 
recognition as an asset. 

 

Assets arising from fines are measured at the best estimate of the inflow of resources to the 
municipality. 
 

Where the municipality collects fines in the capacity of an agent, the fine will not be revenue of the 
collecting municipality. 
 

BEQUESTS 
 

Bequests that satisfy the definition of an asset are recognized as assets and revenue when it is probable that 
the future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the municipality, and the fair value of the assets can be 
measured reliably. 
 

   GIFTS AND DONATIONS, INCLUDING GOODS IN-KIND 

Gifts and donations, including goods in kind, are recognized as assets and revenue when it is probable that 
the future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the municipality and the fair value of the assets can be 
measured reliably. 

 

1.16 INVESTMENT INCOME  
 

Investment income is recognized on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. 
 

1.17 BORROWING COSTS 
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Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset until such time as the asset is ready for its intended use. 
The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization is determined as follows: 

• Actual borrowing costs on funds specifically borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset 
less any investment income on the temporary investment of those borrowings. 

• Weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the municipality on funds generally borrowed 
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. The borrowing costs capitalized do not exceed the total 
borrowing costs incurred. 

 

The capitalization of borrowing costs commences when all the following conditions have been met: 
• expenditures for the asset have been incurred; 
• borrowing costs have been incurred; and 
• activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are 

undertaken. 
 

When the carrying amount or the expected ultimate cost of the qualifying asset exceeds its recoverable 
amount or recoverable service amount or net realizable value, the carrying amount is written down or written off 
in accordance with the accounting policy on Impairment of Assets as per accounting policy number 1.11 and 
1.12. In certain circumstances, the amount of the write-down or write-off is written back in accordance with the 
same accounting policy. 

 

Capitalization is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted. 
 

Capitalization ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended 
use or sale are complete. 
 

When the municipality completes the construction of a qualifying asset in parts and each part is capable of 
being used while construction continues on other parts, the municipality ceases capitalizing borrowing costs 
when it completes substantially all the activities necessary to prepare that part for its intended use or sale. 

 

All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 
 
 

 

1.18 COMPARATIVE FIGURES  
 

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the 
current year. 

 

1.19 UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE 
 

Unauthorized expenditure means: 
• overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and 
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• expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in 
accordance with the purpose of the main division. 

 

All expenditure relating to unauthorized expenditure is recognized as an expense in the statement of financial 
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the 
nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of 
financial performance. 

 

1.20 FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE 
 

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable 
care been exercised  
 
All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognized as an expense in the statement 
of financial performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance 
with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement 
of financial performance. 

 

1.21 IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE  
 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned 
before year end and/or before finalization of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the 
irregular expenditure register. In such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating 
the note to the financial statements. 
 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which 
condonement i s  being awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further 
action is required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements. 
 

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following 
financial year, the register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount 
condoned. 
 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not 
condoned by the National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular 
expenditure register. If liability for the irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be 
created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the 
person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting officer or accounting authority may write off the 
amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the financial statements. The irregular 
expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and no 
person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant programme/expenditure 
item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the irregular 
expenditure register. 
 
Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 of 
2003), the Municipal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is 
in contravention of the economic municipality’s supply chain management policy. Irregular expenditure excludes 
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unauthorized expenditure. Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial 
Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial 
Performance. 

 

1.22 USE OF ESTIMATES  
 

The preparation of annual financial statements in conformity with Standards of GRAP requires the use of 
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of 
applying the municipality’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or 
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the annual financial statements are 
disclosed in the relevant sections of the annual financial statements. Although these estimates are based on 
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions they may undertake in the future, actual results 
ultimately may differ from those estimates. 

 

 

 

1.23 PRESENTATION OF CURRENCY 
 

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand. 
 

1.24 OFFSETTING  
 

Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses have not been offset except when offsetting is required or permitted by a 
Standard of GRAP. 

 

1.25 REVALUATION RESERVE  
 

The surplus arising from the revaluation of property, plant and equipment is credited to a non-distributable 
reserve. The revaluation surplus is realized as revalued buildings are depreciated, through a transfer from the 
revaluation reserve to the accumulated surplus/deficit. On disposal, the net revaluation surplus is transferred to 
the accumulated surplus/deficit while gains or losses on disposal, based on revalued amounts, are credited or 
charged to the statement of financial performance 
. 
 

1.26 INVESTMENTS 
 
Where the carrying amount of an investment is greater than the estimated recoverable amount, it is written down 
immediately to its recoverable amount and an impairment loss is charged to the statement of financial performance. 
 

1.27 CONDITIONAL GRANTS AND RECEIPTS 
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Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognized as revenue to the extent that the 
municipality has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To the 
extent that the criteria, conditions or obligations have not been met a liability is recognized. 

 

1.28 BUDGET INFORMATION  
 

Municipalities are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorization’s (or 
equivalent), which is given effect through authorizing legislation, appropriation or similar. 
 

General purpose financial reporting by the municipality shall provide information on whether resources were 
obtained and used in accordance with the legally adopted budget. 

 

 

1.29 VALUE ADDED TAX (VAT)  
 

The municipality accounts for value added tax on the payment basis. Revenue, expenses and assets are 
recognized net of the amount of VAT. The net amount of VAT recoverable from or payable to, the taxation 
authority is disclosed on the face of the statement of financial position. Refer to note 5. 

 

1.30 COMMITMENTS 
 

Items are classified as commitments when the municipality has committed itself to future transactions that will 
normally result in the outflow of cash. A commitment is disclosed to the extent that it has not already been 
recognized elsewhere in the financial statements. 
 

At the end of each financial period the municipality determines commitments in respect of capital expenditure that 
has been approved and contracted for which is then disclosed as a note in the annual financial statements 
differentiating between community, infrastructure and other capital expenditure commitments.
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 ‘Together Advancing in Development’  

 

 

 

1.1  Changes in accounting policy 

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with South African Statements 
of Generally Recognized Accounting Practice on a basis consistent with the prior year except for 
the following new stands as issued by the Accounting Standard Board: 

· GRAP 23 Revenue from non-exchange transactions. 
· GRAP 24 Presentation of budget information in the financial statement 
· GRAP 21 Impairment of non-exchange transactions 
· GRAP 26 Impairment of exchange transactions 
· GRAP 103 Heritage assets 
· GRAP 104 Financial instruments 

1.2 New standards and interpretations 

Standards and interpretations effective and adopted 
in the current year 

In the current year, the municipality has adopted the following standards and interpretations that 
are effective for the current financial year and that are relevant to its operations 

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective 
date: 
Years 
beginning 
on or after 

Expected 
impact: 

 

GRAP 23: Revenue from Non-exchange 
Transactions 1-Jul-12 

The  major will be the 
accounting treatment of 
condition grants and fines 

GRAP 24: Presentation of Budget Information in the 
Financial 
l   1-Jul-12

Major change is presenting 
the budget information 
compared to actuals in the 
AFS 

GRAP 21: Impairment of non-cash-generating 
assets 
 1-Jul-12
GRAP 26: Impairment of cash-generating assets 
 1-Jul-12 

GRAP 103: Heritage Assets 
 1-Jul-12 

No major impact as the 
municipality has no heritage 
assets 

 
GRAP 104: Financial Instruments 1-Jul-12 
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1.3 
Standards and interpretations issued, but not 
yet effective or relevant 

The following standards and interpretations have been published and are mandatory for the 
municipality’s 
 accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2013 or later periods but are not relevant to its 
operations: 
Standard: Effective 

date: 
Years 
beginning 
on or after 

Expected 
impact: 

GRAP 25: Employee benefits 
 1-Jul-13 No major impact expected
GRAP 20: Related parties 
 1-Jul-13 No major impact expected 
IGRAP 11: Consolidation – Special purpose entities 
 1-Jul-14 No impact 
IGRAP 12: Jointly controlled entities – Non-
monetary contributions by ventures 1-Jul-14 No impact 

 
 
 

2013 2012 
R R 

1.4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following: 

Cash at bank 
  

226,775  
 

63,323 

  
226,775  

 
63,323 

No cash and cash equivalents (or portions thereof) were pledged as security for any financial 
liabilities. 
No restrictions exist with regard to the use of cash.
No portion is past due or impaired. 

The Municipality has the following bank 
accounts: - 

Current Account (Other Account)  Bank statements balances
2013 2012

Standard Bank - Molteno Branch - Acc No 280 66 
1061-Operating 

  
164,895  

 
53,025 

Standard Bank - Molteno Branch - Acc No 280 67 
0893- Primary 

  
19,624  

 
161 
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Standard Bank - Molteno Branch - Acc No 280 66 
0332- Natis 

 
7,068 

Standard Bank - Molteno Branch - Acc No  08 263 
1808- Water services 

  
1,370  

 
807 

Standard Bank - Molteno Branch - Acc No  38 857 
4550- FMG 

  
3,861  

 
1,005 

Standard Bank - Molteno Branch - Acc No  38 857 
4720- MSIG 

  
8,634  

 
1,005 

Standard Bank - Molteno Branch - Acc No  38 850 
0360- MIG 

  
2,161  

 
1,005 

  
200,545  

 
64,077 

 
 
 

Current Account (Other Account)  Cash book balances
2013 2012

Standard Bank - Molteno Branch - Acc No 280 66 
1061-Operating 

  
191,113  

 
52,275 

Standard Bank - Molteno Branch - Acc No 280 67 
0893- Primary 

  
19,624  

 
161 

Standard Bank - Molteno Branch - Acc No 280 66 
0332- Natis 

  
-  

 
7,068 

Standard Bank - Molteno Branch - Acc No  08 263 
1808- Water services 

  
1,370  

 
807 

Standard Bank - Molteno Branch - Acc No  38 857 
4550- Fmg 

  
3,864  

 
1,005 

Standard Bank - Molteno Branch - Acc No  38 857 
4720- Msig 

  
8,642  

 
1,005 

Standard Bank - Molteno Branch - Acc No  38 850 
0360- Mig 

  
2,163  

 
1,005 

  
226,775  

 
63,327 

Cash on hand 
  

-  
 

-  

Total cash and cash equivalents 
  

226,775  
 

63,327 

2 
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES FROM 
EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS 

Gross 
Balances 

Provision 
for Doubtful 

Debts Net Balance 
Trade receivables R R R 
as at 30 June 2013 
Service debtors 

   Electricity  
 

1,771,277 
  

(1,739,327)  31,950  

   Water 
 

11,036,078 
  

(10,837,009)  
 

199,069 

   Sewerage 
 

15,214,691 
  

(14,940,249)  
 

274,443 

   Refuse 
 

8,764,868 
  

(8,606,768)  
 

158,101 
   Other     
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248,192 (243,705)  4,487 
 

37,035,107 
  

(36,367,058)  
 

668,049 

as at 30 June 2012 
Service debtors 

   Electricity  
 

2,568,682 
  

(1,993,011)  
 

575,671 

   Water 
 

9,381,537 
  

(8,876,082)  
 

505,455 

   Sewerage 
 

8,742,352 
  

(7,302,830)  
 

1,439,522 

   Refuse 
 

4,928,399 
  

(4,660,651)  
 

267,748 

   Other 
 

13,230,025 
  

(12,412,007)  
 

818,018 
 

38,850,995 
  

(35,244,581)  
 

3,606,414 

 
 
 
Electricity: Ageing 

Current (0 – 30 days)  
  

252,410  
 

284,801 

31 - 60 Days  
  

139,631  
 

173,020 

61 - 90 Days  
  

160,502  
 

117,850 

91 - 120 Days  
  

1,218,735  
 

1,993,011 
  

1,771,278  
 

2,568,682 

Less: Allowance for debt impairment 
  

(1,739,327)  
 

(1,993,011) 

Total  31,951  
 

575,671 

Refuse Ageing 

Current (0 – 30 days)  
  

175,423  
 

121,977 

31 - 60 Days  164,632 
 

74,354 

61 - 90 Days  160,939 
 

71,417 

91 - 120 Days  8,263,873 
 

4,660,651 
  

8,764,867  
 

4,928,399 

Less: Allowance for debt impairment 
  

(8,606,768)  
 

(4,660,651) 

Total  
  

158,099  
 

267,748 

Water: Ageing 

Current (0 – 30 days)  282,313 
 

202,743 
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31 - 60 Days  239,767 
 

183,317 

61 - 90 Days  212,759 
 

119,395 

91 - 120 Days  10,301,238 
 

8,876,082 
  

11,036,077  
 

9,381,537 

Less: Allowance for debt impairment 
  

(10,301,238)  
 

(8,876,082) 

Total  
  

199,068  
 

505,455 

Sewerage: Ageing 

Current (0 – 30 days)  361,937 
 

254,097 

31 - 60 Days  339,470 
 

164,087 

61 - 90 Days  330,714 
 

1,021,338 

91 - 120 Days  14,182,569 
 

7,302,830 
  

15,214,690  
 

8,742,352 

Less: Allowance for debt impairment 
  

(14,940249)  
 

(7,302,830) 

Total  
  

274,441  
 

1,439,522 

Other Debtors: Ageing 

Current (0 – 30 days)  
  

5,466  
 

273,422 

31 - 60 Days  
  

3,603  
 

280,157 

61 - 90 Days  
  

5,701  
 

264,439 

91 - 120 Days  
  

233,423  
 

12,412,007 
  

248,193  
 

13,230,025 

Less: Allowance for debt impairment 
  

(243,705)  
 

(12,412,007) 

Total  
  

4,488  
 

818,018 
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Reconciliation of the doubtful debt provision 2013 2012

Balance at beginning of the year
  

35,244,581  
 

35,244,581 

Contributions to provision 
  

1,122,477  

Balance at end of year 
  

36,367,058  
 

35,244,581 

Consumer debtors pledged as security 

No portion of accounts receivable was pledged as security for any financial liabilities. 

Consumer debtors impaired 

As of 30 June 2013, consumer debtors of R 45,436,539 (2012: R 41,422,505) were impaired and 
provided for. 

3.1 
TRADE RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE 
TRANSACTIONS 

 Gross 
Balances 

 Provision 
for Doubtful 

Debts   Net Balance 
Trade receivables  R  R   R 
as at 30 June 2013 
Service debtors 

   Rates  
 

11,434,205 
  

(9,069,481)  
 

2,364,724 

as at 30 June 2012 
Service debtors 

   Rates  
 

7,631,824 
  

(6,177,924)  
 

1,453,900 
 
 
 
 
 

Rates: Ageing 2013 2012

Current (0 – 30 days) 
  

379,856  
 

292,481 

31 - 60 Days  
  

335,648  
 

200,520 

61 - 90 Days 
  

318,451  
 

960,899 

91 - 120 Days 
  

10,400,251  
 

6,177,924 
  

11,434,206  
 

7,631,824 

Less: Allowance for debt impairment
  

(9,069,481)  
 

(6,177,924) 
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Total  
  

2,364,725  
 

1,453,900 

 

Summary of debtors by customer classification 2013 2012 

Business 

Current (0 – 30 days) 
   

144,138  94,276 

31 - 60 Days  
   

103,474  62,078 

61 - 90 Days 
   

105,853  150,465 

91 - 120 Days 
   

1,986,211  616,596 
   

2,339,676  923,415 
 Government  

Current (0 – 30 days) 
   

138,614  97,611 

31 - 60 Days  
   

109,066  96,517 

61 - 90 Days 
   

91,050  298,017 

91 - 120 Days 
   

1,363,534  949,127 
   

1,702,263  1,441,272 

 Residential  

Current (0 – 30 days) 
   

1,165,944  637,763 

31 - 60 Days  
   

1,002,227  625,023 

61 - 90 Days 
   

984,688  1,488,335 

91 - 120 Days 
   

42,402,555  40,515,035 
   

45,555,413  43,266,156 

 Indigents  

Current (0 – 30 days) 
   

9,009  33,081 

31 - 60 Days  
   

7,986  61,480 

61 - 90 Days 
   

7,975  102,896 

91 - 120 Days 
   

911,727  654,519 

936,667 851,976 
 
 
Total Summary of Debtors by customer classification 

Current (0 – 30 days) 1,457,704 862,731 

31 - 60 Days  1,222,752 845,098 

61 - 90 Days 1,189,566 2,039,713 

91 - 120 Days 44,599,290 42,735,277 

48,469,313 46,482,819 

Less: Allowance for debt impairment 
   

(45,436,539)  
  

(41,422,505) 

TOTAL 3,032,774 5,060,314 
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3.2 
OTHER RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE 
TRANSACTIONS 2013 2012 

Other debtors               107,999  
  

112,597 

Less: Provision for doubtful debts  
   

99,191                           -   

Total Other Debtors
   

8,808  
  

112,597 

Trade and other receivables pledged as security 

No portion of accounts receivable was pledged as security for any financial liabilities. 

No security is held for any accounts receivable. 

2013 2012 

4 INVENTORIES 

Inventories: 
   

165,777  
  

731,673 

Consumable stores - at cost 
   

147,126  
  

697,658 

Water 
   

18,652  
  

34,015 

Inventory pledged as security 
No inventory was pledged as security.

5 VAT RECEIVABLE 2013 2012 

VAT receivable 
   

613,184  
  

3,208,302 

VAT is payable on the receipts basis. VAT is paid over to SARS only once payment is received from debtors. 
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 ‘Together Advancing in Development’  

 

 

6.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Reconciliation of Carrying Value 
Land Buildings Infrastructure Other Assets Finance lease assets Total 

R R R R R R 

as at 1 July 2012         30 161 500           13 548 625     113 672 845         2 874 863            110 272     160 368 105  

Cost/Revaluation         30 161 500           14 261 594     141 774 071         4 471 793            366 555     191 035 513  

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses                      -                  712 969       28 101 226         1 596 930            256 283       30 667 408  

Acquisitions          6 594 441            860 524         7 454 965  

Capital under Construction          5 351 241         5 351 241  

Depreciation                 351 971         9 241 814            353 622             30 402         9 977 809  

Carrying value of disposals                      -                           -                      -                      -                      -                      -   

Cost/Revaluation                      -                           -                      -              296 052            229 636            525 688  

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses                      -                           -                      -              296 052            229 636            525 688  

Impairment loss/Reversal of impairment loss                      -                           -                      -                      -                      -                      -   

Transfers                      -                           -                      -                      -                      -                      -   

Other movements                      -                           -                 1 377                    -                      -                 1 377  

as at 30 June 2013         30 161 500           13 196 654     116 378 090         3 381 765             79 870     163 197879 
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Cost/Revaluation         30 161 500           14 261594     153 721 130         5 036 265            136 919     203 317 408  

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses                      -               1 050 741       37 343 040         1 654 500             57 049       40 119 529  

Reconciliation of Carrying Value 
Land Buildings Infrastructure Other Assets Finance lease assets Total 

R R R R R R 

as at 1 July 2011         30 161 500           14 206 096     118 457 768         3 163 916            192 359     166 181 639  

Cost/Revaluation         30 161 500           14 552 895     137 023 585         4 471 793            565 429     186 784 202  

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses                      -                  346 799       18 565 818         1 307 877            373 070 20 593 563  

Acquisitions                     -   

Capital under Construction          4 750 486         4 750 486  

Depreciation                 351 971         9 535 408            289 053             82 087       10 258 519  

Carrying value of disposals                      -                           -                      -                      -                      -                      -   

Cost/Revaluation                      -                           -                      -                      -              198 874            198 874  

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses                    198 874            198 874  

Impairment loss/Reversal of impairment loss                      -                           -                      -                      -                      -                      -   

Transfers                      -                           -                      -                      -                      -                      -   

Other movements                      -                           -                      -                      -                      -                      -   
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as at 30 June 2012         30 161 500           13 548 625     113 672 845         2 874 863            110 272     160 368 105 

Cost/Revaluation         30 161 500           14 261 594     141 774 071         4 471 793            366 555     191 035 513  

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses                      -                  712 969       28 101 226         1 596 930            256 283       30 667408  
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 ‘Together Advancing in Development’  

 

 

7. 

 

INVESTMENT PROPERTY CARRIED AT COST 

7.1 Reconciliation of carrying value 
Investment 

property Total 

as at 1 July 2013                  314,500 
  

314,500 

Cost/Valuation                  314,500 
  

314,500 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses                            -   

    

Acquisitions                          -                            -   

Depreciation                          -                            -   

Carrying value of disposals                          -                            -   

Cost                          -                            -   

Accumulated depreciation                          -                            -   

    

Impairment loss/Reversal of impairment loss                          -                            -   

Transfers                          -                            -   

Other movements                          -                            -   

as at 30 June 2012                  314,500 
  

314,500 

Cost/Valuation                  314,500 
  

314,500 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses     

  

7.2 Reconciliation of carrying value 
Investment 

property Total 

as at 1 July 2012                          -                            -   

Cost                  314,500 
  

314,500 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses                            -   
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  Restated 
2013 2012 

R R 

8 
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES FROM 
EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS 

Trade creditors  
  

12,567,972  
 

7,669,501 

Bonus  
  

1,936,034  
 

1,074,641 

Staff leave accrual 
  

1,146,052  
 

825,001 
Transfer of credit balances from Trade and other receivables from 
exchange transactions

  
1,407,945  

 
3,962,721 

Other creditors 
  

885,467  
 

5,298,246 

Total creditors 
  

17,943,470  
 

18,830,110 

The fair value of trade and other payables 
approximates their carrying amounts. 
None of the trade payables are secured. 

Bonus 
This provision is in respect of short term liability relating to long service bonuses 
payable to employees. 

Provision for leave 

7.3 No Investment properties were pledged as security. 

Operational expenditure regarding investment property earning rentals and those that are not 
earning rentals are not available. 

At reporting date there are no cumulative fair value changes in the surplus and deficit for investment properties. 

There are no restrictions on investment properties. 

There are no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or for repairs, maintenance or enhancements. 

The values were determined  by PJ Lindstrom the  valuer who is a Registered Professional Valuer with the South African 

Council for the Property Valuers Profession, Registration No. 935. 

Rental income from investment properties in respect of monthly and annual leases amounted to R 85 533  (2012 R 76 
992). 
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This provision is in respect of short term liability relating to leave payable to 
 employees. 

 
 
 
 
 

9 CONSUMER DEPOSITS 2013 2012

Other 
  

192,216  
 

161,852 

Total consumer deposits  
  

192,216  
 

161,852 

10 PROVISIONS 2013 2012

Landfill Sites 
  

462,426  
 

461,049 

Total Provisions  
  

462,426  
 

461,049 

Provision for landfill sites 

With regards to the Provision for Landfill sites: It is stated in the Department of Water 
Affairs and Forestry "Minimum Requirements for Waste Disposal by Landfill", Second 
Edition 1998, Chapter 2.3.4, that "All landfills except those closed prior to August 1990 
when the permitting system came into effect, must be permitted before they can be 
considered closed. 

Closure will involve, inter alia, the application of final cover, top soiling, vegetating, drainage 
maintenance and leachate management."
 
Rehabilitation costs in respect of geo-hydrological monitoring is anticipated to be a recurring cost for the 
next 30 years. These will involve, inter alia, the application of final cover, top soiling, vegetating, 
drainage maintenance and leachate management estimated future cost which was then discounted to 
present value 
Assumptions used: 
Interest rate used is borrowing rate at 10% .
The valuation for the landfill site provision was done by Mr A Mxenge, an environmental specialist 
seconded by the Department of Local and Traditional Affairs. 
 

The movement in current provisions are 
reconciled as follows: - 

  Provision for 
Landfill Sites  

as at 1 July 2012 
 

461,049 

Contributions to provision / (expenditure)
 

1,377 



INKWANCA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY  ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  FOR  THE  YEAR 
ENDED 30 JUNE 2013 

NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

138 

Inkwanca Municipality |Annual Report 2012/13   

as at 30 June 2013 
 

462,426 

as at 1 July 2011 
                         
-    

Contributions to provision / (expenditure) 
 

461,049 

as at 30 June 2012 
 

461,049 

11 
UNSPENT CONDITIONAL GRANTS AND 
RECEIPTS 

11.1 
Unspent Conditional Grants from other 
spheres of Government  2012 2011 

Grants surrendered   
 

2,808,000 

Land Development Fund 
  

83,366  
 

197,430 

MIG   
 

2,454,225 

MSIG   
 

-  

Update Fixed Assets Register   
 

280,000 

Update Valuation Role 
  

64,146  
 

64,146 
   

Total Unspent Conditional Grants and Receipts  
  

147,512  
 

5,803,801 
 
 
Current portion of unspent conditional grants and 
receipts 

  
147,512  

 
5,803,801 

 
 
 
 
 
 

13 FINANCE LEASE LIABILITY 
Present value

2013 
 Minimum 
lease  Future finance of minimum

  payment   charges 
lease 

payments
Amounts payable under finance leases R R R

Within one year 
                
330,749  

  
(27,292)  

 
303,457 

Within two to five years 
 

-  
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330,749  

  
(27,292)  

 
303,457 

Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 
months (current portion) 

 
70,797 

 
232,660 

Present value

2012 
 Minimum 
lease  Future finance of minimum

  payment   charges 
lease 

payments
Amounts payable under finance leases R R R

Within one year 
 

416,477 
  

27,292  
 

389,185 
Within two to five years

 
416,477 

  
27,292  

 
389,185 

Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 
months (current portion) 

 
70,569 

 
318,616 

Motor Vehicles: 
The average lease term is for a 60 month period and the average effective rate is 
10%. 

Office Equipment: 

The average lease term is for a 60 month period except for one lease, which is for a 
36 month period and the average effective rate is 10.1%.  

 
 
 
General 

  

There are no contingent rentals during the period.                                                             
There are no sublease in existence during the period.                                                       
There have not been any breaches or defaults of the terms and conditions during the 
period.                                                
None of the terms and conditions were renegotiated during the period. 

 

 
 

14 PROPERTY RATES 2013 2012 

Actual 

Residential and other property's 
  

4,881,197  
 

2,819,427 

Total property rates  
  

4,881,197  
 

2,819,427 
Property rates - penalties imposed and collection 
charges 

  
-  

 
-  

Total    
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4,881,197  2,819,427 

15 SERVICE CHARGES 2013 2012

Sale of electricity 
  

5,679,653  
 

5,102,276 

Sale of water 
  

3,623,335  
 

2,762,696 

Refuse removal 
  

1,361,507  
 

3,548,775 

Sewerage and sanitation charges 
  

3,033,716  
 

5,361,186 

Interest earn- outstanding receivables 
 

(877,284) 

Total Service Charges 
  

13,698,211  
 

15,897,649 

16 RENTAL OF FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT 2013 2012

Rental of facilities 
  

121,217  
 

105,524 

Total rentals 
  

121,217  
 

105,524 

17 
INTEREST EARNED - EXTERNAL 
INVESTMENTS 2013 2012

Bank 
  

46,271  
 

51 

Total interest 
  

46,271  
 

51 

18 
INTEREST EARNED - OUTSTANDING 
RECEIVABLES 2013 2012

Consumers 
  

2,343,665  
 

3,884,081 

Total interest 
  

2,343,665  
 

3,884,081 

19 GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES 2013 2012 

Equitable share 
  

17,833,000  
 

14,201,000 

MIG Grant 
  

12,445,231  
 

7,758,223 

MSIG 
  

800,000  
 

1,313,196 

Finance Management Grant 
  

1,500,000  
 

2,309,498 
Subsidy - Chris Hani District Municipality    
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6,047,152  6,281,686 

Other Government Grants and Subsidies 
  

1,493,944  
 

231,000 

Total Government Grant and Subsidies  
  

40,119,327  
 

32,094,602 

19.1 Equitable Share 
In terms of the Constitution, this grant is used to subsidies the provision of basic 
services to indigent community members.  All registered indigents receive a monthly 
subsidy. 

20 
OTHER INCOME, PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS 
AND DONATIONS 2013 2012 

20.1 Other income 
  

3,398,213  
 

2,778,490 

Total Other Income 
  

3,398,213  
 

2,778,490 

21 EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS 2013 2012

Employee related costs - Salaries and Wages
  

13,044,044  
 

13,752,501 
Employee related costs - Contributions for UIF, 
pensions and medical aids 

  
2,981,803  

 
2,379,212 

Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence 
and other allowances 

  
703,694  

 
746,052 

Overtime payments 
  

50,610  
 

59,401 

Performance and other bonuses 
  

1,028,673  
 

1,614,377 

Other employee related costs 
  

1,199,682  
 

(621,713) 

Total Employee Related Costs  
  

19,008,505  
 

17,929,830 

There were no advances to employees / Loans to employees are set out in note 2. 
 
 
 

Remuneration of the Municipal Manager 2013 2012 

Annual Remuneration 
  

485,717  
 

394,749 

Performance- and other bonuses 
 

20,224 
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence 
and other allowances 

  
198,204  

 
130,436 

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds  
  

1,713  
 

1,121 

Ex Gratuity 
 

761,348 

Total  
  

685,633  
 

1,307,878 
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Remuneration of the Chief Finance Officer 2013 2012 

Annual Remuneration
  

342,505  
 

301,599 

Acting Allowance 
  

67,570  
 

54,090 

Performance- and other bonuses 
 

27,558 
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence 
and other allowances 

  
45,402  

 
3,000 

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds  
  

90,607  
 

749 

Total 
  

546,084  
 

386,996 

The post was vacant as from 01 January 2012 to December 12 an acting allowance has been paid for 
the period of vacancy.  
    

Remuneration of Individual Senior Managers 
Technical 
Services 

Corporate 
Services 

Community 
Services 

R R R 

2013 

Annual Remuneration
 

273,837 
  

415,405  
 

422,227 

Acting Allowance 
 

180,871 
Performance- and other bonuses 
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence 
and other allowances 

 
50,046 

  
145,100  

 
141,817 

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds  
 

54,599 
  

5,176  
 

1,713 

Total 559,353 565,681 565,757

Technical 
Services 

Corporate 
Services 

Community 
Services 

R R R
2012 

Annual Remuneration 
 

401,825 
  

338,644  
 

338,645 

Acting Allowance 
 

25,440 

Performance- and other bonuses 
 

28,345 
  

28,220  
 

28,220 
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence 
and other allowances 

 
4,500 

  
149,602  

 
120,882 

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 
 

1,123 
  

1,497  
 

1,494 

Total 
 

461,233 
  

517,964  
 

489,241 
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The post was vacant as from 01 May 2012, an acting allowance has been paid for the period of 
vacancy.   

    

22 REMUNERATION OF COUNCILLORS 2013 2012 

Councilors’ pension and medical aid contributions 
  

245,540  
 

167,506 

Councilors’ allowances 
  

1,626,907  
 

1,691,044 

Total Councilors’ Remuneration 
  

1,872,447  
 

1,858,550 

23 
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 
EXPENSE 2013 2012 

Property, plant and equipment 
  

9,977,809  
            
10,298,868  

Total Depreciation and Amortization  
  

9,977,809  
            
10,298,868  

24 FINANCE COSTS 2013 2012 

Borrowings 
  

245,283  
 

169,206 

Bank overdrafts 
  

-  

Total Finance Costs 
  

245,283  
 

169,206 

25 BULK PURCHASES 2013 2012 

Electricity 
  

4,403,299  
 

5,669,461 

Water 
 

257,748 

Total Bulk Purchases 
  

4,403,299  
 

5,927,209 

26 CONTRACTED SERVICES 2013 2012 

Contracted services for: 

Security Services 
  

51,171  
 

-  

27 GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES EXPENSED  Note  2013 2012 

Grant expenses - Municipal Systems 
Implementation Grant 

  
800,000  

 
1,313,196 

Grant expenses - Financial Management Grant 
  

1,500,000  
 

2,294,628 

Grant expenses - Municipal Infrastructure Grant 
  

499,550  
 

411,804 
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Grant expenses - Subsidy Indigents 
  

0  
 

5,726,336 

Grant expenses - Expanded Public Programme
  

998,146  

Expenditure charged against conditional grants 
  

380,544  

                        
28  

  
4,178,240  

 
9,745,964 

28 GENERAL EXPENSES  Note  2013 2012 

Included in general expenses are the following:- 

Admin fees 
  

55,546  
 

38,368 

Advertising 
  

52,868  
 

56,441 

Audit fees 
  

256,586  
 

2,392,769 

Bank charges 
  

115,840  
 

102,622 

Cleaning 
  

640,593  
 

98,540 

Entertainment 
 

-  

Fuel and oil 
  

463,754  
 

458,821 

Grant expenditure 
                        
27  

  
4,178,240  

 
9,745,964 

Insurance 
  

99,713  
 

154,190 

Legal expenses 
  

4,739  
 

41,005 

License fees - all 
  

13,380  
 

11,072 

Membership fees 
  

453,535  
 

661,455 

Other rentals 
  

153,198  
 

59,482 

Postage 
  

8,810  
 

13,988 

Printing and stationery
  

388,908  
 

258,580 

Rental of office equipment 
  

160,397  
 

170,843 

Security costs 
 

27,585 

Subscription & publication 
  

196,581  
 

219,969 

Telephone cost 
  

316,964  
 

244,885 

Training 
  

261,017  
 

171,900 
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Travel and subsistence 
  

209,428  
 

122,675 

Uniforms & overalls 
  

193,755  
 

148,441 

Other 
  

2,548,462  
 

2,020,087 

  
10,772,314  

 
17,219,680 

   
29 CASH GENERATED BY OPERATIONS 2013 2012 

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 
  

7,405,229  
 

(8,199,019) 
Adjustment for:- 

Adjustment prior years 
                        
38  

  
(1,764,737)  

 
(2,483,703) 

Depreciation and amortization 
  

9,977,809  
 

10,298,868 
Reversal of agency accounting- CHDM 7,346,858

Contribution to provisions - current 
  

1,377  
 

(1,430,069) 

Non Cash property ,plant and equipment
  

(1,377)  
 

(461,049) 
Operating surplus before working capital 
changes: 

  
15,618,301  

 
5,071,886 

(Increase)/decrease in inventories 
  

565,895  
 

(687,971) 

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 
  

584,927  
 

382,238 

(Increase)/decrease in other receivables
  

103,789  
 

452,622 

(Increase)/decrease in non-exchange receivables
 

(939,475) 

(Increase)/decrease in VAT receivable 
  

2,695,035  
 

(1,875,986) 
Increase/(decrease) in conditional grants and 
receipts 

  
(5,656,289)  

 
2,243,781 

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
  

(886,639)  
 

4,600,638 

Increase/(decrease) in consumer deposits 
  

30,363  
 

(7,659) 

Cash generated by/(utilized in) operations 
  

13,055,382  
 

9,240,073 

30 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2013 2012 

Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement 
comprise the following: 

Bank balances and cash 
  

226,775  
 

63,323 
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Net cash and cash equivalents (net of bank 
overdrafts) 

  
226,775  

 
63,323

31 UNAUTHORISED, IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS 
AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE 
DISALLOWED 

31.1 Unauthorized expenditure 
Reconciliation of unauthorized expenditure

Vote  Actual   Adjusted Budget  
 Unauthorized 

Expenditure 

Vote 1 - Executive and Council 
 

2,439,524              1,992,162  
 

447,362 
 

3,197,844               3,074,111  
 

123,733 

Vote 3 - Budget and Treasury Office 
 

1,718,733               4,838,480                           -  

Vote 4 - Technical Office 
 

6,850,802            10,635,090                          -  

Vote 4 - Water and Sanitation  
 

18,247,843             12,499,497  
 

5,748,346 

Vote 6 - Community Services 
 

20,986,960             10,142,383  
 

10,844,577 

Vote 7 - Corporate Services 
 

4,095,216              4,271,969                          -  

Unauthorized expenditure awaiting 
authorization 

 
57,536,922             47,453,691  

 
17,164,018 

31.2 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure 2013 2012 

Opening balance - 
  

-  
 

663,193 

 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure current year
  

245,247  
 

142,634 

 Condoned or written off by Council 
  

(245,247)  
 

(805,827) 
To be recovered – contingent asset 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting 
condonement 0 

 
(0) 

The following is a list of Fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred 
during the year: 

Interest on trade payables - Office of the Auditor 
General 

  
238,305  

Interest on trade payables - Eskom 
  

6,942  
 

142,634 

  
245,247  

 
142,634 

 Incident                                        Disciplinary steps/criminal 
proceedings 
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Interest charged on overdue accounts.                     
None 
 
 
 
 

31.3 Irregular expenditure 

Reconciliation of irregular expenditure 2013 2012 

Opening balance 
 

1,997,140 

   Irregular expenditure current year 
  

1,678,905  
 

647,646 

   Condoned or written off by Council 
  

(1,435,039)  
 

(2,644,786) 
   Transfer to receivables for recovery – not 
condoned 

  
-  

 
-  

   Irregular expenditure awaiting condonement 
  

243,865  
 

-  
 
 Incident                                        Disciplinary steps/criminal 
proceedings 

 
2013 

 
2012 

Tendering process irregularities.                               
None         1,435,039 

 
647,646

Payments on Terminations                                                                    
Under Investigation             243,865 

  
1,678,905 

 
647,646

32 ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES IN TERMS OF 
MUNICIPAL FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT 

32.1 Contributions to organised local government 2013 2012 

Opening balance 
  

860,276  
 

415,276 

Council subscriptions 
  

452,000  
 

645,000 

Amount paid - current
  

(430,138)  
 

(200,000) 

Amount paid - previous years 
  

-  
 

-  

Balance unpaid (included in payables)
  

882,138  
 

860,276 

32.2 Audit fees 2013 2012 

Opening balance 
  

4,164,879  
 

1,588,986 

Current year audit fee 
  

3,039,062  
 

2,709,741 
Amount paid - current year    
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(2,349,185)  (133,848) 

Balance unpaid (included in payables)
  

4,854,755  
 

4,164,879 

The balance unpaid represents the audit fee for the audit conducted during 2010/211 and 2011/2012 is 
payable in full. 
The Municipality has requested an assistance from the National Treasury for the excess amount. 
 
 
 

32.3 VAT 

VAT input receivables and VAT output payables are shown in note 5. All VAT returns up to June 2013 
have been submitted. The remaining VAT returns are still outstanding. 

32.4 PAYE and UIF 2013 2012 

Opening balance 
  

3,966,869  
 

1,607,579 

Current year payroll deductions 
  

1,883,004  
 

2,359,290 

Amount paid - current year 
  

(2,255,673)  

Balance unpaid (included in payables) 
  

3,594,200  
 

3,966,869 

32.5 Pension and Medical Aid Deductions 2013 2012 

Opening balance 
  

318,734  
 

321,073 
Current year payroll deductions and Council 
Contributions 

  
4,607,599  

 
2,259,327 

Amount paid - current year 
  

(4,027,816)  
 

(2,261,666) 
  

-  
 

-  

Balance unpaid (included in payables) 
  

898,516  
 

318,734 

 

32.6 Councilor’s arrear consumer accounts 

The following Councilors had arrear consumer 
accounts outstanding for more than 90 days as 
at: - 

Total Outstanding 
less than 90 

days 

Outstanding 
more than 90 

days 
R R R 

as at 30 June 2013 

XG Mkhubukeli 
 

9,935 
  

9,935  
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Total Councilor Arrear Consumer Accounts
 

9,935 
  

9,935  
 

-  

During the year the following Councilors had 
arrear accounts outstanding for more than 90 
days. 

32.7 
Non-Compliance with Chapter 11 of the Municipal 
Finance Management Act 

The municipality has not paid their suppliers in terms of the MFMA. This due to the 
lack of funds. 
The municipality did not comply with Section 
11(4) of the MFMA. 
 
 
 
 

32.8 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 

Commitments in respect of capital expenditure 

PROJECT  2013 2012 
Approved and contracted for:   
Spatial Development Framework 
Resurfacing of Nomonde Access Road 
Sokoyi Bridge Construction 1,022,192
Renovation of Sterkstroom Community Hall 2,326,119
Street light project 204,963
Approved but not yet contracted for:  
None 

Total 
  

-  
 

3,553,274 

This expenditure will be financed from:

- External Loans 
  

-  
 

-  

- Government Grants 
  

-  
 

3,553,274 

- Own resources 
  

-  
 

-  

- District Council Grants 
  

-  
 

-  
  

-  
 

3,553,274 

32.9 Operating leases 

Operating leases – as lessor  2013 2012 
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Minimum lease payments due 

Within one year 
  

85,533  
 

76,992 

In second to fifth year inclusive 
  

-  
 

-  

After five years 
  

-  
 

-  

Total 
  

85,533  
 

76,992 

Operating Leases consists of the following: 
 
The Municipality's investment property is primarily held to generate rental income.  Lease agreements 
are renewed and are renewable on an annual basis.  
 

33 Defined contribution plan 
The following is a defined contribution plan. These contributions have been expensed.  

    
On retirement of an employee Council has post retirement obligation to contribute 70% 
to the medical cost of the employee. 

 

    
Number of members  4 4
Annual Cost    

104,216  
 

74,837 

34 CONTINGENCIES 

34.1 Contingent assets 
None 

34.2 Contingent liability 
None 

35 IN-KIND DONATIONS AND ASSISTANCE 

The Municipality received the following in-kind donations and assistance 

Description 

Intervention team from the Department of Local Government and Traditional Affairs. 
(Operation clean audit) 

36 RELATED PARTIES 

Related party Transactions 

Details Business interest 
Transactions 
amount 

Management 
Municipal Manager- G Sigojo N/A N/A 
Chief Finance Officer- L Labuschagne  N/A  N/A 
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Corporate Services- S Dyantyi N/A N/A 
Community Services-M Dingani  N/A  N/A 
Acting Technical Services-P Packer 
 
 
 
 
 

The  councilors have disclosures of business interests in the Declaration of Interest Register: 

Councilors 
 
 

Details Designation 
Business 
interest 

Transactions 
amount 

M N Qamngwana 
Mayor / 
Speaker  N/A  N/A 

K J Jonga Councilors 
 Public 
Transport  

N Yaliwe Councilors  N/A  N/A 
N N Cwebi Councilors  N/A  N/A 
G X Mkhubukeli-Lufele Councilors  N/A  N/A 
C H Guda Councilors  N/A  N/A 
C M Botha Councilors  Handy House  17,828  

  

 

36.1 Loans granted to Related Parties 

In terms of the MFMA, the municipality may not grant loans to its Councilors, Management, Staff and Public with 
effect from 1 July 2004. 

36.2  Compensation of Related Parties 

Compensation of Key Management Personnel and Councilors is set out in Notes 21 and 22 respectively, to the 
Annual Financial Statements.  

  

37 KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY AND JUDGEMENTS 
The following areas involve a significant degree of estimation uncertainty: 

Nature Carrying amount 
Useful lives and residual values of property, plant, and equipment 

Provision for rehabilitation of landfill sites (discount rate used, number of 
years, amount of cash flows) 

Fair rate of 
return is used 
when calculating 
the provision. 
The provision is 
subject to 
estimates used 
and historical 
trends                 462,426 

Provision for doubtful debts  
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45,436,539 
Impairment of assets 

The following areas involved judgments, apart from those involving estimations disclosed above, that management 
has made in the process of applying the municipality's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on 
the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets 

Provision for rehabilitation of landfill sites (discount rate used, number of 
years, amount of cash flows) 

Provisions bases 
on assessments 
done by 
professional 
consultants see above 

38 PRIOR YEAR ERRORS 

During the year the following adjustments were made to transactions 
whereby amounts were erroneously stated in the previous financial period 2013 2012 

The correction of the error results in adjustments as follows: 

Statement of Financial Position 

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions-(over billing water 
debtors) 2,064,737 

Unspent Conditional grants that should have been surrendered (300,000) 

Cash & Cash Equivalent being bank interest not debited                          -   (4) 

Trade debtors - with credit balances                          -   1,442,612 

Consumers- Deposits                          -   (47,546) 

Trade payables-being creditors not raised prior year                          -   788,260 

Trade payables- being orders duplicated                          -   (420,610) 

Borrowings-being CHDM-Loan written off                          -   (2,069,011) 

Trade debtors -being age analysis error                          -   (18,000) 

Unspent Conditional grants that should have been surrendered 2,808,000 

Accumulated Surplus 
  

1,764,737 2,483,702 

Change in accounting policy measurement of Assets 

Property Plant and Equipment prior year error                          -   34,591,653 

Accumulated Surplus                          -   34,591,653 

39 RISK MANAGEMENT 
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39.1 Maximum credit risk exposure 

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The municipality only deposits cash 
with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party. 

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluates credit risk relating to customers on 
an ongoing basis. 

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows: 2013 2012 

Standard Bank                          -                            -   

Trade and other receivables 
  

3,032,773               5,042,315 

These balances represent the maximum exposure to credit risk. 
The municipality is exposed to a guarantee for the overdraft facilities. 
 
 
 

39.2 Liquidity risk 

The municipality’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The municipality 
manages liquidity risk through an on-going review of future commitments and credit facilities. 

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilized borrowing facilities are monitored. 

40 COMPARISON WITH THE BUDGET    

The comparison of the Municipality’s actual financial performance with that budgeted is set out in Note 42 and 43 

41 GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION       

 
The Municipality is heavily dependent on Government Grants and Subsidies  this is because of the small revenue 
base of the Municipality which is unlikely to expand overtime   
The liquidity ratio shows that the Municipality is faced with challenges meeting its obligations. 

Conclusion 

Although the Municipality is faced with these challenges, it will continue with its operations as a going concern 
in the foreseeable future as long the grants are still received from the upper sphere of government.
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42 COMPARISON OF ACTUAL FIGURES TO FINAL BUDGET 

2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 

R R R R R R R 

(Original 
Approved 
Budget) 

(Adjustme
nts) 

(Final 
Approved 
Budget) 

Final 
Vireme

nts 
Final Year-
end Budget (Actual) 

Unautho
rized 

Expendi
ture 

Varianc
e 

% of 
Varian

ce 
Explanations for material variances 

REVENUE BY SOURCE 

Property rates 
         
5,746,256  

       
(3,198,274) 

       
2,547,982  

       
2,547,982  4,881,197 2,333,215  92% Budgeted on actual revenue collected in prior year 

Service charges 
         
4,691,000  

        
2,344,256  

       
7,035,256  

       
7,035,256  13,698,211 6,662,955  95% Budgeted on actual revenue collected in prior year 

Rental of facilities and equipment 
              
80,110  

            
21,115  

          
101,225  

          
101,225  121,217 19,992  20% Did not budget for interest on investments 

Interest earned - external 
investments 

                   
-    

                  
-    46,271 46,271  Did not budget for interest on outstanding accounts 

Interest earned - outstanding 
debtors 

                   
-    

                  
-    2,343,665 2,343,665  

Fines 
            
218,000  

          
(143,000) 

            
75,000  

            
75,000  51,308 (23,692) -32% 

Licenses and permits 
            
180,000  

                   
-    

          
180,000  

          
180,000  (180,000) -100% This is included  in other revenue 

Agency services 
         
8,901,185  

       
(2,097,677) 

       
6,803,508  

       
6,803,508  (6,803,508) -100% This is included  in Govt Grants should be R6047m 

Government Grants and Subsidies 
– Operating 

        
21,133,000  

                   
-    

      
21,133,000  

     
21,133,000  40,119,327 18,986,327  90% 

MIG Grant was not budgeted for in the I & E but under 
Capital Expenditure 
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Other revenue 
         
1,184,000  

             
(1,014) 

       
1,182,986    

       
1,182,986  3,398,213   2,215,227  187% Library Subsidy included,  

Total Operating Revenue 
        
42,133,551  

       
(3,074,594) 

      
39,058,957  

     
39,058,957  64,659,410 25,600,453  66% 

EXPENDITURE BY TYPE 

Employee related costs 
        
19,105,893  

           
700,355  

      
19,806,248  

     
19,806,248  19,008,505 797,743 4% 

Staff resigned.  IPASS manager budgeted for, but not 
appointed. 

Remuneration of councilors 
         
1,902,937  

           
(85,128) 

       
1,817,809  

       
1,817,809  1,872,447 (54,638) -3% 

Debt impairment 
         
7,080,838  

                   
-    

       
7,080,838  

       
7,080,838  7,612,196 (531,358) -8% Under budget 

Depreciation & asset impairment 
            
713,025  

              
1,001  

          
714,026  

          
714,026  9,977,809 (9,263,783) 

-
1297% 

Finance charges 
                     
-    

                   
-    

                   
-    

                  
-    245,283  (245,283) Did not budget for finance charges. 

Bulk purchases 
         
5,200,636  

                   
-    

       
5,200,636  

       
5,200,636  4,403,299 797,337 15% 

Nola Factory is being supplied by Eskom and not 
municipality 

Other materials 
         
6,357,886  

           
(18,830) 

       
6,339,056  

       
6,339,056  3,311,157  3,027,899 48% Cash flow challenges made it difficult to execute budget. 

Contracted services 
                   
-    

                  
-    51,171 (51,171) Budgeted under other expenditure. 

Other expenditure 
         
7,630,768  

       
(1,124,689) 

       
6,506,079    

       
6,506,079  10,772,314 (4,266,235) -66% Decreased to accommodate the salary increase 

Total Operating Expenditure 
        
47,991,983  

          -
527,291  

      
47,464,692    

     
47,464,692  57,254,181   (9,789,489) -21% 

Surplus /Deficit 
        
(5,858,432) 

       
(2,547,303) 

      
(8,405,735)   

      
(8,405,735) 

         
7,405,229    15,810,964 -188% 
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43.  ACTUAL VERSUS BUDGET (ACQUISTION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT) 

2013 2013 2013 2013   

Actual / Under 
Construction Budget Variance Variance 

Explanation for Significant Variances  greater than 10% vs 
Budget 

R R R %   

Infrastructure                        -    0% 

Roads             6,817,078             8,147,662             1,330,585 16% Being funds transferred to Masakhe hall 

                       -    

                       -    

Community Assets                        -    

Halls            5,128,604             3,798,019           (1,330,585) -35% Being funds transferred from Sokoyi Bridge 

                       -    

Other Assets 

Other Assets               860,524  860,524                        -    0% 

Total           12,806,205            12,806,205                        -    0% 

SCHEDULE OF EXTERNAL LOANS  
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EXTERNAL LOANS  
Loan 

number 
 Redeemable 

Date 
Balance at 30 

June 2012 

Received 
during the 

period 

Redeemed / written 
off during the 

period 
Balance at 30 

June 2013 

Carrying Value of 
Property, Plant & 

Equipment 

Other Costs in 
accordance with 

MFMA 

      R R R R R R 

LONG-TERM LOANS           

            

                               -                                                -                      -    

Telephone Equipment               132,722                    -                      -              132,722                    -                      -    

Vehicles                 60,853                    -                      -                60,853      

Wesbank  DDL52169B                      -                      -                      -                      -        

Wesbank  DDL55360J                18,156                    -              (18,156)                    (0)      

Wesbank  DDL55644V                21,775                    -              (21,775)                    (0)                    -                      -    

Other Leases  Various              182,972                    -              (45,797)            137,175      

Deferred Finance Charges  All              (27,292)            (27,292)      

                                  -    

TOTAL EXTERNAL LOANS            2,458,196                    -         (2,154,739)            303,457                    -                      -    
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SCHEDULE OF EXTERNAL LOANS  

EXTERNAL LOANS  
Loan 

number 

 
Redeem

able 
Date 

Balance 
at 30 
June 
2012 

Receive
d during 

the 
period 

Redeemed 
/ written off 
during the 

period 

Balance 
at 30 

June 2013 

Carrying 
Value of 
Property, 
Plant & 

Equipment 

Other 
Costs in 
accorda
nce with 
MFMA 

      R R R R R R 

LONG-TERM LOANS           

            

             
                 

-                                                -   
                 

-    

Telephone Equipment     
          
132,722  

                 
-                      -   

          
132,722                    -   

                 
-    

Vehicles     
            
60,853  

                 
-                      -   

            
60,853      

Wesbank 

 
DDL52169

B    
                  
-    

                 
-                      -   

                  
-        

Wesbank 
 

DDL55360J    
            
18,156  

                 
-    

          
(18,156)  

                  
(0)      

Wesbank 

 
DDL55644

V    
            
21,775  

                 
-    

          
(21,775)  

                  
(0)                    -   

                 
-    

Other Leases  Various    
          
182,972  

                 
-    

          
(45,797)  

          
137,175      

Deferred Finance Charges  All    
          
(27,292)  

          
(27,292)      

                
                 

-    

TOTAL EXTERNAL 
LOANS     

       
2,458,196  

                 
-    

     
(2,154,739)  

          
303,457                    -   

                  
-    
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5.2 GRANTS 
 
 

COMMENT ON OPERATING TRANSFERS AND GRANTS: 
 
Note: For Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG) see T5.8.3. For other conditional transfers including 
Neighborhood Development Partnership Grant (NDPG); Public Transport Infrastructure and Systems Grant 
(PITS) see Appendix L. 
 
Delete Directive note once comment is completed – Comment on the variances in the above table and 
other and indicate high value projects & total the remaining project. 

T 5.2.2 

 
 

5.3 ASSET MANAGEMENT 
 
 

INTRODUCTION TO ASSET MANAGEMENT 
 
Delete Directive note once comment is completed - Provide a brief overview on Asset Management as 
practiced within your organisation and outline the key elements of your Asset Management Policy. Explain 
how asset management is organised, the staff involved and the key delegations.  Describe key issues under 
development.  Indicate the approach to capacity development for this activity. Refer to the illustrations of 
asset management approach in relation to the new assets set out below. 

T 5.3.1 

 
 
 

COMMENT ON ASSET MANAGEMENT: 
 
 
Delete Directive note once comment is completed – With reference to the three projects approved in the 
year, set out above, describe how these projects were evaluated from a cost and revenue perspective, 
including Municipal tax and tariff implications (See MFMA section 19 (2) (a) & (b) and MSA section 74 (2) 
(d), (e) & (i)).  Ensure that these projects are maintained on files that are readily accessible for audit 
inspection.  Financial data regarding asset management may be sourced from MBRR Table A9 

T 5.3.3 
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COMMENT ON REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURE: 
 
Delete Directive note once comment is completed – Comment on adequacy of Repair & Maintenance 
Expenditure and variances show in T5.3.4 above and on the implications of the proportion of operating 
budget spend on repairs and maintenance over the past four years set out below. Note that the repairs and 
maintenance expenditure in T5.3.4 must reconcile with the operational repairs and maintenance expenditure 
for all services set out in Chapter 3. 

T 5.3.4.1 

 

COMPONENT B: SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGET 

 

INTRODUCTION TO SPENDING AGAINST CAPITAL BUDGET 
 

Delete Directive note once comment is completed – Capital expenditure relates mainly to construction 
projects that will have value lasting over many years.  Capital expenditure is funded from grants, borrowings 
and operating expenditures and surpluses.  Component B deals with capital spending indicating where the 
funding comes from and whether Municipalities are able to spend the available funding as planned. In this 
component it is important to indicate the different sources of funding as well as how these funds are spend.  
Highlight the 5 largest projects (see T5.7.1) and indicate what portion of the capital budget they use. In the 
introduction briefly refer to these key aspects of capital expenditure (usually relating to new works and 
renewal projects) and to Appendices M (relating to the new works and renewal programs), N (relating to 
the full programme of full capital projects, and O (relating to the alignment of projects to wards). 

T 5.5.0 

 

5.5 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
 

 
T 5.5.1 

 

5.6 SOURCES OF FINANCE 
 
 

COMMENT ON SOURCES OF FUNDING: 
 
 
Delete Directive note once comment is completed – Explain any variations from the approved budget of 
more than 10% and discuss the total capital expenditure as a viable proportion of total expenditure. 
 

T 5.6.1.1 

 
 
 

5.7 CAPITAL SPENDING ON 5 LARGEST PROJECTS 
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COMMENT ON CAPITAL PROJECTS: 
 
Delete Directive note once comment is completed - Provide information in the template above on the 5 
largest projects, ranked according to their approved budget provision year 0. Comment on the variance 
between the original and adjustment budgets and on availability of future Budget provision to operate the 
projects and lessons learnt in the year about capital project implementation on time to budget.  

T 5.7.1.1 

 

5.8 BASIC SERVICE AND INFRASTRUCTURE BACKLOGS – OVERVIEW 
 

INTRODUCTION TO BASIC SERVICE AND INFRASTRUCTURE BACKLOGS 
 
Delete Directive note once comment is completed – Explain that need and cost of backlogs are the 
result of migration into an area; migration out of an area; the trend towards disaggregation of families into 
more than one housing unit; and the cost of renewing and upgrading core infrastructure. Explain how this 
balance effects net demand in your municipality and how your municipality is responding to the challenges 
created.                                                                                                                   

T 5.8.1 

 
 
 

COMMENT ON BACKLOGS: 
 
Delete Directive note once comment is completed - Comment on how MIG grants have been utilized to 
redress the backlogs and on the variances in T 5.8.3. If appropriate, comment that Appendix P contains 
details of schools and clinics that have been established that do not have ready access to one or more basic 
services and Appendix Q contains details of those services provided by other spheres of government 
(whether the municipality is involved on an agency basis or not) that carry significant backlogs. 

T 5.8.4 

 
 

COMPONENT C: CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTS 

 
 

INTRODUCTION TO CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Delete Directive note once comment is completed – Give a brief comment on the importance of cash 
flow management. Refer to the scope of this activity as indicated in this component and what you regard as 
the key management features of your municipality’s approach. Refer to any other cash flow issues of current 
relevance to your municipality that are not adequately provided for in the format of this component.  

T 5.9 
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5.9 CASH FLOW 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMENT ON CASH FLOW OUTCOMES: 
 
Delete Directive note once comment is completed - Supply a brief summary about the cash flow status 
of the municipality. Explain variances from Original and Adjustment Budget to Actual. Include information on 
operating activities and what effect they had on cash flow and on cash backing of surpluses. Information 
regarding cash flow may be sourced from Table A7 of the MBRR. 

T 5.9.1.1 

 

5.10 BORROWING AND INVESTMENTS 
 
 

INTRODUCTION TO BORROWING AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Delete Directive note once comment is completed – Explain briefly the relevance of borrowing and 
investments to you municipality with reference to the tables below and your municipality’s requirements in 
the year. Information may be sourced from table SA3 AND SA15 in the MBRR. 

    T 5.10.1 

 
 
 
 

 
T 5.10.3 
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COMMENT ON BORROWING AND INVESTMENTS: 
 
Delete Directive note once comment is completed – Make clarifying comments on the above tables as 
necessary.  All investments whether in the form of loans (in cash or kind) made by the municipality but not to 
one or more of the organisations set out above and all grants (in cash or kind) made to any form of 
organization must be set out in full at Appendix R. 

T 5.10.5 

 

COMPONENT D: OTHER FINANCIAL MATTERS 

 
 

5.12 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 
 
 

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 
 
Delete Directive note once comment is completed - Provide a brief narrative that describes the progress 
made by your municipality in developing and implementing policies and practices in compliance with the 
guidelines set out in SCM Regulations 2005. State the number of Supply Chain officials that have reached 
the prescribed levels required for their positions (See MFMA Competency Regulation Guidelines) and state 
the number of prescribed officials that are yet to reach the necessary competency levels; and set out any 
remarks made in the previous Auditor-General’s report or the report for year 0 concerning the quality of 
Supply Chain Management and detail the remedial action taken. Note comments made in Chapter 2, under 
section 2.8. 

T 5.12.1 

 
 

5.13 GRAP COMPLIANCE 
 
 

GRAP COMPLIANCE 
 

GRAP is the acronym for Generally Recognized Accounting Practice and it provides the rules by which 
municipalities are required to maintain their financial accounts. Successful GRAP compliance will ensure 
that municipal accounts are comparable and more informative for the municipality. It will also ensure that the 
municipality is more accountable to its citizens and other stakeholders. Information on GRAP compliance is 
needed to enable National Treasury to assess the pace of progress and consider the implications.  The 
Municipality did not deviate from GRAP requirements and prepared the Annual Financial Statements for the 
period 2012/2013 in compliance with GRAP 
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CHAPTER 6 – AUDITOR GENERAL AUDIT FINDINGS 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 
The Constitution S188 (1) (b) states that the functions of the Auditor-General includes the auditing and 
reporting on the accounts, financial statements and financial management of all municipalities. MSA section 
45 states that the results of performance measurement… must be audited annually by the Auditor-General. 
The Annual Financial Statements set out in Volume II of this report were prepared in accordance to GRAP 
and submitted along with performance report for audit within a prescribed timeframe, The Audit report and 
the Action plan is set out below.   

T 6.0.1 
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Finding 
# 

Finding Management comment Action Plan Due Date Responsible 
Official 

Status 

1 Capital commitments are not disclosed on the 
financial statements  

During the audit of commitments it was noted 
that the annual financial statements reflected 
no disclosure for capital commitments. From 
inspected service level agreements, the general 
ledger and the contract register it was confirmed 
that there are contracts which were not yet 
settled in full 

 

Some of the amounts were either, 
cancelled or were settled in full or 
were due to be paid by CHDM  

A register of 
commitments 
will be 
maintained 

Immediately CFO  
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2 Qualifications in comparative amounts  

During the work performed it was noted that due 
to the prior year disclaimer of audit opinion, a 
qualified opinion will be issued in the current 
year on comparative amounts regarding the prior 
year disclaimer opinion 

The cause of the finding is that the 
municipality did not adjust prior material 
errors  

The impact is that the Annual Financial 
Statements may contain inaccuracies and 
not provide users of the financial statements 
with understandable and useful information. 
This will result in a modification of the audit 
report. 

No comment received Year-end 
adjustment must 
be processed 
and opening 
balances 
adjusted to 
reflect these 
changes. A TB 
with year-end 
adjustments 
should be 
produced, 
reviewed and 
agreed to the AG 
Schedule. 

Immediately CFO  

1 Capital commitments are not disclosed on the 
financial statements  

During the audit of commitments it was noted 
that the annual financial statements reflected 
no disclosure for capital commitments. From 
inspected service level agreements, the general 
ledger and the contract register it was confirmed 
that there are contracts which were not yet 
settled in full 

Some of the amounts were either, 
cancelled or were settled in full or 
were due to be paid by CHDM  

A register of 
commitments 
will be 
maintained 

Immediately CFO  
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2 Qualifications in comparative amounts  

During the work performed it was noted that due 
to the prior year disclaimer of audit opinion, a 
qualified opinion will be issued in the current 
year on comparative amounts regarding the prior 
year disclaimer opinion 

No management comment has been 
submitted 

AG Adjustments 
must be 
processed and 
2013/2014 
opening balances 
reviewed to 
ensure 
correctness. 

Immediately CFO  

8 SARS balance overstated 

The SARS balance owing and disclosed in the 
financial statements does not agree to the SARS 
confirmation. 

Management comment has not been 
submitted. 

 

A reconciliation 
of amounts 
owing to SARS 
will be 
performed 
monthly.  

Monthly CFO  

12 Distribution losses not disclosed in the financial 
statements  

During the audit of the financial statements, 
it was noted that the municipality has not 
taken distribution losses for water and 
electricity into consideration and the notes 
to the annual financial statement do not 
include these potentially material losses for 

Finding 
acknowledged.  Management will 
ensure that this is recorded in the 
new financial year. 

 

Water and 
Electricity losses 
will be reconciled 
on a monthly 
basis. 

Monthly CFO  
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the year. 

Using approximate losses for a neighbouring 
municipality, this was determined to be material 

42 Non-adherence with GRAP in the financial 
statements 

During the performance of the GRAP 
Checklist the following items were noted: 

• Cash flow from investing activities have 
not been clearly identified in the 
financial statements  

• Level of rounding has been disclosed in 
the basis of accounting note to the 
financial statements  

• Material prior period errors have not 
been correctly retrospectively disclosed  

• In the financial statements on 
accounting policy note number 1.8 on 
the classification of financial 
instruments other receivables from 
exchange transactions is listed under 
financial liabilities and the category for 
the financial liabilities is said to be 
financial asset measured at amortized 
cost  

• Commitments are not disclosed in the 
financial statements although the 
municipality does have 

 Finding acknowledged 

 

Produce a draft 
AFS by May 2014 
to allow 
adequate review 

May 2014 CFO  
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financial commitments 
• No investment property is disclosed in 

the financial statements although the 
Municipality does have investment 
property  

• The types of risks that Municipality is 
exposed to are not disclosed in the 
financial statements  

• No disclosure note for financial 
instruments as required by paragraphs 
102 to 132 of GRAP 104  

• The municipality did not disclose a 
descriptive paragraph regarding 
valuation roll and rate  

• In the statement of financial 
performance fines are classified as 
revenue from non-exchange 
transactions and not revenue from 
exchange transactions 

 

 

43 Deviation not included in the notes to the AFS 

During the audit of Procurement and Contract 
Management it has been identified that  the 
following deviations for transactions between 30 
000- 200 000 have not been included in the  

Finding acknowledged. 

 

Produce a draft 
AFS by May 2014 
to allow 
adequate review 

May 2014 CFO  
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list of Deviation 2012/13

 

 

 

48 GRAP 24 has not been fully implemented  

During the audit of GRAP 24 it has been 
noted that the municipality did not disclose 
budgetary basis and classification basis 
adopted for the preparation and 
presentation of approved budgets which will 
assist users to understand better the 
relationship between the budget and 
accounting information disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by 
paragraph 41 of GRAP 24. 

 During the audit of GRAP 24 it has been 
noted that the municipality did not budget 
for assets and liabilities, it is a requirement 
of GRAP 24 that comparison is done 
between actual amounts and budgeted 
amounts, this comparison will not be 
possible if there is no budget for the items 
disclosed on the financial statements. 

Finding acknowledged. 

 

Produce a draft 
AFS by May 2014 
to allow 
adequate review 

May 2014 CFO  
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There is no explanation for some Not all 
material variance have been provided an 
explanation for,  

  

The budget is disclosed as an appendix in the 
annual financial statements not as a note as 
required by GRAP 24. 

  

The accounting policy does not address 
requirements of GRAP 24. 

  

The budget information does not agree with 
annual financial statements and approved budget 

50 Investment property has not been disclosed at 
fair value in the AFS 

On inspection of the fixed asset register it 
was identified that the property "Plaaslike 
Oorgangs-Molteno-Erf no.79 with asset no.IS 
1427 with a carrying book value of R 284 

No comment received from 
management 

All rented 
properties will be 
listed and 
recorded 
appropriately 

Immediately CFO  
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195.99 as at 30 June 2013 meets the 
definition of investment property as per 
GRAP 16 but it has not been disclosed at fair 
value in the face of the statement of 
financial position as well as in the disclosure 
note to the annual financial statements. 
Rental income is received for this property at 
R318.00 per each five tenants per month. 

 

56 Useful life used not according to the accounting 
policy 

According to paragraph 1.3 of the accounting 
policy the useful life of buildings was 
assessed as 30 years but the depreciation 
calculated as per the asset fixed register was 
based on 43 years of useful life. 

 

Finding acknowledged.  Accounting 
Policy will be updated to reflect 
the actual applied methods used 
by the municipality 

 

Update the 
accounting policy 

June 2014 CFO  

93 Leave, Service Bonus accruals incorrectly 
classified as a provision  

The Municipality is currently paying bonuses, 
which is equal to one month’s salary (cost to 
company) during the employee's birthday 
month. If an employee only worked for part 

We are in agreement with the 
audit finding.  Will be correctly 
classified when adjusting AFS 

 

Ensure correct 
Classification of 
accruals 

June 2014 CFO  
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of the year, the bonus will be calculated pro-
rata based on the actual months employed.  

There is no uncertainty about the amount to 
be paid out nor the timing of the outflow of 
economic benefits, therefore should the 
bonus be accounted for as an accrual. 

  

94 CCMA accrual incorrect 

During the audit of provisions, it was 
identified hat a provision was raised under 
the item "CCMA" 

Further audit work revealed that this item 
was raised in the prior year, and on 
inspecting the supporting information, it was 
deemed that the recognition criteria for a 
provision had not been met.  A present 
obligation due to a legal ruling was not 
found.  The party assisting has no legal 
recourse. 

 

No comment received from 
management 

Produce a draft 
AFS by May 2014 
to allow 
adequate review 

May 2014 CFO  

96 Annual financial statements not appropriately 
We are in agreement with the 
audit finding.  Will be correctly Produce a draft 

AFS by May 2014 
May 2014 CFO  
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presented  

The Municipality has incorrect disclosed 
Trade and Other Receivables from exchange 
transaction as R 5 097 510.64 on the 
Statement of Financial Position. 

  

The R 5 097 510.64 includes R 2 364 724 for 
Rates which should have been disclosed as 
Trade and Other Receivables from Non-
exchange Transactions. 

 

classified when adjusting AFS 

 

to allow 
adequate review 

97 
Impairment of individual debtors 

Through inspection of the age analysis for 
the year under review it has been noted that 
there are debtors outstanding for more than 
180 days and no impairment test has been 
performed as required by GRAP 104 
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS. 

 

Discussed with auditor  

 

Produce a draft 
AFS by May 2014 
to allow 
adequate review 

May 2014 CFO  

98 Provision for bad debt calculation  
Discussed with auditor  

Produce a draft 
AFS by May 2014 

May 2014 CFO  
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During the audit of provision for bad debts 
the following has been noted: 

 The debtors have not been split according to 
Customer type i.e. Residential, Business, 
Indigent and Government as is required. 

 The same rate of impairment was used for 
different types of customers and the 
recoverability of receivables in terms of the 
Standard has not been performed. 

 Based on evaluation of the error, the 
receivables (Trade) are overstated by a 
projected amount of R 207 712 

to allow 
adequate review 

101 Amount disclosed on the AFS is overstated  

During the audit of other debtors it has been 
noted that no movements occurred on some of 
the accounts  

 Finding acknowledged. 

 

Produce a draft 
AFS by May 2014 
to allow 
adequate review 

May 2014 CFO  

102 Opening balance does not agree to prior year 
Closing balance 

During the audit of Trade receivables in the 
financial statements the following 
misstatements were noted: 

No management response has been 
received. 

 

Produce a draft 
AFS by May 2014 
to allow 
adequate review 

May 2014 CFO  
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 The opening balance of Trade receivables in 
the financial statements does not agree to 
the audited closing balance in the prior year 
financial statements. 

 

104 The amount of related parties is not disclosed 
on the financial statements**  

During the audit of related parties and the 
disclosures in the annual financial 
statements it was confirmed that the related 
parties had been identified, but no values for 
transactions entered into with these parties 
had been disclosed. 

 

Agree with audit finding the note 
will be adjusted.   Handy 
House R17, 827.99 

 

Produce a draft 
AFS by May 2014 
to allow 
adequate review 

May 2014 CFO  

105 Balances incorrect  

During the audit of accumulated surplus in 
the financial statements misstatements were 
noted: 

 

This journal was given to Wilfred. 

 

Produce a draft 
AFS by May 2014 
to allow 
adequate review 

May 2014 CFO  
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106 Incorrect application of GRAP 3  

Accumulated surplus in the financial 
statements is misstated because of the 
following errors : 

• The prior year errors were 
incorrectly disclosed in the error 
note under the current year 
instead of the prior year(2012)  

• The opening balance was not restated 
with the prior year errors, the prior year 
errors were incorrectly charged against 
the current year accumulated surplus  

The following prior year errors were 
incorrectly accounted for in the current 
year:             

•    Creditors that were not accounted for 
in the prior year  

•    Adjustment that was made to 
Revaluation surplus instead 
of accumulated surplus 

Journal has subsequently been given 
to auditors. 

 

Produce a draft 
AFS by May 2014 
to allow 
adequate review 

May 2014 CFO  

107 Equitable share figure disclosed on the AFS is 
different from DORA  

Awaiting response from National 
Treasury. Produce a draft 

AFS by May 2014 
to allow 

May 2014 CFO  
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Based on the audit work performed, 
it was identified that the Municipality 
disclosed Grant Revenue of R 15 325 000 on 
the financial statements for Equitable share 
received.  

According to the DoRA the Municipality was 
entitled to receive an allocation of R 17 833 
000. 

  

Per discussions held with the CFO, the 
difference relates to:   

R 2 808 000 was deducted by National 
Treasury for an unspent conditional grant 
amount in the prior year for which no 
rollover request had been submitted.  This 
amount had been spent and not surrendered 
to Treasury.  

R 300 000 was received at the end of the 
previous financial year, and was erroneously 
included in this financial year.   

 

 

adequate review
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110 Grant revenue and grant expenditure not 
recognized 

Conditions were met for some of the 
conditional grants. However grant revenue 
has not been recognized in the financial 
statements 

 

Finding acknowledged. 

 

Produce a draft 
AFS by May 2014 
to allow 
adequate review 

May 2014 CFO  

119 Planning:  The municipality does not have a 
system in place for identifying contingent 
liabilities  

During the audit it was noted that the 
municipality does not have a documented 
system or procedure in place for identifying 
contingent liabilities. 

There is no procedures or system in place for 
identifying contingent liabilities. 

The municipality does enquire 
from the legal department at year 
end, if there are any outstanding 
cases that might cost the 
municipality.   There is one case for 
retired employees but it has 
already been reported in the 
2011/12 financial year. 

Compile year end 
procedures 
manual and 
implement the 
manual 

May 2014 CFO  
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 ‘Together Advancing in Development’  

 

 

 

Accessibility 
indicators 

Explore whether the intended beneficiaries are able to access services or outputs.  

Accountability 
documents 

Documents used by executive authorities to give “full and regular” reports on the matters 
under their control to Parliament and provincial legislatures as prescribed by the 
Constitution. This includes plans, budgets, in-year and Annual Reports.  

Activities The processes or actions that use a range of inputs to produce the desired outputs and 
ultimately outcomes. In essence, activities describe "what we do". 

Adequacy indicators The quantity of input or output relative to the need or demand. 
Annual Report A report to be prepared and submitted annually based on the regulations set out in 

Section 121 of the Municipal Finance Management Act. Such a report must include 
annual financial statements as submitted to and approved by the Auditor-General. 

Approved Budget The annual financial statements of a municipality as audited by the Auditor General and 
approved by council or a provincial or national executive.  

Baseline Current level of performance that a municipality aims to improve when setting 
performance targets. The baseline relates to the level of performance recorded in a year 
prior to the planning period. 

Basic municipal 
service 

A municipal service that is necessary to ensure an acceptable and reasonable quality of 
life to citizens within that particular area. If not provided it may endanger the public health 
and safety or the environment.  

Budget year The financial year for which an annual budget is to be approved – means a year ending 
on 30 June.  

Cost indicators The overall cost or expenditure of producing a specified quantity of outputs.  
Distribution 
indicators 

The distribution of capacity to deliver services.  
 

Financial Statements Includes at least a statement of financial position, statement of financial performance, 
cash-flow statement, notes to these statements and any other statements that may be 
prescribed. 

General Key 
performance 
indicators 

After consultation with MECs for local government, the Minister may prescribe general key 
performance indicators that are appropriate and applicable to local government generally.  
 

Impact The results of achieving specific outcomes, such as reducing poverty and creating jobs. 
Inputs All the resources that contribute to the production and delivery of outputs. Inputs are "what 

we use to do the work". They include finances, personnel, equipment and buildings. 
Integrated 
Development Plan 
(IDP) 

Set out municipal goals and development plans.  

National Key 
performance areas 

• Service delivery & infrastructure 
• Economic development  
• Municipal transformation and institutional development  
• Financial viability and management 
• Good governance and community participation 
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Outcomes The medium-term results for specific beneficiaries that are the consequence of achieving 
specific outputs. Outcomes should relate clearly to an institution's strategic goals and 
objectives set out in its plans. Outcomes are "what we wish to achieve". 
 

Outputs The final products, or goods and services produced for delivery. Outputs may be defined 
as "what we produce or deliver". An output is a concrete achievement (i.e. a product such 
as a passport, an action such as a presentation or immunization, or a service such as 
processing an application) that contributes to the achievement of a Key Result Area. 

Performance 
Indicator 

Indicators should be specified to measure performance in relation to input, activities, 
outputs, outcomes and impacts.  An indicator is a type of information used to gauge the 
extent to 
which an output has been achieved (policy developed, presentation delivered, service 
rendered) 

Performance 
Information 

Generic term for non-financial information about municipal services and activities. Can 
also be used interchangeably with performance measure.  
 

Performance 
Standards: 

The minimum acceptable level of performance or the level of performance that is 
generally accepted. Standards are informed by legislative requirements and service-level 
agreements. Performance standards are mutually agreed criteria to describe how well 
work must be done in terms of quantity and/or quality and timeliness, to clarify the outputs 
and related activities of a job by describing what the required result should be. In this 
EPMDS performance standards are divided into indicators and the time factor. 
 

Performance Targets: The level of performance that municipalities and its employees strive to achieve. 
Performance Targets relate to current baselines and express a specific level of 
performance that a municipality aims to achieve within a given time period.  
 

Service Delivery 
Budget 
Implementation Plan 

Detailed plan approved by the mayor for implementing the municipality’s delivery of 
services; including projections of the revenue collected and operational and capital 
expenditure by vote for each month. Service delivery targets and performance indicators 
must also be included.  
 

Vote: One of the main segments into which a budget of a municipality is divided for 
appropriation of money for the different departments or functional areas of the 
municipality. The Vote specifies the total amount that is appropriated for the purpose of a 
specific department or functional area.  
Section 1 of the MFMA defines a “vote” as: 
a) one of the main segments into which a budget of a municipality is divided for the 
appropriation of money for the different departments or functional areas of the 
municipality; and 
b) which specifies the total amount that is appropriated for the purposes of the department 
or functional area concerned 
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APPENDIX A – COUNCILLORS; COMMITTEE ALLOCATION AND COUNCIL ATTENDANCE 
 

Councilors, Committees Allocated and Council Attendance 

Council 
Members 

Full Time 
/ Part 
Time 

Committees 
Allocated 

*Ward and/ or 
Party 

Represented 

Percentage 
Council 

Meetings 
Attendance 

Percentage 
Apologies 
for non-

attendance 
  

FT/PT 
% % 

Cllr M.N 
Qamngwana 

Full Time Budget and 
Treasury 

PR1 100%   

Cllr S.X 
Mkubukeli-Lufele 

Part Time Corporate 
Service 

21303004 100%   

Cllr C.M Botha Part Time MPAC PR1 100%   

Cllr N.N Cwebi Part Time Technical 
Services 

21303003 100%   

Cllr N Yaliwe Part Time Special 
Programs 

21303002 100%   

Cllr C.H Guda Part Time MPAC PR1 100%   

Cllr K.J Jonga Part Time Community 
Services and 
LED 

21303001 100%   

Note: * Councilors appointed on a proportional basis do not have wards allocated to them T A 
 
 

APPENDIX B – COMMITTEES AND COMMITTEE PURPOSES  

 
Committees (other than Mayoral / Executive Committee) and Purposes of Committees 

Municipal Committees Purpose of Committee

  

Municipal Public Accounts Committee Oversight 

    

    

    T B 
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APPENDIX C – WARD REPORTING 

 
Functionality of Ward Committees 

Ward 
Name 

(Number) 

Name of Ward 
Councilor and 
elected Ward 

committee members 

Committee 
established  
(Yes / No) 

Number of 
monthly 

Committee 
meetings held 

during the 
year 

Number of 
monthly 
reports 

submitted to 
Speakers 

Office on time 

Number of 
quarterly 

public ward 
meetings 

held during 
year 

1 NOFUNGILE 
MATROSS 

Yes 12 10 1

1 SIZAKELE LOLIWE Yes 12 10 1

1 FUNDISWA WAMBI Yes 12 10 1

1 THEMBINKOSI 
YEKANI 

Yes 12 10 1

1 NOMNIKELO LUBISI Yes 12 10 1

1 MAWETHU GODLO Yes 12 10 1

1 GLADYS NDIBI Yes 12 10 1

1 NDOYISILE 
BETHIWE 

Yes 12 10 1

1 NOBUZAKUBANI 
TJANTJIE 

Yes 12 10 1

1 NOTHETHI MALGAS Yes 12 10 1

2 YOLISWA MATHEBE Yes 12 10 1

2 PAUL KRUGER Yes 12 10 1

2 KHANYISA HAMZA Yes 12 10 1

2 NOMAWETHU 
SOKUTABA 

Yes 12 10 1

2 JESSICA PARKER Yes 12 10 1

2 JOYCE 
GROOTBOOM 

Yes 12 10 1

2 NTHUTHUZELO 
GAGAYI 

Yes 12 10 1
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2 SUTHERLAND 
MAGDALEEN 

Yes 12 10 1

2 SIPHO NDLANGA Yes 12 10 1

4 MZAMO THYALA Yes 12 10 1

4 MANTOMBI 
MANKAYI 

Yes 12 10 1

4 ZAMA MAMANI Yes 12 10 1

4 AGNES YEKANI Yes 12 10 1

4 ZOLANI FYN Yes 12 10 1

4 THEMBINKOSI 
NGCIKI 

Yes 12 10 1

4 THEMBISA HOKO Yes 12 10 1

4 CYNTHIA BUSHULA Yes 12 10 1

3 NOMTHANDAZO 
GADENI 

Yes 12 10 1

3 NONZAME YEKELO Yes 12 10 1

3 NOMAWETHU 
MONKI 

Yes 12 10 1

3 LUVUYO SIZANI Yes 12 10 1

3 NANDIPHA 
TYOKWANA 

Yes 12 10 1

3 SANDILE MBOSO Yes 12 10 1

3 MZIWAKHE BATYI Yes 12 10 1

3 ADEL MLILWANA Yes 12 10 1

3 NOKUBONGA 
FRANS 

Yes 12 10 1

3 LULEKA ULUWA Yes 12 10 1

          TC 
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 ‘Together Advancing in Development’

 

 

APPENDIX D- ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 

 

Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

  KPA2 BASIC SERVICES 

To ensure 
maintenan
ce of 
roads; 
storm 
water; 
drainage 
and 
streetlights 
(IDP-
Ensure 
that all 
house hold 
have 

The 
Municipality 
has 1100km 
rural and urban 
and 18.4km is 
sealed/tarred 
therefore will 
ensure that 
urban roads are 
sealed /tarred. 

Number of km 
to be 
sealed/tarred  

R 6000 000 R 6 594 440 60% of target 
achievement 

3KM to be sealed 
and tarred. 

3km have been 
sealed and 
tarred in the 
current year. 

The project 
was delayed 
in Molteno 
due to 
weather 
conditions 
but was 
completed. 

Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 

The 
Municipality 
has 1100km 

Number of km 
to be ripped 
and 

N/A N/A 80% of target 
achievement  

10km to be 
ripped and 
compacted 

8km have been 
ripped and 
compacted, 

The project 
could not be 
finished due 

Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

access to 
road). 

 

. 

rural and urban 
and 18.4km is 
sealed/tarred 
therefore will 
ensure that 
urban roads are 
sealed /tarred. 

compacted 
upgrade of 
roads to 
water works 

 

upgrade of roads 
to water works 

 

upgrade for 
water works. 

to financial 
constraints. 

Technical 
Manager 

The 
Municipality 
has 1100km 
rural and urban 
and 18.4km is 
sealed/tarred 
therefore will 
ensure that 
urban roads are 
sealed /tarred. 

 

 

Number of 
kms to be 
graveled 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

12km to be 
graveled per 
annum 

12km has been 
graveled               
in the current 
year. 

Completed Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

 The 
Municipality 
has 1100km 
rural and urban 
and 18.4km is 
sealed/tarred 
therefore will 
ensure that 
urban roads are 
sealed /tarred. 

Number of  
km to be 
painted and 
pedestrian 
crossing  

N/A N/A 90% of target 
achievement 

6km to be 
painted for 
pedestrian 
crossing 

6km painted for 
pedestrian 
crossing. 

Completed Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager. 

The 
Municipality 
has 1100km 
rural and urban 
and 18.4km is 
sealed/tarred 
therefore will 
ensure that 
urban roads are 
sealed /tarred. 

 

Number of 
Bridges to be 
constructed 

R 2 147 
662 

R 222 637 100% of 
target 
achievement 

1 Bridge to be 
constructed 

This target has 
not been 
achieved; we are 
still in the 
construction 
stage. 

 

There is 
significant 
progress in this 
project and we 
anticipate 
completion by 
the end of 
September 
2013. 

Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

To maintain 
blocked 
channels drains 
at Zwelitsha 
and Zola 

Reopening 
existing storm 
water 
channels at 
Zwelitsha and 
Zola 

 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

120m Reopening 
existing storm 
water channels 
at Zwelitsha and 
Zola 

280m Reopened 
existing storm 
water channels 
at Zwelitsha and 
Zola already 
done in 
December 2012. 

The project 
was done in 
house and is 
complete. 

Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 

To excavate of 
storm-water 
channels and 
drains at 
Sonwabile. 

Excavation of 
storm-water 
channels at 
Sonwabile 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

100m To 
excavate of 
storm-water 
channels and 
drains at 
Sonwabile 

100m excavation 
of storm-water 
channels and 
drains at 
Sonwabile 
completed. 

The project 
was done in 
house and is 
complete. 

Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 

 To ensure that 
the 18.4km of 
urban roads is 
adequately 
maintained 

 

Number of km 
to be 
maintained 

 

N/A N/A  18.4km of urban 
roads are 
adequately 
maintained. 

18.4kM of urban 
roads has been 
maintained. 

The project 
was done in 
house and is 
complete. 

Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

Electricity-
ensure 
that all 
communiti
es have 
appropriat
e 
community 
lighting. 

 

Ensure 
appropriate 
community 
lighting 
through 
replacement 
and 
maintenance of 
old dilapidated 
electrification 
infrastructure. 

number of 
replaced 
transformers 

N/A N/A 70% of target 
achievement 

6 Transformers 
to be replaced. 

2 Transformers 
have been 
replaced in the 
current year.  

The project 
could not be 
completed 
due to 
financial 
constraints. 

Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 

Ensure 
appropriate 
community 
lighting 
through 
replacement 
and 
maintenance of 
old dilapidated 
electrification 
infrastructure 

Number of 
maintained 
transformers 

  25% of target 
achievement 

18 transformers 
to be maintained 

2trans formers 
have been 
maintained for 
the year under 
review. 

 

The project 
could not be 
completed 
due to 
financial 
constraints. 

Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

Monitor 11kv 
net network 
through 
inspections and 
replacement of 
old poles at kV-
yards. 

number of 
inspections 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

12 inspections to 
be conducted. 

6 inspections 
were conducted 
in the current 
year. 

We could not 
conduct all 12 
inspections 
due to the 
electricity 
crisis in 
Molteno. 

 

 

Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 

 Monitor 11kv 
net network 
through 
inspections and 
replacement of 
old poles at KV 
yards. 

 

Number of 
replaced 
poles at kv 
yards 

  70% of target 
achievement 

6 to be replaced 
at kv yards 

Target not 
achieved. 

The project 
could not be 
done due to 
financial 
constraints. 

Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

Monitor 
electricity 
losses and non-
payment 
through routine 
checks and cut 
offs. 

Number of 
routine spot 
checks 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

12 routine spot 
checks to be 
conducted. 

6 routine spot 
checks were 
conducted. 

We could not 
conduct all 12 
inspections 
due to the 
electricity 
crisis in 
Molteno. 

 

Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 

Monitor 
electricity 
losses and non-
payment 
through routine 
checks and cut 
offs. 

number of cut 
offs on non-
payments 

N/A N/A 80% of target 
achievement 

12 cut offs on 
non-payment 

8 were done for 
the year under 
review. 

We could not 
conduct all 12 
inspections 
due to the 
electricity 
crisis in 
Molteno. 

 

 

Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

 

Water-
Facilitate 
managemen
t of water 
demand and 
provision of 
high level of 
water 
services 

 

Facilitate 
management of 
water demand 
through 
metering of 
households. 

Number of 
water meters 
installed 

  60% of target 
achievement 

600 water 
meters to be 
installed. 

Target not 
achieved. 

Not done 
because of 
budgetary 
constraints. 

Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 

Provision and 
maintenance of 
high level of 
water services 
through testing 
of water 
sample and 
replacement of 
old water 
infrastructure. 

Number of 
test 
conducted 
externally 

 

 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

12 tests to be 
conducted 
externally. 

12 tests have 
been conducted 
externally. 

Completed Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 

Number of 
test 
conducted 
internally. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

120 test to be 
conducted 
internally 

Tests are 
conducted hourly 
on a daily basis 
and cannot be 

Completed Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

 

 

quantified. Manager 

Number of 
replaced old 
water pumps 

 

 

  20% of target 
achievement 

9 old water 
pumps to be 
replaced. 

2 old water 
pumps have been 
replaced. 

The 
outstanding 
work could 
not be 
completed 
due to 
budgetary 
constraints. 

 

Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 

Number of 
equipped & 
tested bore 
holes 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

8 equipped & 
tested bore holes 

Target not 
achieved. 

We could not 
conduct tests 
on bore holes 
due to the 
electricity 
crisis in 
Molteno. 

Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

% of 
compliance 
with SANS 241 
for ecoli 
(laboratory 
results ) 

N/A N/A 99% of target 
achievement 

99% compliance 
with SANS 241. 

99% compliance 
achieved with 
SANS 241 

Completed Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 

Ensure high 
quality of 
drinkable 
water 

% of Blue drop 
compliant(cer
tificate) 

 

N/A N/A 99% of target 
achievement 

99% compliance 
with SANS 241. 

99% compliance 
achieved with 
SANS 241 

Completed Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 

Sanitation-
Facilitate 
through 
ensuring 
that all 
household 
have 
access to 
affordable 
and 
appropriat

Encourage 
hygiene 
practices by 
ensuring high 
quality 
sanitation 
standards and 
conducting of 
awareness 
campaigns 

 

% of Green 
drop 
compliant(cer
tificate) 

 

N/A N/A 50% of target 
achievement 

100% of Green 
drop 
compliance. 

100% of Green 
drop 
compliance. 

Completed Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 

Number of 
awareness 
campaigns to 
be conducted. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

4 Awareness 
campaigns to be 
conducted 

4 Awareness 
campaign 
conducted. 

Conducted Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

e 
sanitation 
services 
that 
encourage 
hygiene 
practices 

 

Manager 

Facilitate the 
upgrading and 
maintenance of 
the sanitation 
infrastructure. 

Upgrading of 
the sewerage 
network in 
Sterkstroom 

 

- - 70% of target 
achievement 

Upgrading 3 
phases of sewage 
plant network. 

Phase 1 has been 
completed. 

The 
outstanding 
work could 
not be 
completed 
due to 
budgetary 
constraints. 

Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 

Number of 
replaced old 
sanitation 
pumps. 

 

- - 70% of target 
achievement 

12 Sanitation 
pumps to be 
replaced. 

Only 3 sanitation 
pumps were 
replaced. 

The 
outstanding 
work could 
not be 
completed 
due to 
budgetary 
constraints. 

Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 

Number of 
awareness 
campaigns to 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

4 Awareness 
campaigns to be 

4 Awareness 
campaign 

Conducted Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

be conducted. conducted conducted. Manager 

Reports and 
proof of 
payments for 
MIG. 

R12 445 
231 

R 12 445 
231 

50% of target 
achievement 

100% on reports 
and payments 
for MIG 
expenditure. 

99.21% of reports 
and payments 
for MIG were 
spent. 

Completed Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 

Review and 
submission of 
the PMU 
business Plan 
and approval 
thereof. 

Approved 
business plan 
by DPLG. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Approved 
business plan by 
DPLG. 

The business 
plan has been 
approved by 
DPLG. 

Completed Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 

Improve audit 
outcome 

Reduction in 
the number of 
the issue 
raised by AG 
and report 
quarterly on 
progress 
made 

N/A N/A 50% of target 
achievement 

4 quarterly 
reports on 
progress made 
regarding the 
reduction in the 
number of the 
issue raised by 
AG. 

Action plan has 
been developed 
and progress 
report. 

In progress Mr P Parker: 
Acting 
Technical 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

  KPA2 COMMUNITY SERVICES 

To 
facilitate 
social 
developme
nt services 
(Health; 
Education; 
Welfare; 
Sport & 
Recreation
) and 
Library 
Services 

 

Facilitate the 
establishment 
of a Social 
needs Cluster 
(health; 
education; 
welfare; arts & 
culture etc). 

 

 

Initial 
meeting and 
quarterly 
meetings 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

1 Quarterly 
Initial meeting 
and 4quarterly 
meetings 

1 Quarterly 
Initial meeting 
and 2quarterly 
meetings. 

Completed Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

The proper 
management of 
public 
amenities 
through the 
conclusion of a 
service level 
agreement in 
respect of 

Signed Service 
Level 
Agreement 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Signed Service 
Level Agreement 

Signed level 
agreement in 
place. 

Completed Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

libraries with 
the DSRAC. 

 

Review of a 
housing sector 
plan. 

 

 

Council 
approved 
housing sector 
plan. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Council approved 
housing sector 
plan. 

Council approved 
housing sector 
plan in place. 

Completed Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

To 
facilitate 
provision 
of housing 
needs to 
the 
communiti
es 

Facilitate the 
provision of 
housing needs 
to the 
communities. 

Number of 
approved 
applications 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

627 approved 
applications 

735 approved 
beneficiaries 
achieved. 

Completed Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

Development 
and 
maintenance of 
a database for 
households. 

Regular 
maintained 
database. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

4 Regular 
updated 
database. 

Target achieved 
and household’s 
database has 
been updated. 

Completed Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

To ensure 
approval and 
monitoring of 
all building 
plans. 

 

Number of 
building plans 
approved. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

4 Building plan 
approved per 
quarter. 

No building plans 
were submitted 
in the current 
year. 

Building plans 
are approved 
when and as 
the 
applications 
are lodged. 

Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

To monitor 
rezoning; 
relaxation; 
subdivision; 
consolidation; 
alteration and 
encroachment 
of buildings. 

Number of 
applications 
received. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

4 Quarterly 
inspections 

1 Applications for 
encroachment of 
buildings in place. 

Applications 
for 
encroachmen
t are dealt 
with when 
and as 
applications 
are lodged. 

Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

To develop a 
Building 
Control and 
Procedures 
manual. 

Council 
approved 
Building 
Control and 
Procedures 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Council approved 
Building Control 
and Procedures 
manual. 

The building 
control policy 
manual and 
procedures has 

Completed. Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

 

manual. been developed. Manager 

Spatial 
Development 
Framework 
(SDF) reviewed 

 

Council 
approved SDF. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Council approved 
SDF 

Council approved 
SDF in place 

Completed. Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

To identify 
land for the 
establishment 
of a municipal 
pound. 

 

 

Council 
resolution on 
land 
identified. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Council 
resolution on 
land identified 

Target achieved. Completed Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

To develop and 
update a 
register for 
usage of 
municipal 

Updated 
municipal 
register and 
quarterly 
reports. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

4 Updated 
municipal 
register and 
quarterly 

Municipal 
register is in 
place for all 
quarters. 

Completed Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

cemeteries. 

 

reports. Manager 

Building of 
labor shelter of 
cemeteries. 

 

Number of 
shelters built 

  100% of 
target 
achievement 

1 Shelter to be 
build. 

No shelter has 
been build. 

This target 
could not be 
met due to 
financial 
constraints. 

 

Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

To 
facilitate 
the 
provision 
of disaster 
manageme
nt 
services. 

 

Facilitate the 
development 
and signing of a 
Service Level 
Agreement 
with the Chris 
Hani District 
Municipality 

Signed Service 
Level 
Agreement 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Signed Service 
Level Agreement 

Signed Service 
Level agreement 
not done. 

We are 
experiencing 
delays from 
CHDM to 
develop the 
service level 
agreement. 

Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

Co-ordinate 
prompt 

Quarterly 
reports/Meeti

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 

4 Quarterly 4 quarterly 
reports are in 

Completed Mr ME 
Dingani: 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

 response in 
times of 
disaster. 

 

ngs achievement reports/Meetings

 

place and have 
been tabled to 
council.  

Community 
Services 
Manager 

To ensure 
provision 
of traffic 
services. 

 

Upgrade of a 
Testing 
Station( 
buildings ) 

 

 

Fully 
functioning 
testing station 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Fully functioning 
testing station 

The testing 
station is not 
fully functioning. 

We are still 
waiting for 
approval 
from the 
department 
of transport. 

 

Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

To solicit 
funding from 
the 
Department of 
Transport for 
the Vehicle 
Testing Station 
(Buildings). 

Quarterly 
reports 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

4 Quarterly 
reports on 
progress made in 
soliciting funding 

Target achieved 
the testing 
station has been 
build. 

Completed. Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

To increase 
revenue 
generated 
through traffic 
enforcement. 

To collect 75% 
of budgeted 
revenue/Quar
terly reports. 

N/A N/A 60% of target 
achievement 

To collect 75% of 
budgeted 
revenue 
annually. 

Target achieved 
quarterly reports 
are available for 
inspection. 

Completed. Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

Enter into a 
service level 
agreement 
between 
Inkwanca and 
Tsolwana 
Municipality for 
Traffic fines 
Defaulter 10% 
Collection 
commission. 

Signed 
agreement 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Service level 
agreement 

No signed level 
agreement has 
been made. 

The target 
could not be 
achieved 
because 
Tsolwana 
doesn’t have 
a traffic 
services. 

Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

To ensure 
provision 
of Waste 
and 
Environme

Facilitate the 
development of 
an environment 
sector  plan 

 

Council 
approved plan 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Council approved 
plan 

Environmental 
sector plan has 
not been 
developed. 

We have 
engaged the 
Chris Hani 
District 
Municipality 

Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

ntal 
Manageme
nt 
Services. 

 

 

to assist.

Proper 
management of 
access controls 
to the waste 
disposal Site 
through 
maintenance of 
a register. 

Updated 
register/Mont
hly reports. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

12 Updated 
registers 
annually. 

12 reports are 
available for the 
maintenance 
register for the 
waste disposal 
site. 

Completed Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

Ensure regular 
collection of 
refuse. 

Weekly 
schedules 
signed HOD 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

48 signed HOD 
schedules 

12 Signed HOD 
schedules in 
place. 

This target 
will be 
reviewed 
going 
forward. 

Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

Rehabilitation 
of the 
municipal 
landfill site. 

 

Quarterly 
Reports 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

2 Half yearly 
reports 

1 Rehabilitation 
costs report is 
available. 

The provision 
for the 
rehabilitation 
of Landfill 
sites is done 
once a year 
and such 

Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

provision has 
been made 
available. 

Invite the 
department of 
environmental 
affairs to 
conduct an 
assessment of 
the municipal 
waste disposal 
site. 

Assessment 
Report. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

1 Assessment 
Report. 

1 Assessment has 
been conducted 
by COGTA and 
the report is in 
place. 

Completed. Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

Facilitate 
environmental 
and waste 
management 
campaigns 

 

number of 
awareness 
campaigns 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

2 awareness 
campaign 

1awareness 
campaign 
conducted in the 
year under 
review. 

The target 
could not be 
achieved 
because of 
deviation by 
CHDM on a 
joint program 

. 

Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

Ensure 
beautificat
ion of 
municipal 
Parks and 
Public 
places  

 

 

Upgrade of 
Parks and 
Public places 

number of 
upgraded 
parks 

  80% of target 
achievement 

2 upgraded park 4 parks were 
upgraded in the 
current year. 

Completed. Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

Fencing of 
Commonage 

number of 
fence 
commonage 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

2 commonage 
fence. 

No commonage 
fence 
constructed. 

This could not 
be achieved 
because of 
financial 
constraints. 

Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

To ensure 
that 
community 
facilities 
are 
accessible 
to all. 

Renovation of 
building and 
community 
halls 

 

 

number of  
renovated 
building 

 

  70% of target 
achievement 

7 buildings to be 
renovated. 

 

Only 2 municipal 
offices were 
renovated during 
the current 
financial period. 

The target 
was not 
achieved as a 
result of 
financial 
constraints. 

Mr ME 
Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

Auxiliary Improve audit Reduction in N/A N/A 50% of target 4 quarterly Action plan has In progress Mr ME 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

services

 

outcome 

 

the number of 
the issue 
raised by AG 
and report 
quarterly on 
progress 
made 

achievement reports on 
progress made 
regarding the 
reduction in the 
number of the 
issue raised by 
AG. 

been developed 
and progress 
report. 

Dingani: 
Community 
Services 
Manager 

  KPA 3 FINANCIAL VIABILITY 

To ensure 
sound 
financial 
practices 
through 
effective 
revenue & 
expenditur
e 
manageme
nt and 
credit 

Improve 
revenue 
collection and 
ensure what is 
due to the 
council is 
collected 

collect 60% of 
the 
outstanding 
debtors and 
100% of the 
current billing 

 

N/A N/A 60% of target 
achievement 

40% outstanding 
debtors 
collected 

 80% of  the 
billing collected 

0% of the 
outstanding 
debtor’s 
collected and 
80% of the 
current billing 
achieved. 

20% of 
current 
billing is not 
been 
collected and 
thus resulting 
in the 
outstanding 
debtors 
balance 
accumulating. 

 

Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

control.

 
Conduct 
General 
Valuations on 
Properties(MPR
A 
implementatio
n) 

 

Valuation roll, 
reviewed 
policy and By-
law 

N/A N/A 70% of target 
achievement 

100% of target 
achievement 

Target was 
achieved. 

Completed Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 

Ensure that 
expenditure 
incurred is in 
line with 
council 
approved 
budget. 

Quarterly 
reports to 
council 

R 38 967 
170 

R 31 867 
756 

100% of 
target 
achievement 

4 reports to 
council 

4 quarterly 
reports in place. 

Completed Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 

Implementatio
n of the 
Indigents 
Register 

Monthly 
reports for 
subsidies to 
indigents 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

12 reports for 
subsidies to 
indigents 

12 Monthly 
reports for 
subsidies to 
indigents in 
place.  

Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

Facilitate the 
payment of all 
outstanding 
creditors. 

100% of the 
outstanding 
creditor 
should have 
been paid 
year end 

 

N/A N/A 90% of target 
achievement 

50% of the 
outstanding 
creditor should 
have been paid 

Not achieved. Unable to pay 
50% of 
outstanding 
creditors due 
Financial 
constraints 
and 
challenges 
experienced 
by electricity 
problems 

Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 

To ensure 
complianc
e with the 
MFMA with 
regards to 
Budgeting 
Principles 
(Chapter 
4) 

To develop a 
Budget and IDP 
process plan in 
line with MFMA 
requirements. 

Tabling to 
council 

N/A N/A 90% of target 
achievement 

Tabling to 
council the 
budget and IDP 
process. 

Target was 
achieved. 

Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 

Compilation of 
an Adjustments 
Budget. 

Council 
approved 
Adjustments 
Budget 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Council approved 
Adjustments 
Budget 

Council approved 
Adjustments 
Budget in place 

Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

 
Review of 
Budget Related 
Policies in 
preparation for 
the next year’s 
budget 

Council 
approval of 
policies 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Council approval 
of policies 

Council approval 
of policies in 
place. 

Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 

Compilation of 
the Draft 
Budget for 
2013/16 MTEF 
periods. 

Tabling to 
council by 31 
March 2013 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Tabling to 
council by 31 
March 2013 

Target was 
achieved. 

Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 

Submission of 
final budget for 
2013/16 MTEF 
period for 
approval by 
council. 

 

Approval by 
council by 31 
May 2013 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Approval by 
council by 31 
May 2013 

Target achieved. Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 

To ensure 
that the 
Supply 

Development  
of procurement 
plans 

Procurement 
plans 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

2 reports on 
Procurement 

Target achieved 
and development 
plans are in 

Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

Chain 
Manageme
nt Policy is 
effectively 
implement

ed. 

 

 

 

plans. place. CFO 

Development 
and 
maintenance of 
a supplier 
database. 

Advertise to 
update the 
database. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Advertise and 
update the 
database twice 
annually. 

Target achieved. Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 

Ensure that 
goods procured 
are in line with 
the Supply 
Chain 
Management 
Policy 

 

Quarterly 
reports to 
Municipal 
Manager for 
council 
consideration. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

4 Quarterly 
reports to 
Municipal 
Manager for 
council 
consideration 

4 quarterly 
reports 
submitted to 
council. 

Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 

Renew 
insurance 
contract 

Renewed 
insurance 
contract 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

 

Renewed 
insurance 
contract 

Insurance 
contract 
renewed. 

Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

Maintenance of 
a Fixed Assets 
Register 

 

Updated 
Fixed assets 
register 

N/A N/A 90% of target 
achievement 

Updated Fixed 
assets register 

Updated fixed 
asset register has 
been prepared. 

 

Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 

Physical 
Verification 
and Bar coding 
of assets. 

Updated 
Fixed assets 
register 

N/A N/A 90% of target 
achievement 

Updated Fixed 
assets register 

Updated fixed 
asset register has 
been prepared. 

 

Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 

Facilitate the 
disposal of 
fixed assets 

Proceeds from 
disposal of 
fixed assets 

N/A N/A 90% of target 
achievement 

To prepare a 
disposal list of  
fixed assets 

 

Disposal list has 
been prepared. 

Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 

Development 
and 
maintenance of 
a stock control 
register and 

Approved 
procedures 
manual and 
maintained 
stock control 

N/A N/A 50% of target 
achievement 

Approved 
procedures 
manual and 4 
stock control 

Stock control 
register in place. 

Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

procedures 
manual at the 
workshop. 

register. register.

To ensure 
full 
implement
ation of IT 

 

 

Capture 
opening 
balances for 
the 2011/12 
financial year 

Report 
generated 
from eVinus 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Capture opening 
balances for the 
2011/12 
financial year 

Report 
generated from 
eVinus in place. 

Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 

Capture the 
budget figures 
for 2012/13 on 
eVinus 

Report 
generated 
from eVinus 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Capture the 
budget figures 
for 2012/13 on 
eVinus 

Report 
generated from 
eVinus in place. 

Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 

Performance of 
Backups on all 
Servers 

Regular 
Backups 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

12 Regular 
Backups. 

12 Regular 
Backups in 
place. 

 

Completed. IT Manager. 

Update of the 
Fixed Assets on 

Electronic 
General 
Ledger 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 

Electronic 
General Ledger 
update with 

Electronic 
general ledger 
updated with 

Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 



ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT   

Inkwanca Municipality |Annual Report 
2012/13 

223 

 

Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

eVinus update with 
fixed assets 
data. 

achievement fixed assets 
data. 

Fixed assets 
data. 

 

 

CFO 

Interface 
Payday with 
eVinus 

Electronic 
General 
Ledger 
update with 
Payroll data. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

12 Interface 
Payday with 
eVinus  

12 Electronic 
General Ledger 
update with 
Payroll data 
available. 

 

Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 

Upgrade of the 
prepaid 
electricity 
system 

DOS will be 
converted to 
windows 
based system 

 

  100% of 
target 
achievement 

Upgrade of the 
prepaid 
electricity 
system 

No upgrade 
made on the 
prepaid 
electricity 
system. 

When 
upgrade was 
completed, 
server was 
not 
compatible.  
Server has 
been 
upgraded. SP 

Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

is waiting for 
a date to 
implement 
the system. 

 

To ensure 
that 
monthly 
and annual 
financial 
reports are 
submitted 
on time 
and are 
credible 

 

 

 

Preparation 
and submission 
of S71 reports 

 

Report 
submission 
monthly 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

12 Report 
submissions 
annually 

12 Monthly 
submission of 
S71 in place. 

Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 

Preparation 
and submission 
of AFS the AG 

Submitted 
AFS to the AG 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Preparation and 
submission of 
AFS the AG 

Target was 
achieved. 

Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 

Facilitate the 
Implementatio
n of the Action 
Plan developed 
for the 2011/12 
audit report 

Improve the 
audit 
outcome 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Facilitate the 
Implementation 
of the Action 
Plan developed 
for the 2011/12 
audit report. 

This is an 
ongoing process 
and internal 
audit reports are 
available. 

Completed. Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

. 

Improve audit 
outcome 

Reduction in 
the number of 
the issue 
raised by AG 
and report 
quarterly on 
progress 
made 

N/A N/A 50% of target 
achievement 

4 quarterly 
progress reports. 

Quarterly 
progress reports 
in place. 

In progress Mrs. L. 
Labuschagne: 
CFO 

  KPA 4 INSTITUTIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

To ensure 
institution
al 
developme
nt and 
policy 
developme
nt in the 

Ensure 
compliance 
with 
legislation, 
regulations, 
policies & 
procedures 
(PMS; 4 
Ordinary 

Council 
approved 
performance 
management 
system; IDP; 
Organizationa
l policies and 
SDBIP. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Council approved 
performance 
management 
system; IDP; 
Organizational 
policies and 
SDBIP. 

Approved 
performance 
management 
system; IDP; 
Organizational 
policies and 
SDBIP in place. 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

municipalit
y. 

 

council 
meetings; 
Organizational 
policies etc.). 

Legal & 
Administra
tion 

 

Ensure 
development, 
implementatio
n and 
compliance 
with council 
by-laws. 

Approval by 
council and 
implementati
on there-of 

N/A N/A 40% of target 
achievement. 

Approved council 
by-laws 

The approved 
council by laws is 
in place. 

Policies and 
by laws are in 
place and 
complying 
with 
legislation, 
they have 
been 
approved 
council. 

Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

Workshop all 
councilors and 
staff on 
approved 
policies, 
procedures and 
by-laws. 

Attendance of 
workshops by 
councilors and 
staff. 

N/A N/A 50% of target 
achievement 

2 Workshops for 
councilors and 
staff. 

The target has 
been met, 2 
workshops have 
been conducted 
for councilors 
and this includes 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

LLF workshop.

 

Maintain filling 
of 
documents/ach
ieving 

Proper record 
keeping, 
report to 
management 
meetings 

N/A N/A 50% of target 
achievement 

Proper record 
keeping,12 
report to 
management 
meetings 

Record systems 
are in place and 
have improved; 
they are filed in 
terms of the file 
plan and 
provincial 
standards. 
Reports are 
available for 
inspection. 

 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

Monitoring of 
the telephone 
management 

Charge for 
personal call 
on monthly 
bases 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

12 Reviews of 
personal calls on 
annually. 

12 reviews 
submitted in the 
current year. 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

Human 
Resources 

 

 

Conduct skills 
audit 

No of trained 
personnel 

N/A N/A 50% of target 
achievement 

To conduct 100% 
of skills audit to 
all staff 
members. 

Skills audit100% 
of skills audit 
conducted in the 
current year. 

 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

Maintain 
accurate and 
reconciled 
leave records. 

Up-to-date 
leave 
register/Mont
h report to 
management. 

N/A N/A 50% of target 
achievement 

Reconciled leave 
records on a 
monthly basis. 

Reconciled leave 
records on a 
quarterly basis in 
place. 

 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

Encourage that 
budgeted 
positions in the 
organogram are 
filled. 

 

Filling of 
vacant posts 
on the 
organogram. 

N/A N/a 40% of target 
achievement 

Filling of all 
vacant posts on 
the organogram. 

Target not met 
and appointment 
letters in place 
for posts filled 
the in the 
current year. 

 

Budgetary 
constraints 
and we had 
to suspend 
some of the 
processes.  

Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

Development 
of job 
descriptions for 
all posts in the 
organogram. 

 

Job 
descriptions 
for all posts. 

N/A N/A 10% of target 
achievement 

To define Job 
descriptions for 
all posts. 

All Job 
descriptions in 
place. 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

Ensure prompt 
preparation of 
payroll 
schedules 

 

Existence of 
payroll 
schedules on 
time. 

N/A N/A 95% of target 
achievement 

12 payroll 
schedules on 
time. 

 

12 payroll 
schedules in 
place. 

 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

Labour 
Relations 

 

Ensure 
compliance to 
Labour 
Relations 
legislation. 

Compliance 
with 
Bargaining 
Council 
prescripts. 

 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

100% Compliance 
with Bargaining 
Council 
prescripts. 

100% Bargaining 
Council 
prescripts in 
place. 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

Ensure that 
grievances 

60% of 
grievances 

N/A N/A 40% of target 60% of 
grievances per 

Target has been 
achieved and a 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

submitted by 
employees are 
resolved. 

per annum 
resolved 

achievement annum resolved report on 
grievances 
resolved in 
place. 

Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

Ensure that all 
disciplinary 
hearings are 
resolved. 

60% of 
disciplinary 
hearings per 
annum 
resolved 

 

N/A N/A 40% of target 
achievement 

60% of 
disciplinary 
hearings per 
annum resolved 

Target has been 
achieved and a 
report on 
disciplinary 
hearings resolved 
in place. 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

Encourage good 
relations 
between labor 
and the 
employer 
within the 
legislation. 

Labour Forum 
meets 
quarterly 

N/A N/A 50% of target 
achievement 

4 Labour Forum 
meetings  

4 meeting held 
in the current 
year. 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

Council 
support. 

Ensure that 
Council 
Resolutions are 
well 
documented 

Circulate 
action lists 
with 
timeframes 
must be 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

4 Council 
Resolutions to be 
well documented 
and filed 

Target achieved 
documented 
Council 
resolutions in 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

 and filed. circulated to 
responsible 
persons 
within 5 days 
after the 
meeting. 

annually.

 

place. Manager. 

Enhance 
operational 
effectiveness 
of the Council 
and its 
Committees. 

 

Meeting as 
per council 
schedule of 
meetings 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

4 Meetings as per 
council schedule 
annually 

Councilors 
schedule of 
meetings and 
minutes in place. 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

Facilitate 
performance 
assessment of 
the Council. 

Annual 
performance 
assessment of 
council 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Annual 
performance 
assessment of 
council 

 

This target was 
achieved. 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

Co-ordinate the 
preparation of 
the Agenda by 

Circulation of 
agenda 7 days 
before each 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 

Co-ordinate the 
preparation of 4 

Minutes of 
meetings for the 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

the Speaker's 
office and 
circulate 
notice of 
meeting & 
supporting 
documents to 
members at 
least 7days 
before each 
meeting. 

 

Council 
meeting. 

achievement agendas by the 
Speaker's office 
and circulate 
notice of 
meetings 
annually 

year under 
review in place 
and Notice of 
the council 
meeting. 

Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

Ensure that the 
meeting venue 
is properly 
organized for 
each meeting. 

 

Availability of 
venue. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Ensure 4 
meetings venue 
is properly 
organized 
annually. 

Target achieved 
and minutes of 
meetings are in 
place. 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

Review a 
Health and 
Safety policy to 
reduce the 
risks within the 

Council 
approved 
health and 
safety 
document. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Council approved 
health and 
safety 
document. 

Target achieved 
and the policy 
has been 
approved. 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

workplace. Manager. 

Ensure 
adherence 
to 
Occupation
al Health & 
Safety 
principles 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ensure that 
municipal 
employees are 
insured for 
occupational 
injuries & 
diseases. 

 

 

Facilitate 
payment of 
insurance for 
occupational 
injuries. 

  100% of 
target 
achievement 

12 payments of 
insurance for 
occupational 
injuries annually.

Target achieved. Workmen’s 
compensatio
n insurance 
has been 
settled as one 
installment 
and is up to 
date proof of 
payment is 
available 

Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

Ensure that the 
Municipality’s 
legal obligation 
to reduce risks 
to health and 
safety in the 
workplace is 
implemented 
and that the 
workplace is 
monitored to 

Reduction of 
accidents at 
work./conduc
t inspections 
on safety 
related issues 
quarterly 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Reduction of 
accidents at 
work./conduct 4 
inspections on 
safety related 
issues annually 

Target achieved, 
inspections were 
conducted and 
the department 
of labor 
certificates and 
reports is 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

protect the 
health and 
safety of 
employees. 

available

Train health 
and safety 
representatives 
for each 
section of the 
municipality. 

 

Trained 
representativ
es 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

100% Training all 
health safety 
representatives 

Target achieved, 
training of 
section 16 
structures was 
completed as per 
the Act 
guidelines. 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

Develop 
evacuation 
plans & 
conduct 
periodic drills. 

Approved 
evacuation 
plan and 
periodic drills. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Approved 
evacuation plan 
and periodic 
drills. 

Target has been 
achieved and 
Plans are in 
place. 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

Ensure that fire 
extinguishers 
exist and are in 
good working 
condition and 
employees are 

Existence of 
serviced 
working fire 
extinguishers. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Servicing of 
working fire 
extinguishers per 
quarter. 

Target achieved 
and fire 
extinguishers 
have been 
serviced and a 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

 

 

 

 

 

able to use 
them. 

report is 
available. 

Manager. 

Ensure that a 
fully-fledged 
emergency 
First Aid Kit is 
available for 
emergencies. 

Inspect the 
First Aid Kit 
on monthly 
bases for 
completeness 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

12 Inspections on 
the First Aid Kit 
annually 

Target achieved 
and a register of 
inspection is 
available. 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

Review ICT 
policy 

ICT policy 
approved by 
the council 

 

N/A N/A 50% of target 
achievement 

ICT policy 
approved by the 
council 

Target achieved 
and the policy 
has been 
approved. 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

Upgrade of ICT 
infrastructure 

Report on 
implementati
on of ICT 
infrastructure 

 

  25% of target 
achievement 

100% Report on 
implementation 
of ICT 
infrastructure. 

IT infrastructure 
has been 
upgraded and 
new IT systems 
and cabling have 
been installed. 
Reports are 
available for 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

inspection.

Performance of 
Backups on all 
Servers 

 

Regular 
Backups 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

12 Backups 
annually. 

Target achieved 
reports in place 
for backups. 

Completed. Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

Licensing of 
software 

licensed 
software 

  100% of 
target 
achievement 

100% licensed 
software. 

This target was 
not achieved. 

SCM 
processes and 
financial 
constraints. 

Mr. S.S. 
Dyantyi: 
Corporate 
Services 
Manager. 

  KPA5 GOOD GORVERNANCE AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 Submission 
of 12 S71 
reports to 
the Mayor 

Submission 

Co-ordination 
and submission 
of quarterly 
reports to 
council. 

Council 
resolution. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Co-ordination 
and submission 
of 4 reports to 
council annually. 

Target has been 
achieved and 
quarterly reports 
have been 
submitted and 
available for 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

of 4 S52(d) 
reports to 
the Council 

inspection.

 

Submission of 
Annual Financial 
Statements and 
Performance 
Report to Auditor 
General. 

Confirmation 
from the AG's 
office 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Submission of 
Annual Financial 
Statements and 
Performance 
Report to 
Auditor General 

 

Target achieved Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 

Submission of 
Monthly S71 
report to 
Mayor. 

Confirmation 
from the 
Mayor's 
Office  

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievemen
t 

 Submission of 12 
S71 reports to 
the Mayor 

Target achieved 
and S71 reports 
have been 
submitted to the 
Mayor. 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 

Submission 
of Quarterly 
S52(d) 
report to 

Council 
resolution. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievemen
t 

Submission of 4 
S52(d) reports to 
the Council 

Submission of 
S52 (d) report 
has been made 
to the Council in 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

Council the current year.

Submission of 
Annual Report to 
Council. (Tabling 
for approval) 

Council 
resolution. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Submission of 
Annual Report to 
Council (Tabling 
and Approval) 

Annual report 
has been 
submitted to 
council. 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 

Submission of 
Mid- year section 
72 report to 
Council.  

Council 
resolution. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Submission of 
Mid-year section 
72 report to 
council. 

Mid-year budget 
and performance 
assessment has 
been submitted. 

 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 

Co-ordinate the 
Adjustments 
Budget Process 
for the Current 
Financial year.  

Council 
Approval 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Co-ordinate the 
Adjustments 
Budget Process 
for the Current 
Financial year. 

This target was 
evaluated and 
achieved. 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 

Co-ordinate the 
Budget and IDP 
review process 

Council 
resolution. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 

Co-ordinate the 
Budget and IDP 
review process 

The 
IDP/Budget/PMS 
has been 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

for the 2013/14 
financial year 
(Tabling and 
Approval). 

achievement for the 2013/14 
financial year 
(Tabling and 
Approval). 

 

adopted by the 
council of 
Inkwanca 
Municipality in a 
council meeting 
held on the 31th 
of May 2013. 

Manager 

Co-ordinate the 
Review of 
Performance 
contracts for 57 
Senior Managers. 

Council 
resolution 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Co-ordinate the 
Review of 
Performance 
contracts for 57 
Senior Managers 

 

Section s57 
contracts were 
reviewed. 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 

Good 
Governance
: Co-
ordinate 
the IGR 
activities 

Establish an IGR 
Forum. 

Inception 
meeting and 
minutes  

 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Establish an IGR 
Forum. 

An IGR forum 
was established. 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 

Facilitate 
sitting of 
quarterly IGR 

Quarterly 
Reports. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 

2 IGR meetings 2meetings were 
held in the 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

 meetings. 

 

achievement annually. current year. Manager 

Co-ordinate 
sittings of the 
Audit 
Committee  

Quarterly 
Reports 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

4 sittings with 
the Audit 
Committee 

4 quarterly 
meetings were 
held. 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 

Facilitate the 
Development and 
Implementation 
of a Risk 
Management 
Strategy. 

Council 
Approval and 
Quarterly 
Reports to 
Management/
Council 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Council Approval 
of the Risk 
management 
strategy and 4 
annual Reports 
to 
Management/Co
uncil. 

 

Risk 
management 
strategy in place 
and 4quarterly 
report submitted 
to council. 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 

Co-ordinate the 
formulation of 
responses from 
issues raised by 
the Internal Audit 

Quarterly 
Reports 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

4 Reports 
annually on 
progress made 
regarding issues 

Audit Action plan 
has been 
prepared and 
submitted. 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

Unit. raised by 
internal audit. 

 

Facilitate the 
Implementation 
of the Action Plan 
developed for the 
2011/12 audit 
report. 

Improved 
Audit Report 
on issues 
raised and 
report 
progress to 
Audit steering 
committee 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

2 Reports 
annually on 
progress made 
regarding 
implementation 
of the Action 
Plan developed 
for the 2011/12 
audit report. 

Progress report 
on the 
implementation 
of the Action 
plan developed. 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 

Co-ordinate 
audit of the 
2011/12 
financial year 
including 
formulation of 
responses to 
issues raised by 
the Auditor 
General  

Confirmation 
of receipt of 
responses and 
minutes of 
meetings by 
the Auditor 
General. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Co-ordinate 
audit of the 
2011/12 
financial year 
including 
formulation of 
responses to 
issues raised by 
the Auditor 

This target was 
achieved. 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

General

Facilitate 
Tabling of the 
Audit Report 
and Action Plan 
addressing 
audit issues to 
council. 

Council 
Resolution 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Facilitate 
Tabling of the 
Audit Report and 
Action Plan 
addressing audit 
issues to council. 

This target was 
achieved. 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 

Assist in the 
Compilation of 
the Oversight 
Report to 
Council 

Council 
Resolution 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Compilation of 
the Oversight 
Report to 
Council 

 

The oversight 
report has been 
compiled and 
submitted to 
council. 

 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 

Performan
ce, 
Monitoring
, and 
evaluation-

Review and 
implementatio
n of the PMS 

Council 
approved 
revised PMS 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Review and 
implementation 
of the PMS. 

 

Approved PMS in 
place. 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

enhance 
good 
governanc
e 

 

Co-Ordinate 
the 
compilation of 
Service 
Delivery and 
Budget 
Implementatio
n Plans. 

 

Council 
resolution. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Compilation of 
Service Delivery 
and Budget 
Implementation 
Plans. 

The target has 
been achieved. 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 

Monitor and 
Evaluate the 
Departmental 
performance 
based on SDBIP 

Quarterly 
reports to 
management/
council 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

4 PMS reports to 
management/co
uncil annually 

4 quarterly 
assessment 
reports 
submitted by 
management. 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 

Monitor the 
implementatio
n of Council 
Resolutions. 

Quarterly 
reports to 
management 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

4 reports on 
implementation 
of council 
resolutions 
annually. 

4 Quarterly 
reports in place. 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

Other 
Governanc
e issues 

 

 

Facilitate 
implementatio
n of Council 
Resolutions. 

Quarterly. 
Reports to 
management  

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

4 reports on 
implementation 
of council 
resolutions 
annually. 

4 Quarterly 
reports in place 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 

Co-Ordinate 
the sittings of 
Management 
Meetings 

Committee 
Minutes 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Co-Ordinate 12 
sittings of 
Management 
Meetings 
annually. 

 

10 committee 
meetings in the 
current year  

Other 
committee 
meetings 
were 
adjourned 
due to 
community 
protest. 

Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 

Conduct 
Quarterly and 
Annual 
Performance 
Appraisals for 
the Heads of 
Departments. 

Quarterly 
Reports. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Conduct 4 
Quarterly and 
Annual 
Performance 
Appraisals for 
the Heads of 
Departments. 

4 quarterly 
performance 
appraisals for 
heads of 
departments in 
place. 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

Solicit funding 
from the 
National 
Treasury 
through the 
NDPG Program 
Urban 
Development 

Written 
Confirmation 
from the 
National 
Treasury 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Solicit funding 
from the 
National 
Treasury through 
the NDPG 
Program Urban 
Development. 

 

This target was 
achieved. 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 

Communication
s within and 
outside the 
institution 
streamlined 
through an 
approved 
communication
s plan/ 
strategy 

Approval of 
Communicatio
n Strategy by 
Council 
Continuous 
updating of 
website with 
information 
prescribed in 
the MFMA 

 

N/A N/A 50% of target 
achievement 

Approved 
communication 
strategy by 
council and 
updated website 
with information 
quarterly. 

The 
communication 
strategy has 
been approved 
but the website 
information has 
not been 
updated. 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 
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Type of 
activity. 

Strategic 
objective 

 

Performanc
e indicator 

Annual 
budget 

allocation

Expensed 
to date 

 

Baseline 
information 

Annual target 
2012/13 

 

Annual target 

Achievement 

Managemen
t comment 

Responsible 
official 

 

To facilitate 
the review of 
the 
Departmental 
Organogram 

Council 
approved 
revised 
organogram. 

N/A N/A 100% of 
target 
achievement 

Council approved 
and revised 
organogram. 

Council approved 
and revised 
organogram in 
place. 

 

Completed. Mr. G. Sgojo: 
Municipal 
Manager 

 

R' 

Capital Project Ward(s) affected Works completed  
(Yes/No) 

Paid to Date 

Roads and Bridges      

Sokoyi Bridge Three No 222,637.12

Community Assets  

Masakhe Community Hall Three No 5,128,603.54

   

TOTAL EXPENDITURE   5,351,240.66
 


